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in every Cafe of Murder the Indiftment muit be
either, .that he aCtually killed him, or aided nr_ld
affifted him that did kill him. But, with Submif-
fion there is neither of thefe in this Cale.

He did know of the Defign, there 13 no Crime,
he did accompany him in it, that 15, he bgrc
him Company at that Time; he went with hin
to the Place where he exccuted his Delign, but
he did nothing when he came’ there to further,
promote, or encourage the Kxecution of 1t; and
therefore it can never make him Principal, nor
Acceffory to the Murder.

Mr. Price, I fhall only fay this, my Lords,
that I take it, that the bare going with him 10
this Defign, without doing any Aét, doth not
mvolve him in the Confederacy, as Alding and
Abetting.  Something muft be done or faid, et-
ther he muft aflift or adwvile, or otherwile he
cannot be Principal, and confequently cannot be
gutlty of this Murder.

L. H Stezv.  Mr. Attorney, have you any
thing to fay to this?

Mr, A, Geno My Lords, we that are of the
King’s Councii do not defire to be heard to thus
Cafe neither.

L. H §tew. 1 do not hear you, Sir, what
you fay ?

Mr. 2. Gen, My Lord, we do not debire to
fpeak ro it.

L. H. Stew, Then, my Lord Chief Juftice.

L.C.J. Holt. This is the Queftion:

Hhbetber a Perfon knowing of the Difign of anio-
ther 1o lie in wait to aflantt a third Man, aid
accompanying bim i that Defion, if it foall
happen, that the third Perfon be killed ot that
Trine in the Prefence of bim who knew that De-
Sign and accompanied the other in ity be guilly
in Law of the fame Grime with the Party whe
.bad that Defign and killed bim, though be bad
wo aitual Hand in his Death?

My ILords, as for this laft, I defire to make
iome Obfervations upon ‘the Words, Had no afinal
Hand, By thele Words, I {uppofe, 15 meant he did
not draw his Sword, . - lay any Hand upon the Per-
fon flain, or give any atual Affiftance to the other
Perfon at that ime waen the Third Perfon is flain,
but was only in Company, and a Looker-on,

E, of Nottingbam. My Meaning in thofe Words
15, That with his Hand he gave no Siroke.

L. C.F. Holt. That, my Loids, I take tobe the
Meaning, he did not give an aftual Stroke, nor
held the Perfon whillt the other killed him, nor
ufed any Violence.

Now, I am of Opinion, my Lords, that this is
Murder in the Perfon that ‘did accompany the
other in'the Defign. For he being acquainted with
the Defign, and knowing of the Intention of the
Party to commit Murder, or do an-unlawful A&,
upon which -Death might -enfue, accompanying
him in that Deflign, he thews an Approbation of
it, and gives him. greater Courage to put it in
Execution. 'Which isan Aiding, Abetting, Affift-
ing and Comforting, ‘which are:the Words ufed in
fuch Inditments, and fo my humble Opinion is,
1t 1s Murder -in that Perfon that accompanied the
other, as-well as in him that did the Fadt.

L.C. ¥ Treby. My Lords, as this Cafe 5s, ]
think the accompanying of him in that Defign
(which are the ‘effeftual Words upon ‘which the
Quéftion -turneth) 1s Murder.

Here is firft-of 'all the Party-that defigneth the
Affault, and he -doth, purfuant -to that Delign,
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make this Affalt, and thereupon doth kil the
Third Man ;5 this undoubtedly is Murder in him,
for here was Malice prepenfed, an Intent of Bo.
dily Flurt to the Party, and in Purfuance of thic
Intent, Death enfueth ; this is unqueftionably
Murder 1n him.

Then the Queftion is, What Crime it is in him
to whom this 15 made known, and who accom-
panied the other in that Delign, knowing of it?
I take this to be 2 Confent to the Defign, and to
the Executton of i, It is more than knowine
and not revealing of it, though that was his Dut?
to have done, (and fo the Council for the noble
Lord did admi, thatit was 2 Mifdemeanor in him
not to hinder luch a Breach of the Peace.)

But here 1 fay 1s more than that: He goeth
with him to the Place, and accompanieth him in
order to the executing the Defign, and this is an
Aiding and Abetting of it,  If a Man fay to ano-
ther, I'ntend to affaulc and beat fuch a one 3 come
along with me, ftand by me, and fee it done
and the other confenteth, and accordingly goeth
along with him, and accompanieth him whilt he
beats and kalls the Man ; this is an Approving,
Encouraging, and Emboldening of him in his
mifchievous Parpole, and fhews fuch concurring
Malice in that other Perfon, as venders him guiley
of the fame Crime with him that with his Fand
and Weapon beat and killed the Man.

Mr, 7. Newil. My Lords, as this Cafe 15, and
as [ take the Law to be, this s Murder. Irisa
Cafe of one’s lying in wait, and another Perfon
dotly accompany him in the Defign, he that did
defign the lying in wait having told it to him,
and then he is prelent at the Execution. I take
it as Law, if the Party is killed, he that is pre-
ent, and cometh with the other upon thar De-
fign, fhall be taken to come to affift or abet the
other, or defend him if any thing of Oppofition
{hould happen, and that I take to be Murder.

L. H. §. Areyou all of the fame Opinion ?

Jedges. We are all of that Opinion, it it Mur-
der in bogh in that Cale,

E. of Devon. My Lords.

L. H. Stew, My Lord Steward.

E. of Divon. My Lords, I defire they may all
give their Reafons, as well as their Opinions, as
this Cafe is.

Mr. 7. Gregory. My Lords, Iam humbly of
the fame Opinion with my Lord Chief Juftices
that fpoke before me, that this is Murder, and
my Reafon 1s this: ¥ieft, He knew of the De-
fign, which was an unlawful Defign ; then he ac-
companied him as this Cafe is put, not only to-the
Place, but in the Defign, which differs the Cafe
from his being prefent by Accident ; for by his
-going along with him he doth encourage him to do
that, which perhaps fingly the other would not
venture upon, and going and being prefent when
the Defign s executed, upon which the Man is
{lain 3 T take it he is as much guilty as the Perfon
that ftruck the Stroke 10 Point of Law,

Mr. f. Eyres. My Lords, I am humbly of the
fame-Opinion, I'take 1t to be-Murder in him that

‘knew the Defign, and did accompany the other

n-it, though he «did nothing at all towards the
killing.of the Man,
For, my Lords, it is-the Intention of. the -Par-

-ty that diverfifeth the A& If he came there

-with .an ill Intention, and to affitt-him if need
did require, .as it is plain;he did if he did accom-
pany him in the Delign, ‘which.is.a ftrong Evi-

dence
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dence of the Intention: And, my Lords, Nature
hath allowed no Man a Cafement into another’s
Heart, and therefore we can judge of no Man’s
Intention, but by Circumitances of the Fact ap-
pearing without ; and then, I fay, if the Fact be
fo apparently from the Circumitances of it, that
he knew of the Defign, and accompanied him in
it, itis a {trong Evidence that he came to affift
him 5 and though he doth nothing actually in the
Matter, yet being prefent to aflift him 1f Occalion
did require, itis plain he did aid and abet him in
the Aétion, and fo ir is as much Murder in him,
as in the other that gave the Stroke.

Mr. B. Turten. My Lords, 1 am humbly of
the fame Opinion; the thing that differeth this
from the former Cafe is, That this Perfon was in
theDefign with the other ; for that, my Lords, I
take to be accompanying him in the Defign 1n or-
der to the Execution of it, for bare Privity and
Knowledge of the Defign would not do 1t; but if
he be with him at the Time, and accompany in
order to the Execution, that maketh him as much
criminal, as he that did actually occafion the Death
of the Perfon, for he was prefent in the Company,
and ready to affift him in the evil Defign, which
I conceive is as much Murder as the other.

Mr. B. Pswel. My Lords, I am of Opinion,
as this Cafe is now put, That this 1s Murder i
both, and my Reafon is this: Where one Perfon
is privy toa Delign of Felony, or committing
fome Perfonal Violence, as this Cafe1s, and is not
only privy to it, bur goeth along with him, and
accompanieth him in putting this Defign in Exe-
cution, tho® he may not think 1t will extend fo far
as Death, butdoth only intend Bzating, and hath
no Perfonal Hand, or doth otherwife contribute ;
but by his being with the other Perfon when he
executeth his Defign of affaulting, and the Party
beaten dieth, they are both guilty of Murder.

L. Mobun. My Lords, Wil your Lordfhips

give leave, that my Council may anfwer fome
things that the Judges have faid ?
L. H. Stew. No, my Lord, you muft not Re-
ply after the Judges have given their Opinions.
Have any of your Lordfhips any more Queltions
to propofe ?

L. Cornwallis. My Lords, I have one.

L. H. Stew. My Lord Cornwallis.

L. Cormwallis, My Lords, I am very {orry to
have Occalion to ask any Queftions 1n this Cafe,
but I humbly defire a Queftion may be anfwered
by the Judges, which is this :

If a Perfonbe by, named William, <when Thomas
Jaid, be would fiab John, upon which Willlam
faid, He would fland by bis Friend, and after-
ewards Thomas deth affually surder John,
and Willlam s prefent at the Jame Murder :
Whether the Law will make William equally

. guilty with Thomas, or what Grime William
is guilly of ?

L. H. §. Pray deliver in your Paper, my Lord.

It was deliver’d iny and read by the Clerk of the
Crown, and Copies given of it as before.

L. H. Stew. What fay you to this Queltion,
Gentlemen ?

Sir Tho. Powys. May it pleafe your Lordfhips,
this Queftion runneth thus:

If a Perfon be by, named William, when Thomas
faid, be would flab John 5 wpon which William
faid, be would fland by bis Friend s and after-
wards Thomas doth allwally wurder John,
and William és prefent at the fawe Murder:
Vour. 1V,

Whetber the Law will make William equally
guilty with Thomas 5 or what Crime William
is guilty of ?

My Lords, I do not queftion but many Cafes
may be put which will be plainly Murder, and
if this Cafe fhould be attended with Faét equal
to the State of this Cafe, I believe it will amount

to Murder. But upon this Difference the Refo-

lation of it will depend, and every Cafe muft
ftand upon its own Circumftances,

It a Perfon do genenally fay, Iam fully re-
folved I will ftab fuch a Man, and fay fo without
Condition or Limitation, that he will do it 5 and
another doth declare his Intention to affift and aid
him, by faying, I will ftand by youinit, and af-
terwards the thing is executed in his Prefence,
who fo concurred ; 1 do take it, that that is an
Evidence that he is equally guilty with the other,

But, on the other hand, if a Man fay, I will
ftab fuch a one if he oppofe me in fuch a Defign,
and fo maketh his Relolution conditional, and
the Perfon that is prefent doth fay, I will fand
by you in ir, that is in your doing it, if you are
oppofed 1n fuch a particular Mateer ; my Lords,
with Submiffion, if he is not oppofed in that par-
ticular Thing or Defign upon which he did fay
he would ftab him, but if he doth afterwards,
upon fome other Occafion different from the for-
mer, and not relating to what he was talking of
before, or upon fome other Provocation, ftab him,
and the other Perfon happeneth only to be prefent,
I take 1t, that the Words which he fpoke with 2
Limitation to a particular Matrer, will not make
him liable to the Guilt of the Murder that is com-
mitted upon quite another Account.

The Words, Standing &y him, are capable of
two Senfes; but I. would not, in fo ferious a
Matter as this, offer to put a jocular Senfe upon
them, as if 1t was meant he would ftand by and
not meddle ; but I take it, that fuch a Cafe as
this will turn upon the Manner of the Man’s en-
gaging himfelf ; if he engaged to ftand by him
In a particolar Matter, and the other doth ftab
the threatned Perfon afterwards, not upon that
particular Occafion, but upon another Account,
and he happeneth only to be by, thefe Words will
not draw him in, though they fhould be well
proved to be fpoken, fo as to involve him in the
Guilt of that Murder.,

For the Law is favourable to a Man in the Cafe
of Life, and will judge according to the Intention
of the Party ; and he having not abetted or con-
tributed to the Faét, his Words fhall not be cat-
ried to his Prejudice, farther than his Intention,
or farther than the concomitant Circumitances of
the Matter, will make them plainly import,

This Cafe is put generally, and without Re-
ftraint; and there is no Queftion but many Cafes
may be put that will undoubredly be Murder ; but
every Cafe muft, as I faid, ftand and fall by its
own Circumitances.

Mr. Hawles. My Lords, I think the Cafe as
it 1s put fingle, and upon thefe Circumftances,
would be Murder; and my Reafon 1s this, The
Perfon that faith he will ftand by a Man, who
faith he will kill or ftab another, Is as much
guilty as that Man himfelf, and will be thought
as malicious 5 but if it fhould happen that be-
tween the Words pronounced, and the Murder
committed, that the Perfon that faith he will
fland by his Friend, cometh to have a Friend-
fhip and Xindnefs for the Party that-is threatned
* 4 A S
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to be killed, and upon meeting him carefles him
extreamly, and there being no Malice continning
(as thére muft be to the Time of the Stroke given,
to make Murder) but he happened to be killed
by that other, fuddenly in his Prefence, thofe
Words will not make him guilty of Murder; but
as the Cafe 1s put, I think ic is Murder.

Mr. Price, My Lords, I fhall not take upon
me to trouble your Lordfhips with making a G.fe,
but as this Cafe is put without any Condidon, or
other Circumftance annexed to it, I think it will
be Murder.

L. H. Stew. There will be no need to ask the
King’s Council upon this Queftion whether they
will {peak to it, becanfe the Council for the Pri-
foner agree 1t to be Murder; Therefore if your
Lordfhips pleafe, we may now proceed to ask the
Judges Opinions; And firft, What fay you, my
Lord Chief Juftice?

L.C. F. Holt, My Lords, the Queftion is this.
If a Perfon be by, named Willam, whei ‘Thomas

Jaid be would flab John, upoi which William
faid be wonld fland by bis Friend, and after-
wards Thomas doth affually murder John,
and William s prefent at the fame Murder s
Whether the Law will make Wilham guilty
ewith Thomas 3 o what Crme Wilham 75
guilly of ?

My Lords, I am of Opinion that this 1s a great
Evidence of Murder in Williain, that was thus
actually by. I cannot fay it is Murder, as the
Cafe is put; but upon fuch an Evidence, Fact is
to be left to the Confcience of a Jury in the Cafe
of 2 Commoner, or the Conlfcience of the Peers
m the Cafe of a Peer.

For when Williem faid he would ftand by his
Friend, who faid he would ftab Fobn, That 1s
plainly a Confent, or at leaft fuch an Exprefiion,
from which, a Confent to the Stabbing of him
may be inferred,

Then afterwards it feemeth Thomas actually’

murdereth Fobu, and Williain was prelent. Now
if Williain was delignedly prefent with the other
that committed the Murder, then itis plain it
will be Murder in 77/%ain, but if there be no
Evidence to prove upon what Account he was
prefent, 1t may be prefumed he was prefent in pur-
{uance of his former Agreement, fo that it may be
Murder, or not Murder, as Circumftances may
happen upon the Evidence; 1f he was prefent in
purluance of his Promife, then no doubt it is Mur-
der; But if he did not meet in purfuance of that
Agreement, it may not be Murder. But thisisall
Matter of Evidence, and that refts upon the Con-
fciences of thofe that are to try the Prifoner.

L. C. ¥. Treby. My Lords, I am of Opinion
that thisis Evidence, and great Evidence of Mur-

der; the Fa& confiteth of two Parts.
Firft, Here wasa deliberate Expreffion of his

Intention, that he would ftand by his Friend
Thomas, when his Friend Thomas had faid before

he would flab Fohn, and this I take properly to
be interpreted, and underftood as a Promife of
Abetting him in the Murder he would commit ;
for, I prefume, ftanding by him in this Cafe to
be meant in a grave Senfe, fignifying that he would
befriend, and if there fhould be Occafion, defend
and fupport Themas in what he refolv’d to do.
Secondly, Fe was prefent at the Stabbing,
which was before defigned and {poken of. Now
I think his being prefent when that Refolution
‘of his Friend was executed, coupled with his

If:réceding Declaration of his Intention, isa ftrong
Lvidence of Murder, . .
Mr. ¥. Nevil, My Lords, the Queltion I

take to be, Whether the Law of Eugland fith
William is guilty of this Murder? Truly, my
Lords, I muft fay as my Lords have faid before,
that as this Cafe is, Thisis a very {trong Evi-
dence of Murder: Ior when he doth fay, That
he will murder fuch a Man, and the other faith,
he will ftand by him, in the common Acceptation
of thofe Words, it 15 taken, that he doth then
agree with him 1n that Defign, which he decla-
reth to be to ftab Fobx,

But then it feemeth to me truly, that this Cafe
15 not put full, how long it was afterwards that
the Fadt was done, and what Circumftances at-
tended it for if any Circumftance happened af-
terwards that did amount to a Countermand of
this Promife, or any thing interpofed to interrupt
it, that this Agreement was not performed, per-
haps the Cafe might not be Murder, butftill it is
Lvidence fo far as your Lordihips may judge up-
oh the Circum{tances that attend 1t, whether it be
Murder or no. But to declare a further Opinion,
as this Cafe is put, traly I cannot.

Mr, 7. Gregory. My Lords, Idoupon this
Cafe humbly conceive, there is a little Difference
from the former, only there it is put pofitively,
but here as Evidence. Now, my Lords, I do
humbly conceive that in common Difcourfe, 1 will
ftand by my Friend, 1s, 1 will affift my Friend,
It my Friend fhould fay, I will kill fuch 2 Man,
or I will do any other Act, and Iiay Iwill ftand
by him, I think the Import of the Words 1, I
will aflift him 1n 1t

My Lords, Asto the latter Part, as this Cafeig
put, for I can go no further, it doth not appear,
whether when the Man was killed, he camne by
Accident, or i purfiance of his Agreement,
knowing of the Defign. Now that is but Matter
of Evidence, if hecame by Accident it will not be
Murder, butif he came with Defign, no doubt it
s Murder 1n one as well as in the other. *'

E. of Mudgrave, My Lords.

L. H. Steww. My Lord of Mulgrave.

E. of Mulgrave. 1f any of my Lords defire
that the reft of the Judges fhould give their Opi.
nion, it is fit they thould be heard 3 butif no Lord
doth defire it, and they fay they are of the fame
Opinion withoat any more to do, becaufe it may
fave a ‘great deal of Time 3 1 defire your Giace
may only ask them, Whether they agree In their
Opinions with thofe that went before ?

L. Corirwallis. My Lords, Ihumbly defire the
Judges may all fpeak. '

Lsrds.  Go on then,

Mr., 7. Eyres. My Lords, I humbly conceive
this 1s a Queftion of Fact, and not of Law, and .
1w 1s a very firong Evidence, if a Man hear ano-
they fay he will {tab fuch a Man, and he faith
he will ftand by his Friend, and accompanieth
him at the Time when the Falt 1s done, itisa
ftrong LEvidence, that he came with a murderous
Intent with his Friend 5 and doth as much mani-
feft his Intention to commit Murder, as if he had
actually given the Wound, and a great Evidence
to involve him in the Crime, as much as the Per-
fon that gave the Stroke,

Mr, B. Turton, My Lords, I am of the fame
Opinion with my Lords, and my Brothers that
have fpoken before me; my Lords, I confefsIdo

not think it cometh up fo clofe to the Matter as
2 | ~ the
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the Queftion that was‘put_]aﬁ before 3 for this,
as my Brother Eyres faith, is rather a Queftion of
Faét and Evidence, than Law. -But certainly a
very ftrong Evidence it is of the Intention of that
Party that was prefent when the other fiid he
would ftab the third Perfon, and his going away
prefently, and accompanying him when the Stab
was given, and Murder done, I fay his Prefence
after this Determination 15 a very great Evidence,
that it was done in Purfuance of that Agreement :
It is a Matter of Faét which your Lordfhips will
determine, according as the Circumfitances appear
before you, which may vary the Refolution one
wiy or other.

Mr, B. Pewell. My Lords, Iam of Opinion
as this Cafe 1s put, that it may be Murder or not
Murder, according to the concomitant Circum-
{tances. If a Man fay, I will ftab fuch a one,
and another fay he will ftand by him, and after-
wards when he 15 with his Friend, the Man i1s
{tabbed, if thatis at fome Diftance of Time from
the Words fp=aking, and the Meeting be accl-
dental, or other Fadls happen that may alter the
Cale, it may receive another Determination,  But
if afccr this 1s faid, there be any immediate going
to Jook after this Man, or they be near the way
where this Man s to come, and then he is killed ;
this is a mighty ftrong Evidence that fomething
was done in Purivance of this Refolution, and
that the one want along with the other to coun-
tenance him i the Action.

L. H. Stew. IHave any of my Lords any other
Queftions to propole ?

Lords, 'No.

Earl of Mulgrave. My Lords, If there had
been any other Quefttons propofed by any other
Lords, I would have itaid all they had all been
over; but I fee their Lordlhips are at an End
with their Q reftions : I have one which [ think
is nearer the (afe than any has been yet, and of
more Iimportance to the Matter 1n Hand, and
more fit for the Council to inform you in, and
for your Lordthips to ask, and the Judges to an-
fiver. The Queltton is this:

If A accompanieth B in an unlawful Afion,
in which C is ot concerited, and C bappeneth
to come in the Way of B, after the frt Aftion
is fully over, and bappened lo be killed by B,
without the Affffance of A5 Whether A is
guilty of that Maw's Murder ¢

This Queftion was banded to the Lable, read by
the Clevk, and Copies given as before.

L. H. Stew.  What fay you to 1t, Gentlemen,

who are of Council for the Prifoner ¢

Sir Thomas Powis. May it pleafe your Lord-
thips, I will not tronble your Lordfhips with the
repeating of the Cale again, becaufe my Copy 1s
agreeable with what was read at the Table: Nor
thall I trouble your Lordfhips with many Words
upon this Cafe, becaule take. 1t, the Law 15 very
plain. |

If two Perfons accompany each other to do an
unlawful A&, and in the Execution of that un-
lawful A&, one of them doth go beyond what
was firlt defigned, and a third Man is killed whil(t
they are in Execation of that .Act, tho’.the one
did the Fa&, and the other did not immediately
contribute thereto, yet he being joined - with him
in the unlawful Aétion, upon which this doth en-
fue, he is anferable for all the #l Confequences
of it 3.the Law herein is clear according to the
Cafe that was put at firft of two Perfons going to-
.gether to rob a Park and fteal Deer,
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But if that unlawful Aftion be executed, or the
two Perfons who joined in the Defign have totally
defifted from it, or are difappointed in it, if after-
wards when they are together upon fome other
Occafion, it happencth that one of them killeth
another Man, but his Friend no way aided him
or affifted him in the doing of it, your Lordthips
and the Law will feparate thefe Perfons who were
at firft jomned together for another Purpofe ; and
will difinguifh between them in this new Matter
that is fubfequent to the former Agreement, tho’
they were in Company together.

Becaufe in the firft Cafe, he that is joined in
an 1l Action muft look to himfelf, and be anfwer-
able for all that followeth thereon: In the fecond
Cafe, he is in no Fault atall, it is only his Mif-
fortune to be in il Company if he had no Hand
m the Fact. This the Law is very plain in, and
therefore I fhall not trouble your Lordfhips fur-
ther with fpeaking to ir.

Mr, Hawles. My Lo:ds, T would only add one
fhort Word; There is but this one Difference be-
tween an Acceffory and a Principal 3 The Prin-
cipal 1s always prefent, the Acceffory is always
abfent; and I would only put you one Cafe of
an Acceflory in Felony out of my Lord Coke; he
faith, It muft be the fame numerical Thing in
which they are joined, and therefore, if 4 bid B
rob the Vintner’s Boy of Plate as he cometh to a
Gentleman’s Chamber to bring Wine, but B doth
not puriie the Inftrations, but breaketh into
the Vintner’s Houfe, and ftealeth the Plate theres
this is a different Matter, 1t is not the fame Thing
wherein 4 and B agreed at firlt, and 4 1s no way
concerned In 1t

The fame Law is, if 4 and B agree to kill G,
and B killeth D 5 tho® 4 be prefent, it will not
be Murder in 4; for the Agreement was for the
killing of C, and not of D,

My Lords, as this Cafe is put, they did agree in
the unlawful A&, but that Matter was over, and
there is no Agreement as to the other Matter, nor
is that purfuant to the Matter agreed upon ; and
therefore the Prefence of the Party that agreed to
the unlawful A& doth not make him guilcy of
Murder, unlefs he agree to that too.

Mr. Price. My Lords, I have but one Word
on the fame Side. I take it, that when a Man 15
doing an unlawful A&, there is an infeparable In-
cident that doth attend it, which is Mahce 1m-
plyed. And this is fo infeparable, that when his
ill Defign is at an End, his Malice is at an End
too, and hath no Being, and therefore if he en-
tereth upon an il Defign afterwards, tho’ another
bz prefent that was joined with him in the former
ill Defign, yet his Malice who was {o joined, be-
ing coupled with the ill Defign that is over, muft
be gone too 3 dnd there is no Malice in his being
barely prefent, And therefore for that Reafon,
he that was aiding and affifng before, cannot be
Principal in fich a fudden A& as this new one is,
and confequently cannot be guilty of Murder, or
of Manflaughter.

L. H. Stew. Mr. Attorney, Do you or any
of the King’s Council think fit to fay any thing
ro this Queftion? -

Mr. A, Ger. My Lords, we that are of the
King’s Council do not think we have any Occalion
to be heard to this Queftion.

L. H. Stezo. Then, my Lords the Judges, what

fay you to it?
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L.C. ¥. Helr. 1f your Lordthips pleafe, I will
again repeat the Queftion ; it is this:

If A sccompanieth B in an wilawful Altion,

i which C is not concerned, and C bappeneth
10 come in the way of B, after the firp Altion
(that is, the unlawful Acion, I fuppofe) is
Fully over, and happensth o be killed oy B,
withont the Affiffance of A whether A is
guilty of that Marw's Murder ?
~ And I do humbly conceive with great Clear-
nes, That 4 s not guilty at all. For here 1s no
Relation to the firlt unlawful Act that he was en-
gaged in, bur that is all over and determined ;
and then C cometh in the Prefence of B, who
killeth himy, and of 4 who had no Knowledge of
any Malice between them, or any Defign of his
Death, This is meerly accidental, and doth not
depend upon the firft unlawful Action 5 and there-
fore A 1s not guilty,

L.C.5¥. Treby. My Lords, I think there can be
no Difference of Opinions in this Cafe: For it 15
plain there was an unlawwful Adion in which they
did agree, (as a Riot or Affault to beat or wound
a Man or the like) and if Death had enfued, they

both had been guilty of Murder, as well he that

looked on, as lie that gave the mortal Wound.

But then the Queltion addcth further, That the

A&ion to which they agreed was fully over, and
there only happencth to be a Continuance of their
Prefence together 5 and there being an old Grudge
between one of the Parties and a third Man, apd
the Party who had that old Grudge, meeting with
his Enemy, exccutech it then upon him, and
murdereth him; this doth in no Sort affect the
other that was prefunt, and had joined in the for-
nier unlawful Action that was over. In the former,
he did join and concur, and therefore if Death
had enfued, they had been both gulty: In the
latter, he did not join and concur; and thercfore
thongh Murder did happen in his Prefence and
Company, he is not guilty, but only the Party
that altually killed 1s.

Mr. ¥ Newill. My Lords, [ am of the fame
Opinion.

L. H Sicwo. If you are all of the fime Opini-
on, I think you need fay no move.

. Fudees, We are all of the fame Opinion, my

Lords.

L. H Steso. Ny Lords, all the Judges are of
the fame Onimon; and now I think it 15 your
Lordfhips Refolution to adjourn to the Houle,

Lords, Ay, ay,

L. H. Stzo. This Court 1s Adjourned to the
11ouic of Lords.

And then the Lovds vetuined fo their Houfe in the

fasiie Order, and theve piefently clfjourned 1l
the next Aorning. ,

Die Sabiali Quarto Februarii 1692,
Bout four of the Clock in the Afternoon,
the Lords came from their Houofe in the
former Order mto the Court in IWeflminfler-Hall ;
and being {eated on therr Benches, and his Grace
the Lord High-Steward 1n the Chair before the
Throne, Proclamation was made for Silence;
and the Judgment of the Peers was demanded,

and delivered in this Manner.

L. H, Steww. My Lords, Your Lordfhips have
~ now heard all the Evidence both againft the Pri-
foner and for htm: The next Thing s your
Lordfhips Judgment, and for that the Method is
- thisy Your Lordfhips Opinions are to be deliver-

151. The Trial of Charles Lord Mohun, 4 W. & M.

éd in the Abfence of the Prifoner. The Queftion
that your Lordthips are to deliver your Opinio
about will be this -

Whether sty Lord Mohun ke guilty of the M-
der of William Mountford, whereof be flands

inditted, or Not guilty ?

The Order of delivering your Opintons mufk
be, 1o begin with the youngeft Baron, and fo
upwards; and therefore I mult delire your Lord-
fhips to allow me to take your Judgments di-
{tinétly, and that I may write them down.

Lords. Ay, ay.

L. H. Stew, My Lord Lemfler, is my Lord
Mobur guilty of the Murder whereof he ftandeth
indited, or not guilty.

The Lord Lemiter Bood up in bis Place uncoverad,
and layiig bis Right-band on bis Breaf, pro-
aottisced his Fudewrit thys ;

L. Lemfler. Nt guilty upon my FHonour.

The faine Queftion was feverally asked of el the
Lovds, who .a the [siie Form delivered theiy
Opinions as followeth :

L. Capel.  Guilty upon my Honour.

L. Afburibaia, Not guilty upon my Honour.

L. Cholinondley. Not awnlty upon my Honour.

L. Godolphin. Not guilty upon my Honour.

L. Osborie.  Not gulty upon my Henour,

L. Arundel of Trerice,  Not guilty upon my
Honour.

L. Crew.  Not gutlty upon my Honour.

L. Cornmwallis.  Not gutlty upon my Honour.

L..Granville, Not guiley upon my Honour.

L. Beriley of Strargen.  Not guilty upon my

Honour.

L. Lexington. Not guilty upon my Honour.,

L. Lucas.  Not guilty upon my Honour.

L. Clifford of Lansberough, Guilty upon my

Honour.

L. Colpcper.  Guilty upon my Honour,

L. Vayghen. Not guilty upon my Honour.

L. Fermyn,  Not guilty upon my Honour,

L. Lagh.  Not gailty upon my Honour,

L. Lovelaces Not guilty upon my Honour,

L. Bigoke. Not guilty upon my Honour,

L. Hunfdon.  Not gnilty upon my Honour.

L. Chandois. Not guilty unon my [Honour.

L. WWilloughly of Parbain, Not guilty upon my

Honour.

L. Evers.  Not gulty upon my Honour.

L. Fitzwalter. Not guilty upon my Honour,

L. Morley. Not gullty upon my Honous.

L. Berkley of Berkley,  Not gulty upon my

Honour,
L. De-la-?are.  Not gnilty upon my Honour.,
L. Willoughty of Eresby. Not guilty upon my
Honour,

L. H. Stew. My Lord Vifcount Pilliers, €.

Vife. Villiers.  Not guilty upon my Fonour.

Vife. Longuewille, Not guilty upon my Honour.

Vife. Weymounth. Guilty upon my Honour.

Fife. Newport. Not guilty upon my Honour,

L. H. Stewo,  Earl of Warriugion, 9%,

Earlof Warrington, Guilty upon my Honour.

Eari of Scarborough, Not guilty upon my Ho-

nour,
Earl of Maylborongh.  Not guilty upon my
Honour,
Earl of Mountagne. Not guilty upon my Ho-
nour,

Earl of Monmouth, Guilty upon my Honour,
Earl of Falconberg. Not guilty upon my Ho-

nour.
' Ears
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Earl of Portland. Guilty upon my Honour.

Earl of Abington, Not gmilty upon my Honour.

E. of Rochefer.  Guilty upon my Honour.

Earl of Noitinghanm. Guiity upon my Honour,

Earl of Radwor. Not guilty upon my Honour.

Earl of Macclesfield.  Not guilty upon my Ho-
nour,

Earl of Feverfoain, Not guilty upon my Ho-
nour,

Earl of Craven. Not guilty upon my Honour,

Earl of Carlifle. Not gty upon my Honour,

Earl of Bath. Not guilty upon my Honour.

Earl of Efféx.  Not guilty upon my Honour.

FEarl of Sandwich, Guilty upon my Honour.

Earl of Scarfdele. Not guilty upon my Ho-
nour.

Earl of Sunderland, Not guilty upon my Ho-
nour.

Earl of Thanet. Not guilty upon my FHonour.,

Earl of Cheflerfield. Not guilty upon my Ho-
nour

Earl of Carnarvon, Not guilty upon my Ho-
HOUr,

Farl of Kinflon. Guilty upon my Honour,

Eail of Staiifsrd. Not guilty upon my Honour.

Earl of Rivers,  Not guilty wpon my Honour,

Larl of Mulsrave. Not guilty upon my Ho-
nOIT.

Eairl of Muaichefler. Not guilty upon my Ho-
nour.

Easl of Weflmoreland, Guilty upon my Honour.

Eearl of Bullingbrook, Not guilty upon my
Honour.

Eail of Clare.  Not guilty upon my Honour.

 Earl of Denbigh. Nort guilty upon my Honour.

Earl of Nortbampion. Not guilty upon my
Honour,

Earl of Bridewwater. Guilty upon my Honour.

Earl of Bedford, Not guilty upon my Honour.

Earl of Huntingdon, Not guilty upon my Ho-
nour.

Earl of Kens,  Not gwlty upon my Honour.

Ll of Shrewsbary, Not guilty upon my Ho-
nour,

Eail of Oxford.  Guilty upon my Honour.

L. H. Stezo, My Lord Chamberlam, &,

Earl of Deifct, Not guilty upon my Honour,

L. H. §.c: My Lord Steward, &,

Eairl of Diven, Not guilty upon my Honour,

L. H. §tewe. My Lord Great Chamberlam, €9,

Earl of Linafey., Not guilty upon my Honour.

L. H. §&w. My Lord Marquils of Halltfax, &c.

L. Muarquifs of Hallifex, Not guilty upon my
-Jciour,

L. H Steze. My Lord Duke of §t. Albans, &c.

Duke of St. Alhans.  Not guilty upon my He-
nour. -

Duke of Northrmberlaind,
Honaur.,

Duke of Orinond, Not gmlty upon my Honour.,

Not guilty upon my

Duke of Somerfet.
nour.

Duke of Norfolk.

~ nout.

L. H. Stew. My Lord Privy Seal, &,

Larl of Pembroke. Not guilty upon my Ho-

nour.

Then bis Grace the Lord High Steward flood up un-
covered, aid laying bis Right Hand on bis Breaft,
pronounced bis Grace’s own Fudgment thus ;

L. H. Stew, My Opinion is, That my Lord

Mobun 15 not guilty upon my Honour,

Then bis Grace feated himfelf again in the Chair,

and numbered up the Opinions of the Peers,

L. H §tew, My Lords, I have carefully ta-
ken your Lordfhips Opinions, and find the Num-
bers to be thus: My Lords that have found my
Lord Mobun to be Guilty are Fourteen 5 my Lords
that have found him Not guilty are Sixty-nine.
Call for the Prifoner.,

Proclamation was made for the Chief Governor of
the Tower to bring forth the Body of the Pri-
Joncry aid be was brought to the Bar as before :
Aid Praclaination for Silsuce was made,

L. H Sicw. My Lord Mpbun, you have been
dicted for the Murder of Williasis Mountford ;
upon your Arraignment you have pleaded Not
guilty, and have put your felf upon the Judg-
ment of your ’eers; and your Peers have confi~
dered what hath been faid both for and againft
you, and the Judgment of my Lords is this,
That your Lordfhip is Not guilty : Your Lord-
fhip is therefore difcharged. Make Proclamation
for diffolving the Commiffion.

Clof Crown. Serjeant at Arms, make Procla-

mation,
Serpeant., O Yes.
Cl. of Crown, Again,
Sergeant, O Yes.
Cl. of Crewn. Again,
Sergean, O Yes,

Cl. of Crows, My Lord High Steward of Exg-

Not guilty upon my Ho- -
Not guilty upon my Ho-

laind s Grace, doth ftraightly Charge and Com-

mand all manner of Perfons who have given their
Attendance here, to depart hence in the Peace
of God, and of our Sovereign Lord and Lady the
King and Queen; for his Grace the Lord High
Steward of Eugland intendeth to diffolve his Com-
miffion.

Fbich the Serjeant at Arins vepeated, and at the
Eud of ity bis Grace flanding np, and bolding
the White-Staff in both bis Hands, broke it in
two, by which bis Commiffion was diffolved,

Marg. of Carmarthen. Is it your Lordfhips

Pleafure to Adjourn to your own Houfe ?

Lords. Ay, Ay.

Marg. of Carmarthen. This Houfe 1s Adjourned

into the Houle of Lords.

And then the Peers returned to their own Houfe

“tn the fame Order.

Proceedifzgs
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CLIL Proceedings between the King and Tuomas Kenparr and Ricuarp
Roz, #z the King’s Bench, on an Habeas Corpus upon a Commitment for

S
High Treafon, Mich. 7 Gull. IIl. O&ob. 31. 1695,

TR N Thurfday Oftober the 31/, 1695, the
50 Ihf%% Prifoners being brought up into Court
0 f;{. on the Habeas Corpus, the Keeper of
b‘x‘(é?% Newgate, to whom the Writ was
*‘3‘*"39":"‘”-*-' direted, returned the Caufe of their
Detainer to be a Warrant under the Hand and
Seal of Sic William Trumball, Knight, one of His
Majefty’s moft Honourable Privy Council, and
princifpal Secretary of State, directed to the Keep-
er of Newgare, or his Deputy, promt fequitur,
¢¢ Thefe are in his Mujefty’s Name to authorize
““ and require you, to reccive into your Cuftody
¢ the Bodies of Thomas Kendall and Richard Roe,
¢“ herewith fent you, they being charged with
““ High Treafon, in being privy to, and affifting
““ the Efcape of Sir Fames Montgomery, out of
¢¢ the Cuaftody of Filliamn Sutten, one of His Ma-
“¢ jefty’s Meffengers 1n Ordinary, and charged
““ with-High Treafon. You are to keep them
““ in fafe and clofe Cuftody, untl they fhall be
¢ delivered by due courfe of Law: And for fo
¢“ doing this{hall be your Warrant. Given at the
¢ Courtat Whitehall the 24th Day of 04, 1695.”

Sir Bartholomew Shower moved that the Rewrn
might be read, and then that it might be filed :
And Mr, Attorney owning that he had been at-
tended with a Copy of it, and having nothing
to fay agamnft 1t, the fame was accordingly filed.

Then Sir Bartholowevs Shower took Exceptions
to the Return,

Sir Bart. Shewer, My Lord, I am of Coun-
cil for thele two Prifoners; and what we defire
at prefent 15 only that they may be bailed, though
perhaps we might prefs to have them difcharged,
and that upon good Reafon,

To induce your Lor "hip to bail them, I muft
beg your Lordfhip’s Pardon, and I hope Mr.
Attorney will hold me excufed, if T make a
Queftion whether the Perfon committing hath
any Authority for fuch a Purpofe; it is for my
Clients, who think themfelves aggrieved by this
Imprionment ; and in Trath they fay, That they
are fomewhac hardly dealt withal i this Cafe;
for the Information againft them is only for be-
Ing privy to and affifting the Efcape of the Cen-
tinels, who were privy to Sir Fames Mantgomery's
Efcape: But this is Fact, of which the Court
"will not take Notice, and therefore I fhall con-
fine my fell to the Return, as it appears before
your Lordfhip,

With Submiffion I muft infit upon ir, thata
Secretary of State, guatenus Secretary, cannot
commit for Treafon or Felony; he is not an
Ofhcer for fuch a Purpofe in common Parlance.
The Word Secretary imports only a Writer of
Letters or other Efcripts for a Superior; and as
Spelman explains the Word, this is the Senfe of it,
with the Addituon of Secrecy, of Privacy; and
fo 1s his Glgffary upon that Word. He is not a
Privy Counfellor quatenus a Secretary, nor 1s he
a Juftice; and though perhaps in Fact he may
te’ in the Commiflion, yet unlefs he hath taken

the Oath of that Office upon a Dedimns, he can-

not act as fuch: And I have feen five or fix
Privy Counfellors at a Time appearing at a Sef-

fions of the Peace for this County, in the Cafe
of the Duke of Bedford’s Power as Cuftss Roty-
lorum, to remove the Clerk of the Peace; and
when Intimation was made to them of the Ju-
ftices Oath, which they had not taken, they refu-
fed to vote, and did thereupon withdraw, Here
Sir Williain Trumball cannot be prefomed or in-
tended to be a Juftice of the Peace, becaufe the
Commitment by him is as Secretary, and not as

- Juftice; and fo s the Retwrn: And upon the

Return, the Authority by which he commirs
ought to appear, otherwife the Return 15 vigi-
ous; and here doth appear none but that of Se-
cretary, Now if the Office of Secretary doth not
imply and carry In it a Power of Committing,
then this Commitment 1s erroncous,

Our Conftitution hath diftributed the Admini-
ftration of Juftice, bothin criminal and civil Caufes,
into feveral Courts, and hath apvointed foveral
Officers for feveral Purpofes, fome for civil, fome
for criminal Matters; and in Criminals {ome are
to examine and commit, others to obey and carry,
others to receive and keep ; fome to try and fen-
tence, others to execute; each hath his proper
Province : And of thofe your Lordfhip will ke
Notice, as alfo of their feveral Duties and Powers,
and fo do our Law Books. Buta Secretary is a
Court Officer of State, not relating to the Admi-
niftration of Juftice.

You take Notice, as do our Books, of Head-
boroughs, Conftables, Sheriffs, Coroners, ILf-
cheators, and the like: But neither Cofe, Croip-
ton, Fitzherbert, Smith, or any Book which treats
of the Jurifdiction of Courts, the Pleas of the
Crown, or the Officers of Juttice, do ever men-
tion a Secretary of State; his Office rather re-
lates to foreign Negotiations than domeftick ;
and if any home Affairs fall under his Cognizance,
it is rather as an Intelligencer, than with any
Relation to Criminals, Prilons, or Gaolers, &,
In all the Debates about the Liberty of the Sub.
jects, and wrongful Commitments, which were in
Parllament 1n 4 Car. 1. or 1628, and amongft
all the Precedents mentioned there upon each
Stde, which are Multitudes, there is none by a
a Secretary : It is true, there are divers per mas-
dasuin Dowr’ Regis, by Warrant from the Lords of
the Council, I have perufed Dr. Frankling Annals
of King Fames the 1ff. fol. 261, and Rufbweith,
Vol. 1. 458. and can find none by a Warrant
froma Secretary, I have read Coke’s, Selden’s, and
Littletow’s Areuments upon that Subject, but fee
nothing of a Secretary’s Commitment., And it
feems very ftrange, if fuch a Power were lodged
in this State Officer, that there fhould be no Pre-
cedents for it in thofe Times, when extrajudicial
and general Warrants were fo frequent, that they
became a Grievance to the People, and fuch a one
as laid the Foundation for the Petition of Rights.

I fhall not controvert the Power of the Coun.
cil at prefent, becaufe 1t doth not concern the
prefent Queftion: All that I can obferve in the
Cafe 15, that it firt began to be practifed in
Sir Lionel Feukyns’s Time; and yet even in 1648,
when the Popifh Plot had increafed the Numbey

O



1695. B.R.  on @ Commitméns for High Treafon.

of Prifoners to a wonderful Degree, it is no-
torionfly known, that the Chief Juftice Scropgs
was frequently and often fent for to Whitehall
to examine, and commit, and grant Warrants.
And fome time fince the Secretaries of State have
thrown that Burden off from themfelves upon
their Secretartes under them, who have been
fivorn Juftices of the Peace ; and Mr. Brideesman
hath accordingly executed the Office of a Juftice
of Peace at Whilehall, and that frequently, It
hath been 2 Queftion, Whether a Chancellor or
Kzeper of the Grear Seal can commit s and the
better Opinton hath Dbeen that he cannot: And it
fcems to be agreed by Glewvill’s and other Cafes
in Mecre’s Reports, 839, e, that his Commit-
ment 1s illegal, unlefs for a Caufe wichin his Jurif-
diction, as a Court of Equity: and the Matters
muft fo appear, I muft agree, that any Man
may apprehiend another for Felony or Treafon;
but there 1sa valt Dificrence hetween an arrefting
of a Traytor or Felon upon Sufpicion or Know-
ledge, and a formal Commitment to Prifon, with
a Charge of Treafon.  And I am fure Mr, At
torney General will not inflift upon this Reafon ;
for then the Confequence will be, that any Man
may commit as wellas a Seerctary © And I fuppofe
that Doétrine will fcarce be allowed, though I
think that any Man may as well as he. The
Reafon of an Apprehenfion upon Sufpicion, or
Hue and Cry, or the Iike, 15 not to detain, but
to carry toa Conftable or Juftice, as in 3 /nff, 52,
Then here che Gaoler doth not return that he
detains him, becanfe he 1s guilty or fufpected, but
becaufe by virtue of a Warrant he is committed
to his Cuftody.

Befides, the Reafon of our Law is againft it;
for a Secretary cannot adminifter an Oath. Now
the Law requires that no Man fhould be commit-
ted by an extrajudicial Warrant, unlefs upon
Ouath. If there be but a Sulpicion, there ought
to be Qath of the Caufe of that Sufpicion ; for
the Pcrfon committing cannot commit upon an-
other’s Sulpicion, unlefs there be Oath of fome
reafonable Caufe for it. Ie cannot take Bail
for any Perfon accufed, he cannot takea Recog-
nizance to profecute: And I may very well chal-
lenge any Man living to fhew me any one Re-
cognizance ever returned into any Court, that
was taken by a Secretary, either for Appearance
of a2 Criminal, or for the Profecution of one:
And the Prattice is always otherwife ; for they
have often taken Bonds to the King, with Condi-
tion to appear here, And your Lordfhip and
the Court hath often had much Trouble in that
Matter ; for tho’ they were bound to appear here,
the Court hath refufed to record their Appearance,
bzcaufe no Recognizance returned or takzn, where-
upon to found fuch an Appearance.

Now it feems ftrange, nay abfurd, that our
Conftitution, which we admire for 1ts Wifdom,
fhould appoint an Officer who fhould commit,
and yet cannot give an Oath whereon to found a
Commitment, that cannot bat, that cannot take
any Recognizance to profecute: This is to make
the Liberty of the Subject very precarious, not-
withftanding the many Laws and Sayings of
Judges in favour of it. '

A Secretary is not obliged within the Statutes
that require Juftices to. rcturn the Informations
and Examinations of the Perfons accufed, and

Witneiles s which 1s a Method preferibed by the
Wifdorn of our Anceftors, both for the Service

Ef our King and the Subjec ; and may upon
feveral Occations prove ufeful to each.

This 1 may fay, that Mr, Secretary Goventry
did feruple 1, and upon good Advice, even

from Sir Williaims Fones, he took the Qath of 2
Jultice of Peace. Now, my Lord, I think
that thofe Exceptions to this Power of a Se-
cretary may very well be thought to render
it fo far a doubttul Queltion, as to induce Mr.
Atlorney not to oppofc our being bailed, to a-
void any further mention of this or any other
Quettion,

But fuppofing that a Secretary can commit,
yet in this Cafe the Parties ought to be bailed
according to the Habeas Corpns Act; * for the
ALt commands, that they fhall be forthwith bail-
ed, unlefs they be committed for Treafon or Fe-
lony, fpecially mentioned and expreffled in the
Warrant; and if it be fpecially exprefled, then
upon Prayer, if not indicted, they are to be bail-
ed the laft Day, &, Now here the Commitment
of & Perfon charged with Treafon, if it eoes
no further, then unqueltionably the Parties ought
to be admitted to Bail, becaufe that the High
Treafon s not fpecially exprefled ; fo a Commit-
ment for Felony generally would bring a Man
within the Bznefit of the A& to be bailed, becaufe
the Species of the Felony is not exprefied.
This 15 plain, and cannot be denied, Then I
muit further argue, that if the Fa&s mentioned
after the Word High Treafin be not, or can-
not be Treafon, it muft be allowed to me, that
1t 15 the fame as if it had been for High T'reafon
generally, and without more Words: For if there
be not a Species of Treafon expreffed, then we
are ftll admiffible to Batl; this muft be ac-.
knowledged. |

Now that the fubfequent Matter exprefied af-
ter the Word Zreefon is not any Species of
Treafon, I fhall endeavour to make out thus:
A bemg privy to, and aflilting the Eftape of
Sir Fames Mantgosiery, out of the Cuftody of
a Meflenger, and charged with High Treafon,
Is not any Species of Treafon, it is not Treafon.

Fift, I may with a grear deal of Colour
nake a Queftion whether the refcuing or help-
ing the Efcape of one in Cuftody for Treafon;
be Treafon, or only Felony: If the latter, then
the Commitment is erroneous,

At the Common Law the helping any Prifon-
er to efcape was Felony, and fo is, 2 fif. 589,
Now the Law in this Refpeét is not altered other-
wife than by 1 Edw. ». de fraugentibus prifonan,
and that Statute was rather to make it lefs penal
than more 5 and If to promote the Efcape of one
unprifoned for Treafon, was at the Common Law
but Felony, then this Statute fems not to make
it a greater Offence; foritis in the Negative, that
none fhall undergo Judgment of Life or Mem-
ber for the breaking of Prifon, unlefs, the Caufe,
for which the Imprifonment was, did require fuch
a Judgment, if the Party were convicted.

The Lord Hal, in his Pleas of the Crowi,
faich, that Breach of Prifon turns into Felony
only, though the Party were committed for Trea-
fon; though in another Place he feems to be
of another Opinion., Now my Argument to
make this a Doubt is this: By 2 Fen. 6. Cup.
wlt, to break Prifon when committed for Treafon,
15 declared to be Treafon; which would ke
needlefs, if 1t had been Treafon before. By
2§ Edw. 3. nothing 15 t@ be Treafon, but what

I
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is there declared to be fuch; and by 1 Mar.
all Treafons and Declarations of Treafons made
by any A& of Parliament fince 25 Edw. 3. are
repealed.  So that by this way of arguing fuch
Efcape wasonly Felony.

There is one Cafe, viz, Beufled’s, 16 Car. 1.
Jones Rep. 415, upon an InfurreCtion in Serrey,
where it is held, that if a Man be committed
for Treafon, and another breaks the Prifon, and
by that Means the Traitor efcapes, this was
Treafon in the Refcuer, and there was one ac-
cordingly indicted and arraigned ; but I find that
he was acquitted ; and though the Books fay it
was for want of full Evidence, yet it is morc
than probable, that it was-the beft Ingredient
In his Cafe, that the Judses doubted what Of-
fence it was, whether Treafon or. Felony, Now
that Cafe is founded upon Stamford’s Plas of
the Crown, 32. and all that is in Stamford is
a Quortation of a Cafe in the Year Book, w=z.
In x Hen. 6. 5. that the Efcape of a Traitor im-
prifoned was held Treafon: But there it is put
with a guod nota, as a ftrange Thing, and forme call
it Petit Treafon: But however, it was a ftrange
Thing, fince we find in 2 Her. 6. an A& of
Parliament made to declare it Treafon; which
is improbable that fuch a Law fhould be made,
if the Judges had the Year before juftly con-
demned the poor Refcuer. So that either they
doubted the Law of that Caie, or that Cafe had
fome other Ingredicnt in it, than the Book informs
us of,

This 15 not for receiving, aiding, and comfort-
ing a Traitor, knowing him to be fuch, as was
the Cale of ington, who aided Henry Garuet
the Superior of the Jefuites in 3 Juyf. 138. but
this is only for affifting the Efcape: Bur fup-
pofing that fuch an Afiiftance to efcape, or refcue
of one committed for Treafon, were Trealon, and
not Felony, yet in this Cafe, as this Warrant
1s, 1t Is neither Felony nor Treafon; for,

Secondly, Here 1s no legal Commitment of Sir
James Montgomery 5 and confequently the helping
him to efcape is .ot Treafon. My Lord
Coke 3 Inf, 70. on 1 Edw, 2. fays, thata volun-
tary Elcape of a Prifoner can be no Felony,
unlefs the Prifoner be under lawful Cuftody by
a lawful Warrant exprefling the Offence, Now
there can be no Pretence, but that the fame
Rules muft hold in Cafe of a Traitor’s efcape,
as to the Warrant of Commitment, and lawiul-
nefs of Cuftody, as doth in Cafe of Felony,
Now if the Party commanded to receive, or the
Party to whofe Cuftody he is committed, were
no lawful Officer, then fuch Cuftody cannot
make the Refcuer guilty of any capital Offence.
Co. 2. Inff. 550, faith, that falfe Imprifonment
1s not within the Iaw in this Cafes now there
can be no lawful Warrant in this Cafe, becaufe
the Ofhecer was not a lawful one.  This is not the
Cafe of one carrying to Prifon, for then it would
have been {o exprefied ; but here it is under the
Cuflody of a Meflenger, and charged with Trea-
fon, which fuppoles it a Cuftody with a Charge
by way of Commitment. Then my Lord Coke
explans what isa lawful Warrant, and that is two-
fold 5 either when the Offence appeareth by Mat-
ter of Record, as a Capias upon an Indictment,
Inquifition, or Prefentment 3 or when 1t doth not
appear {0, but only upon Oath, that a Felony is
committed, and the Party 1s committed for the
fame to Gaol. And he tells us, that there isa
great diverfity between them s for in the firft, the

breaking of Prifon is Felony, though there were
none committed’; but in the other Cafe, where
there 1s no Record of an Accufation to found a
Commitment on, if there be no Felony committed
by him, who is committed to Prifon for a fup-
pofed Felony, the breach of Prifon is no Felony, .
Now this makes another good Exception to the
Return, that here doth notr appear, that there
was either an Indi¢tment or Appeal, or that there
was a2 Felony or Treafon committed ; -and one of
them 1s necefiary.

There muft bea Felony done at the time of the
Commitment;’ for a Relation, which i1s a Fiction
in Law, fhall never makea thitd Perfona Felon s
as Plowd. 401, 1f there be a Stroke or Wound one
Day, and Death enfues upon another Day, thisis
Murder in the Party from the bielt Stroke s but the
refcuing of fuch a Criminal before the Death is no
Felony 5 which further thews, that a Felony done
s neceflary to make the Efcape a capital Of-
fence,

In 2 luff. 5935, Coke farth two or three times
in four Pages, that the Weight of the Bulinefs
depends upon the Lawfulnefs of the Warrant, or
Mittinus 3 and he faith, that it muft be in Writ-
ing, in the Name, and under the Seal of him
that makes the fame, expreffing his Place, Office,
and Authority, by force whercof he makes the
Mittimus, as is to be dire€ted to the Gaoler; and
it muft contain the Caufe more efpecially, and
with more Certainty, than a Writ of Capias need
to do, becaufe the latter is founded upon a Re-
cord, unto which a Refort may be had.  Then he
faith, that if a Warrant be not lawful, it is no
Felony in the Gaoler to fuffer him to efcape,
Now here, we fay, 1t doth not appear what the
Warrant was, upon which Sir Yames was in Cu-
ftody 5 and a Meffenger is not a lawful Gaoler;
he is merely a Conveyancer of a Meflage, Notice,
or Summons 3 and the Practice of making their fe-
veral Houfes Prifons 1s but of late date 5 our Law-
Books do take no notice of him as any legal
Officer.

Guolers have Fees, are fubje&t to Profecutions
for Extortion ; a Meflenger is not within the
Laws concerning ity for he cannot take Fees
colore Qfficiz, who hath no Office; he is, at moft,
but a Gentleman Porter. I have often heard this
Method of Commitments to the Cuftody of Mef-
fengers feverely cenfured; and though any Man
may be ordered to carry another to a Prifon, yet
he cannot therefore become a Gaoler to detain
lim, as feme Meflengers have done, for Nine
or Eleven Months, or more. How long Sir Fanies
was 1n Cuftody, I cannot tell 5 but furely the Law,
which requires Commitments to the County Gaols,
s foficient Ewidence of the Infufficiency of a
Mellenger’s Power to detain 3 and if he could not
legally detain, the Confequence muft be, that the
Efcape or Refcue 15 no Treafon,

Befides, here it doth not appear, that Sir Fames
was in Cuftody for Treafon; it is faid, that he
was In Cuftedy, end charged with Treafon: The
laft might be upon Accufation by Oath, or by an
Inditment, and yet not charged in Cuftody with
Trealon,

Then 1tis not faid with what Treafon Sir Fames
was charged ; it might be for fuch a Treafon,
wherein the receiving or helping to efcape was
not Treafon ; and it might be for Treafon gene-
rally, and then Sir Fames was bailable ; and it
will be hard to exclude the Refcuer from Bail,
when the Perfon refcued mighe challengeit.

2 Then
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Then further, though the Warrant be lawful,
and in particular for Felony, and the Gaoler do
willingly fuffer him to efcape, yet ull the Prifoner
is attainted, the Gaoler fhall not’anfwer to the
Eftape, though the Prifoner be indi@ed ; and
there is a very good Reafon affigned for it, be-
caufe the Felony of the Prifoner fhall not be tried
between the King and the Gaoler, for that he 1s
a Stranger to 1t, Now a Refcuer or Affiftant of
an Efcape is the fame with a Gaoler in this Cafe,
and fhall not be in a worle Condition, It s true,
the Party himfelf, 1if he breaks Prifon, may be
indicted for the Efcape before he be tried for the
Felony : Now the Reafon of this holds for our be-
ing bailed, for that it 1s impoffible that we can be
tricd in this Cafe, becaufe Sir Fames Montgoinery 1s
dead, and was never attainted, or fo much as in-
dicted. Lord Hale agrees with this too, that if
the Prifoner break Prifon, he may be arragned of
it before he be convict of the firft Felony; but
the Gaoler permitting a voluntary Efcape, (hall
not be arraigned till the Prifoner be firlt attaint ;
for if the Prifoner be acquir, the Gaoler is dif-
punithable as to any Capital Offence, or if the
Prifoner die before Attainder, the Refcuer fhall
only be fined and imprifoned.

Now fuppofing the affifting the Efcape of one
committed for Treafon, as fome Books {een to
fay, {hall make the Refcuer partake of the fame
Crime, for which the Party refcued was commit-
ted ; vet if a Secretary cannot commit, or if a
Mefienger’s Houfe be not a lawful Prifon =, or
if Sir Faies Montgoweiy’s Offence be not fpecially
enough expreffed, or if by reafon of his Death the
Efcape be only finable, then thele Prifoners ought
to be batled.

Sir Thomas Trever.,

Mr, Aitarney Geicral, € contra,
faid, that they ought not to be
bailed, becaufe committed for Treafon fpecially
expreffed; that harbouring a Traitor, knowing
him to be fuch, was Treafon; that there were no
Acceffarics, but all Principals in Treafon ; that
refcuing him was a comforting of him ; that to
refcue a Felon, was Felony 5 to refcue a Traitor,
was Treafon; that a Meflenger was a Jawful Of-
ficer, and that any Man might imprifon a Tray-
tor; that Sir Fames Montgsinery’s Death was Mat-
ter of Lvidence upon the Trial 5 that they need
not fet forth a Treafon committed, or an Atcain-
der, though perhaps it would be neceffary to prove
it when the Prifoners came to be tried 5 that the
Power of a Secretary to commit had been fettled
(but he could not fay when) that there were ma-
ny Precedents, which he doubted not to produce,
and therefore prayed time to look Into it.

Mr. Solicitor {poke much to the
fame effect, wich this further, Thet
the Prifoner’s Council admitted, that the Privy
Council might commit, and a Szcretary of State
was much more antient; that as to the Mefien-
oer, a Gaoler d¢ fafto was within the Law; that
thofe Perfons were wrong doers, and that they
could not take advantage of their own wrong;
and therefore the Infufficiency of Sir Fames Mont-
goimery’'s Commitment was not material ; and that
this Warrant need not be fo certamn and fpecial as
an Indi€tment, which muit have Time and Place;
and that 1f Commitments be good in Subftance,
the fame was enough 3 and therefore prayed that
they might be remanded. .

Sir Bartholomew Shower replied, That the Com-
mitment of a Secretary was never yet allowed ;

Vor. IV,

Sir . Husvler,

557
that the fame was always complined of ; that
though 1t were Treafon to refcue one committed
for Treafon, yet here it did not appear to be o3
that though in Trefpaffes a Man cannot rake Ad-
vantage of his own Wrong, yet that was not the
Quettion 5 becagfe if Sir Fames was not legally in
Cuftody, then this Fa@ was not Treafon ; that
the Infufficiency of his Commitment was an Ad-
vantage allowable, efpecially i# favorem vite 5
that though Sir Fames’s Death did not appear up-
on the Return, yet it was a Reafon to induce the
Court to bail, fince they might bail in Cafes of -
High Treafon fpecially expreffed ; and if the Court
were Informed that they could not be tried, it
would be hard to detain them in Cuftody,

Lord Chief Juftice Holt, How were the Com-
mirments at Common Law before Juftices of Peace
were mifhituted ? It is true, my Lord Cofe faith,

that none could be imprifoned £ill Indictment,
but that deferves Confideration, If you were to

enquire, and fearch in the Tower, undoubtedly
you will find Comunitments there by Secretaries of
State 3 Jook into the Refolutions in Auderfon.

Mr. Juft. Rokeby. 1 can fee no reafon upon the
whole matter, why they fhould not bz bailed 3 but
[ince Mr. Attorney is not prepared, and has had
fo little Notice, it is fit he thould have time. -
coraingly Wednelday wext was appointed.

“Then Sir Bartholoiners Shower moved, that they
might have their Wives and Friends, and 2 Soli-
citor come to them, for that hitherro they had
been kept clofe Prifoners,  #hich was granted ac-
cordingly.

Upon Wednefdoy the fixth of Nevewmber the Pri-
foners were brought up by Rule of Court; and
Siv Bartholowew Shower moved again, that they
might be bailed, and that if Mr. Attorney thought
fit to oppofe 1t, he prayed to be further heard,
for that he had more matter to alledge to juftify
the former Exceptions to the Return.

Then Mr. Attorney and Mr. Solicitor and Sir
William Williaims came into Court,

Lord Chief Fuflice.  Mr. Attorney, here are
Kendall and Rezwe brought up by Rule, and their
Counfc! defire to know whether you oppole their
being bailed 3 for if you do, they defire to be fur-
ther heard to the Return; you had beft confider
of it.

Mz, Attorney General. 1 fhould not have fo
much oppoled 1t, but that feveral Queftions have
been made and argued here at the Bar; as, that
a Secretary hath not power to commit, that this
Efcape is not Treafon, that a Meflenger is not a
legal Officer; and fince thefe thing have been
ftarted, I muft nfift upon it that this 1s a good
Return, and that they ought to be remanded.

L. C. Fuflice. Then we muft hear them again.

Sir Barth, Shower. My Lord, we do with Sub-
miffion infilt upon it, as I did the other day, that
a Secretary 1s not fuch an Officer, ashath a Power
of committing for Felonyor Treafon: I have fur-
ther looked into it, and do find fomewhat 1n the
Books concerning it, more than the King’s Counicl
did Jaft time urge, but not enough to warrant fuch
a Power in the Office of a Secretary, and a great
deal more againft it. 'What I find I fhal] offer to
your Lord(hip’s Confideration, as it appears upon
the Words of the Books, and fubmit it to your
Judgment,

My Lord, I have perufed the Refolutions of
the Judgesin 34 Eliz. 1 Anderfon 297, 298. and

4 B I muft

* See Proceedings againft Bithop Aterbury, &¢v N°. g1. p. 338,
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I muft own.that it is there faid, that one or more

of the Lords of the Council may commit; how far

that is Law, I fhall endeavour to examine prefent-

ly : But now I have named it, I would beg your

Lordfhip to obferve another of thofe Refolves ;

though it would be more proper anon, yet 1 will

juft mention it here, and that is, that there 15 a
Refolution which condemns this Return, it deftroys
the Power of a Meflenger’s Office, and, if 1t be
Law, my Clients ought to be batled ; it cor:nplmns
that divers Perfons were againft Law committed to
Prifon in private Places, and not to any common
or ordinary Prifons, or lawful Officers, as the Sheniff
or other Perfon lawfully authorized to have or keep
a Gaol: {o that upon Complaint made, the Queen’s
Courts could not learn to whom to direét her Ma-
jefty’s Writs, and by this means Juftice could not
be done. Now this feems diretly calculated for the
42 domeftick Prifoners, at the Pleafure of the Mei-
fengers ; and if Mr. Attorney will allow thefe Re-
folutions to be of any Authority in one part, he

mufl agree it to be the fame in the others.

But I fhall not need it in refpet of the Mef-
fengers Franchifes, and therefore fhall offer fome
things to your Confideration againft thofe Refo-
Jutions,

In the firft place they are extrajudicial, and not
the Opinion of Judges upon their Oaths in any
Matter before them ; and 1am fure my Lord Coke
did refufe to fubferibe his Opinion upon fuch Oc-
caflions, They are fuch Opinions, as the Judges
mazy and often have varied from, when the Point
hath come judicially in Queftion before them. Se-
veral of the Judges did {o in the Cafe of the Ship-
Mougy s and if they were not binding to the
Judges, who gave the Opinions, much lefs can
they be binding to their Succeffors, as legal Re-
folutions ; and if they be Law, yet they do not
relate to the Office of Secretary, but only to that
of a Privy Counftllor. Now we do, without any
Difrefpect to Authority, for our Clients, infift up-
on it, that that Refolution is not Law, that one
fingle Privy Councellor niay commit for Trealon.

In the firft place, w! .tis there faid, can never
be reconciled to the Rules of Law, that Perfons
committed by them onght not to be delivered ;
for thofe general Commitments were illegal at
Common Law ; and fo it is affirmed 1n the Petision
of Right; and very great Opinlons have been,
that there is nothing in the Habeas Coipus ALt,
but the Penalties and Times, that was not Com-
mon Law, and thatttis affirmative in {ubftance of
the antient Law of this Realin, which makes that
Refolurion to be fufpicious; for it what is afirmed
by it in exprefs Terms (viz. That fuch Perfons as
they fball commit, onght wot 1o be delivered) be not
Law, then whatis implied, thatone Privy Coun-
fellor may commit, is more doubtful thill.

I fhall not inquire into the Occafion of thofe
Refolutions, nor meddle with what our Fiftories
tell us of that Time, and the then Jealoufies be-
tween fome great Men; but, as ] faid before,
thole are not judicial Opinions, but only a.written
Certificate delivered to the then Chancellor and,
Treafurer :  Befides, there 1s not one Objection,
which can be made againft the Power of a Secre-
tary in, this Matter, but ftands as firm and forcible
againft that of one Lord of the Councll; we
find no Authority. for him to adminifter an Qath,
or take a Recognizance, and there is no Precedent,
of either, And, as I faid the other Day,_ it looks
abfurd, that a fingle Perfon fhould_be an Officer
to commit, and yet cannot do that whigh 15 necef~

fary in order to it ; he ought to have a Power to
examine, and that upon Qath; and if upon Ex-
amination of Winefles it appears that the Party
deferves not to be committed, he ought to have
Power to take Bail, asallo a Recognizance to pro-
fecute. A Juftice of Peace is ineable by the Juftices
of Oyer and Terminer, and Gaol Delivery, if he
misbehave himfelf, or be guilty of a wiltul Irre-
gularity therein ; but it will fcarce be faid, that a
Lord of the Council is in thofe Circumfances.
My Lora Coke faith, that a Lord of the Council
is made by fummons apd taking the Oath, and
that continues during the King’s Life : It is true
he may be difcharged, and generally it is by
forbearing to fummon him; fuppofe then ir be
omitted, and afrerward he s fummoned again,
doth he take a new Oath? When doth this Au-
thority begin? How doth 1t ceitinue or end ?
Our Law Books take no Notice of ir.

Then further, the King lumfelf cannot arreit a
Man for Treafon or Fclony, nor can he com-
mand one In his Prefence to be arrefted for Felo-
ny or Treafon; fo fud Siv Fobir Aaribem to
Lidw. 4. and 2 faff. 186, pei mandat. del Roy is
by Writ, or by Order or Rule of fome Court of
Juttice 3 now what Judge isa Lord of the Coun-
cl ? He 1s to advife the King, and is fworn to
it, and to withitand all Traitors, and to diicover
all traiterous Confpiracies, and fo is every Sub-
ject by his Oath of Allegiance, but the Ouath of
a Privy Counfellor contains nothing relating to
Comnntments.

At Common Law, extrajudicial Commitments
were Rarties; the ufual Praéhice was to indict,
and then to take them upon 2 Writ of Capivs ;
the antient Law was tender of a Man’s Liberty,
and then were the Writs framed in the Regifter
de odio €5 atin, & de tradiuds in Ballivn, and the
Wit of Habeas Corpus.

By Magna Charta 19 Hen, 3. cap. 29. which
hath been confirmed torty times by fubfequenc
Aéts of Parliament, 1t 15 enalted, that un/lus /-

er hoing fmprifonctur wifi per legein terve, which
I thall explain anon, This was made vpon a
Grievance then complained of, iz, illegal Com-
mitments:  What could thole be in that Age,
but taking Mens Perfons without a Record to
found a Charge or Accufation 2 and that it was
fo, appears by Cokz in his Comment upon thofe
antient Statutes : He fays, that there is no In-
valion upon this Law tll Zfwward 3d° Time, and
then the People quickly refented 1t; for in
5 Lidw. 3. cap, 9. the great Charter is confirm-
ed 5 but then in 25 Léw. 3. cap. 9. itis fully
and more at large expreficd, and recited, that
whereas 1t 1s contained In the great Charter of
the Franchifes of Eupland, that none fhail be
imprifoned, unlefs it thall be by the Law of the
Land ; it 1s awarded, aflérted, and eftablithed,
that from thenceforth none fhall be taken by Pe-
tition, or Suggeflion made to our Lord the King,
or to the Lords of his Council, unlefs it be by In-
ditment or Prefentment of his good and lawful
People of the Neighbourhood, though Afapig
Charta, and the reft of the feven Statutes mention’d
in the Petiion of Right viually quoted upon thefe:
Occalions, be in the General, and have ambiguous
Words in them, or Words made ambiguous by the
King’s Council'in moft Ages, yet this is plain and
exprefs, and needs no Strain on our Side. And’'[
cannot find it ever pretended:to on the other Side
to be a Strain, they are fo plain that the Inférence
15 cafy, and hard to beavoided, Iwill not,. I'muft
Nno{



16 9 5. B. R. on a Commitment for High Tredfon; . -

not fay, that they are Authorities againft the Com-
mitment by a Privy Council, but methinks they
are ftrong againft an extrajudicial Commitment by
a fingle Lord of the Council, unlefs Mr, Attorney
will argue, that the Council cannot commit by
reafon of this Law, but a fingle Privy Councellor
is out of the Words of the At ; and when I hear
that, he may expect another Anfwer.

Now for the Words per legem terre : In Magna
Charte in 2 fyf. c1. my Lord Coke doth indeed
fay, that 1n fome Cafes 2 Man may be raken and
arrefted before Indi€tment or Prefentment ; and
one Cafe which he mentions. 15, by Jawful War-
rant, where there is 2 Witnels againit an Offender:
Upon Sufpicion there may be an Apprehenfion,
but there cannot be a Commitment, with a Charge
of an Offcnce, unlefs there be an Indiétment or
Prefentment, or a Witnels againft the Offender ;
now there can be no Witnels, bur there muft be
an Qath : So 1t 1s by all Laws, 2 Man cannot be
a Witefs, though he may bean Informer,unlefs he
be fivorn, and by our Law, even Peers, if they
are Witnefles, muft be fworn, Now thar a2 {ingle
Privy Counfellor can give an Qath, I can find no
Law or Precedent for it; it is true, the Privy
Council may admunifter an Oath, and have done
fo for a long time, but that every fingle Member
can do {o, doth not follow, it 1s no more a Confe-
quence, than that becaufe the Houfe of Peers can
give an Oath, therefore every Peer may at home
Jo the fame. He is one of his Majefty’s moft Ho-
nourable Privy Council, and that 1sall; and that
15 only (as I may with Refpect fay) when they are
capitulaviter congregoti,

Further, my Lord Coke faith, that to make a
Commitment lawful, the iirlt Requifite is, that be,
or they, who do commit, have lawful Autho-
rity ; now whether a particular Lord of the Coun-
cil hath fuch a lawful Authority, I muft fubmit
to your fudgment,

In anuent Times the Praltice was for the Pri-
vy Council not to fend for Men in Cuftody, but
to iffue Citations and Summons, and that by their
Meflengers, as doth the Court Chriftian by their
Purfuivants, who cannot arreft or imprifon, as in
12 Co. Rep. 49. In all the Records cited by Coke
i his Furifdittion of Courts, cap. Privy Conucil,
or Prynn’s Autinadverfions upon that Book, 46.
there 15 no Precedent mentioned of imprifoning,
or bringing Men into Cuftody, but only Sum-
mons and Citations to appear ; and there are ma-
ny of them.

I fhall not meddle with their Power of com-
mitting for a Contempt, or refufal to anfwer, or
queftion the Authoriiy of the Countefs of §hrezws-
bupy’s Cafe, 12 Co. Rep. 93. but I urge this only
to fhew the Improbability, that our Law fhould
velt fuch an Authority n each Member of the Pri-
vy Councll.

In Pryni’s Aaimadverfions on 4 Inff, 1t 1s in his
Comment upon Coke’s Epilogue, pag, 422. 1s a ve-
ry notable Record. Rot. Parl. Auno 28 Hen. 6.
auin, 56. where there 15 an Impeachment of 7al-
bois, for a notable Riot upon fevera] Lords of the
Council met wichin the Palace at Weffminfler ; and
it is prayed, that he may be fent to the Tower
of London, to be kept without Bail or Mainprize
for twelve Months, to anfwer all Indi@tments for
that and other Riots, before the King and his
Juftices in his Bench within that Time; and if
the Conftable of the Tower fhould fuffer him to
efcape, or go at large, he fhould forfeit One
thoufand Pounds 5 to which Article of the Com-

559
mons Petition and Bill the King affenteth, fo that
here was an Act of Parliament (for fuch it is,
though in form of a Petition granted, as was
the antient Form) to inforce a Commitment to
the Tower for. any Affront to the Lords of the
Council: Now I would beg leave to abferve, that
it was not by way of Punithment for the Offence,
but to fecure the Parties to be forth coming to
anfwer an IndiCtment, the Punifhment muft bz
Fine and Imprifonment : Now it feems ftrange,
that an A& of Parliament thould be made to fe-
cure 2 Man, n order to anfwer an Indi€tment
for an Affault and Riot upon the Lords of the
Council, when any one Lord of the Council
might have committed him, and he might have
been indicted next Term 3 for the Fa&t was done
at Weminfer in Middlefex.

I find a Cafe in 1 Leon, yo, %1. it is Newell’s
Cafe, he was committed per mandatum Francifcs
Wallingbam, Militis, Principalis Secreteriiy &5 unins
dac privato contilio Dowiite Regine, and the Re-
turn was held infufficient. T muft agree, that the
Book fays it was, becaufe the Caufe for which
he was committed was not alledged, and they
amended the Rewrn, and then they made it
ex fenteirtia &5 mandeto fotius concilii privati, ifa
quod corpus cjus paratuin bebere won poffimus 5 1t s
true, that at laft the Court took Exceptions to
it, becaufe the Body was not broughe, and there
was a very wife Diftinétion made by the Court,
That where one 1s committed by one of the Pri-
vy Council, there the Caufe ought to be return-
ed; but where the whole Council do commit,
there need no Caufe to be alledged. Now it is
plain, that this was a Diftinction without a Diffe;
rence, for by the Petition of Right, and the fe-
ven old Statutes, and all the Recordsand Law of
old Time, no Lnglifan ought to be deprived
of his Liberty by an extrajudicial Commitment
or Warrant, unlefs the Caule be fhewn ; and I
would infer, that the then King’s or Queen’s
Council thought a Commitment by one Lord of
the Council was not legal, and therefore they,
added ex fententin & mandato totins privati conci-
Iy asit feems to me, that the Court did flide
over that Queftion, by infifting upon the other
Exception : However, at the moft, though i
make againft the Novelty of the Commitments,
yet it can never make for the Legality of them,
when the whole is confidered. |

Upon thefe Confiderations, I hope 1t will ap-
pear to your Lordfhip and the Court, to bea
doubtful Point, whethera Sccretary of State may
commit ; and the Confequénce of that 13, that
the Prifoner ought to be bailed according to Buf-
bel’s Cafe, Pangban x57. that the King’s Bench
may bail in any Cafe of Treafon, if they think
fic, but the Comimon Bench mult remand, if the
Caufé of the Imprifonment returned be jult, and
well returned ;3 but then there 1s this Diftinétion ;
if it {hall appear to the Coyrt, that the Party was
imprifoned againft the Law of the Land, they
ought, by Force of Magna Charta, to deliver him;
but if it be doubtful, and under Confideration,
then he ought to be batled : And this hath been
the Practice upon Convictions by Juftices of the
Peace; and the Excufe of the Judges in 4 Car.
for their Remittitnr, EF¢c. that 1t was guonfgue, &g,
7, e, till further Confideracion, was never allowed
as a wife or Jegal one. Now I hope I have faid
enough to make it doubtful. |

Then for Mefiengers, I have further matter to
urge 3 the Reafon “gly Commitments are required
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to be to the County Gaol, by 5 Hew. 4. cap 10.
is mentioned in 2 fuf. 43, and g Co. Rep. 119,
that they may have their T'rial at the next Gaol
Delivery, or Seffions of the Peace; and my Lord
Coke faith, that at Common Law the committing
to Prifon is only to this end, that the Party may
be forth coming to be duly tried according to the
Law and Coftom of the Realm: And the Abbots
of St. Alhan and Crowland loft their Franchifes of
having Gaols, becaufe they detained Men n Pri-
fon, for a long time, without making a Delive-
rance ; and all this doth in Reafon argue againit
Meflengers Power to make their Houfes Prifons.

My Lord Coke faith, in2 Inf. 43. that the Sta-
tute 5 Heir. 4. extendeth to all Judges and Jufti-
ces for two Reafons: Firft, Becaule this A& is
declarative of the Common Law ; and fecondly,
ubi lex eff [pecialis, &3 ratio ejus generalis, generalitcr
accipienda ¢ff 5 and if fo, this was a falfe Impri-
tonment of Sir Fames Montgomery, and then the
Confequence is what I urged the other Day.

I find further, in 2 Iy}, 705, that by the Par-
Lament Roll, 51 Edw. 3. aumb, 68. it appears,
that Gaols were anciently to be repaired at the
King’s Charge; and by Lord Coke upon 23 Hen. 8.
cap. 2. concerning the new erefting of Gaols, his
Optnion is, that the fame cannot be done with-
out Act of Parliament 5 and I cannot find any
A& of Parlament for making the forty two
Houfes of the Meffengers to be lawful Prifons :
If there be any fuch, I fuppofe the King’s Countel
will fhew them to your Lordfhip; nay, I cannot
find any Grant of fuch a Franchife to them.

Befides, the Reafon of the Law is with us,
Out of the County Gaols you have at every Sef:
fions of Gaol Delivery, Calendars of the Prifoners
that are in Cuftody there, but of the Prifoners in
Cuftody of Meflengers you can have no Notice;

and this s no fmall Mifchief in refpe® of the
Subjects Liberty; for ar a Gaol Delivery the

Calendar is to be called over, and by the Calen-
dars in former times were the Executions made
without any fpecial Warrant from the Judge or
Recorder, which is but a late Pradtice.

Befides, according to 3 Inf. 209. a Man re-
gularly before the Habeas Corpus A&, if com-
mitted for Treafon or Felony by a Perfon having
Authority to commit, was not to be difcharged
until he was inquired of, and either indied or ac-
quitted, or an gnoramus found, and delivered by
Proclamation ; now how this could be practifed of
a Meflenger’s Ward, is to me unaccountable.

I will in this Cafe offer to your Lordfhip what
I find in this Matter, with Swcerity, and fubmit
it to your Judgment, There is in 12 Co. Rep.
129. a (ale cited out of the Year Books, wiz.
22 Affize pl. 49. One was beheaded for killing
Adam Walton, nuneii Domini Regis, miffi ad mas-
datum ¢jus exequend’ which is there taken for Petir
Treafon: This is all that I can find of antient Au.
thority,which mentions fuch a Creature as a Meflen-
ger; but nothing can be inferred from hence to
prove the Meffengers in Ordinary to be Keepers of
Gaols, for the receipt of Felons and Traitors,

Nay, I find further a Cafe, which feems to o-
verthrow the Commitment to any other Prifon
than the County Gaol: I will but name it, and
fubmit 1ts Confideration to your Lordfhip’s Judg-
ment; 1t 15 in St. Fobw’s Argument at a Confe-
rence concerning the Attainder of the TFarl of
Strafford (1t is fol, 46 of the 40 Print of that
Argument) the Cafe of Sir Fobn Mortimer, who
was drawn, hanged, and quartered for breaking

the Prifon of the Tower, having been -commit.
ted thither upon Sufpicion of Treafon: Byur thie
wasin 2 Hen, 6, and tipon an Attainder by RBijl
in Parliament, and fo it is in -Cotion’s Abridgmens
of the Records, pap. 368, and there it s meng;.
oned as a ftrange Thing to be done in Times of
Peace, and when the Realm was m quiet, for g
Man to be condemned without Trial or Arraign-
ment. Now I might infer from hence, that if
the Law had been undoubtedly plain conterning
an Efeape out of the Tower, as a legal Prifon,
there had been no need of an A& of Parlia-
ment to attaint him ; but however, 1t may argue
thus much, that if a Bill were neceflary for fuch
an Efcaps, that an Adk of Parlament is certainly
neceffary to make a Refcuer of one fufpedted of
Treafon out of the Cuftody of a Mefitnger 1o
be guilty of Treafon butall thefe T fubmir to
your Lord’s Confideration. All that T contend
for 1s to make ita doubtful Queltion to the Court,
whether upon this Retarn, taking it for true, itis
pofible to indict and convict thele Prifoners for
Treafon? for if not, they ought to be bailed.
Then there is another Exception, which I juft
mentioned the laft time, and thar is, thatit is not
mentioned in this Warrant, what the Species of
Treafon was, for which Sir Fames Moutgonery
was committed. I fhall, as I have already, avoid
the Repetition of any thing, which I then offer-
ed; there are feveral Treafonsat this Day, where
the receiving, comforting, and relieving of them
atterwards, knowing them to be fuch, may notba
Tredfon ; and then in fuch Cafe the helping him
to efcape will not be fo, and confequently it
ought to have been alledged in the Warrant, what
the Treafon was for which Sir Fames Montgomery
was committed. Now it is no Trealon to receive
and comfort a Counterfeiter of the Great Seal, it
15 only Mifprifion, for there are no Acceffaries in
Treafon, and Principal he is is not, becaufe he did
not know of 1t at the Time 3 to this effect are the
Words of the Book, 12 Co. Rep. 81. fo it is of
the receiving and comforting a Jefuit, or other
Englifman taking Orders abroad, and returning
nto England ; for by 26 Eliz, that is made Felo-
ny 5 which Statute wounld never have been made,
it it had been Treafon, Dyer 296, 297. Corrier's
Cafe. If I know that one hath made falfe Mo-
ney, and recetve, comfort, and abetr him, this is
only Mifprifion: How far thefe are Law I am not
to argue, but [ fuggelt the Words or Effet of the
Authority, and fubmit them. Sure I am of this,
thatif your Lordfhip and the Court be fatisfied that
they cannct be attainted of T'reafon, if the Fa& ba
as this Return 1s, then you will not remand them,
Mr. Solicitor was pleafed to argue, that thefe
are Niceties too fubtle for a Return upon a Ha-
beas Corpus 3 but according to Vaughan, 136, the
Wit of a Habeas Corpus is now the moft ufual
Remedy, by which a Man may be reftored to
his Liberty, if he have been againft Law depriv-
ed of 1ty and therefore it 1s, that the Writ doth
command to know, whether it be according to
Law, or againft Law ; and therefore the Caufe of
the Imprifonment ought by the Return to ap-
pear, as {pecially and certainly to be judged by
the Court, where the Return is made, as it did
appear to the Court or Perlon authorized to com-
mit, elfe the Return is infuffictent, Now the Rea-
fon of adjudging that Return in Bufeli’s Cafe to be
infufficient, was becaufe it was only faid, that cheir
Verdi@® was againft full and manifeft Evidence,

and did not fay what ; by the fame Reafon Sir
Fames
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Yames Montgomery’s Treafon ought to have been
ot forth in this Cafes; and as to Credence, no
more ought to be given to a Petfon committing,
when a Habeas Corpus 18 brought, than there s o
+ Court gwmg a ]udgmehf, i?hf.‘.ﬂ a ‘Writ of Er-
ror is brought to examine 1t, 1n order to Affirm-
ance or Reverfal s for.an Habeas Gorpus is brought
in like manner to examine the Caufe of the Par-
ty’s Imprifonment, either to bail or difcharge, or
elfe to remand him, which is to affirm the Com-
mitment to be legaly and upon good Catife,

I bave modern Authority to juftify much nicer
Exceptions to Commirments, than thofe I have
mentioned 5 fuch Authority as Mr. Selicitor will
not deny to be good. Complaint hath béen of
a Warrant of Commutment, that it did not ap-
pear n whofe Reign the Treafon was committed,
whether 1n the Jate King’s, or the former King’s;
it 1s obferved in the Remarks upon Cornifl’s Tri-
al, and I am fure Mr. Solicitor muft own that to
be much nicer than what I have offered upon this;
I do not juftify that, but my Exceptions to the Re-
turn.

Mr. Serjeant Levintz argued on the fame Side,
that the Retwrn was 1ll, becaufe the Commitment
was to a Meflenger; it ought to have been to a
County Gaol, that the Cuftody upon an Apprehen-
fion ought to be but twenty four Hours, Britton 19.
Cuftoiner of Norimondy 456, Hil, 22 Edw. 4. pl. 4.
thofe Meflengers exacted Fees, viz. 6. 84, or
10 5. per diczn. It is in effe@ to fine the Party be-
fore he 1sconviCted. Then he faid, thatall thofe
Queftions might have been fpared, if Mr, At-
torney would confent to their being bailed.

Lovd Chief Fuffice. In truth moft of them
might have been fpared, for they have been ar-
gued more for Pleafire thah Neceffity.

Then Mr, Attorney General, and My, Solici-
Jor, nhifed, that the refcue of one in Cuftody
upon Sulprcion of Treafon, was Treafon s that
the fetting forth the Overt A& was more for the
Advantage of the Prifoner, than barely alledging
the Spectes of Treafon: That as to the Secreta-
ry’s Commument, it was owned now hot to be
foch & Novelty as was pretended the laft
Time: That it was very ancient ; that the Cafe
in 11 Leon, 15 vety flat to that Purpofe 3 that in
the Tower they found a Commitment in 1660,
by- Secretary Morris, and that many more had
been fince, but that Sir Fofph Williamfon, who
had the Papers, was now in Ireland 3 that it was
not needful, that he who commits, thould be
able to give an QOath 3 that the Houfe of Com-
mons could not give an Oath, and yet could
commit 3 and more to the like Effelt,

Siv Bartholomew Shower replied, that he was
olad to hear there were fo few Precedents for
a Sccretary’s Power 5 that if there had been more,
Mr. Attorney would have fhewh them; that
the Houfe of Commons Power was an Inftance
not fit for him to anfwer; that he did defire no
more of Mr. Attorney, than that a Secretary
could not give an Qath, and then he hoped the
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Confeguence would be plain 3 and fo fubmitted it
to the Court.

Lord Chief Juffice. 1 -did always give Credit
to the Refolutions of the Judges in Aiderfoir, and
1t1s Part of a Privy ‘Counfellor’s O4th to 'take
care of the King’s Perfon againft all Traitors,
&, whs there not a Gaol Delivery at ‘Cominon
Law? And are not the Commiffionérs by their
Commiffion to inquire of the Prifonets in that
Gaol, and a Grand Jury to be Impanelled ? And
confequently, doth not the Law fuppofe fome to
have been committed thither before? And then,
by whom were they committed *? Though a Mef
fenger be not a proper Officer, yet any Perfon
may be ordeéred to received for conve- _ ,
nient Tune for Examination, + &, Birty 19 9%-
Commitments regularly ought to be to the County
Gaols, and I wifh the Juftices of the Peace, who
commit to New Prifon, and the Gate-houfz, were
here to hear this. Bur, Mr, Attorney, the Que-
ftion 15, whether you ought not to have fpecified
thefe two Things in your Warrants, for what
Treafon Sir Fames was committed ; and my Rea-
fon 15, becaule the Jfcape will be the fame Species
of Treafon with that, for which the Party refcued
was committed 3 and fecondly, that he had done
a Treafon, that Sir Fames was guilty, But, Mr.
Attorney, will you further confider of ir, though
I think we muft bail them in thé mean time, an
Habeas Corpus being follinum iemedinm; but T
would hear my Brothers Opinion. |

. Rokelp.  Sir Barth. Shower, 1 am glad to
fee that you have retihed a Miftake you were in
about a Secrétary’s Commitment: It was long be-
fore Sir Lionel Finkins's titie : Walfngha com-
mitted near Two hundred Yeafs ago; and there
is anothér Precedent in 2 Leon. 195, Hilleyard?
Cafe, I think, that a Confervater pacis at the
Common Law may comriit, and {0 may a Con-
ftables it is incident to his Power of commit-
ting, that he may give an Oath, and take a Re-
cognizance, and (giod mirun) one of the Coun-
cil may commit, I would not have the Students
go away with the Notion of the Novelty of it:
I take Secretaries of State to be great Officers;
they are Centinels to watch for the Prefervation
of the King, and the common Peace of the
Realm: And for Meflengers; for any thing ap-
pears, he might be only carrying to Gaol; but
vet | think they ought to be Dailed, becaufe it is
not exprefled in the Warrant, what the Species of
Treafon was for which Sir Fawes Montgomery was
committed. .

%. Eyre, There may be a Differénce between
carrying to Prifohh, and a Commitment with a
Charge upon thent; and there may be a difference
between {pecitying and not {pecifying Sir Fames’s
Treafon. Upon the whole, 1 think they ought
to be bailed.

¥. Gregoty was abfent.

Accordingly they were dailed to dppear the loff
Day of Terin, to anfwér Juch Maiters as flonld then
be objected againft them.

* Juftices of the Peace are not by Common Law, but appointed by Statates, thefitft of which wds 1 Edw. 3. c4p. 16. By
Common Law therc wertonly Confervators of the Peace, whefe Power was very fhior of a Julticé's now a daps.  Sek Crompies’s

and Dalton’s Juftice,
+ "This 1sat moft but for three Days, Cro. Eiz. 830,
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CLIIL The Trials of ROBERT CHAR'N'OCK, EDWARD
KiNG, and THOMAS KEYES, af #he Old-Baily, for High

Treafon, March 11. 1695.

aeReel H1S Day the Trial of Robert Char-

RUSSN nock, Edward King, and Thewmas
o Kq}e.f, who were Indicted at Hickes’s
Hall on this Day feven-night, upon 1
~ fpecial Commiflion of O)e; and Tir-
miper for Hlﬂ‘h ‘Treafon, in Compafiing the Death
of the King by a barbarous Affaffination, 1n order
to further and affift an Invafion into this Kingdom
from France, and Subverfion of the Government,
were proceeded upon in Manner following,

After opening the Court, at which were pre-
fent a great many of the Nobxhty, Members of
Plrlnmem and other Perfons of Quality, the
petty Jury returned by the Sherift of Middlefex
to try the Prifoners, were all called over, being
m Number above Eight-fcore, and conlifting Gf
Baronets, Knights, Efquires, and Gent]emen,
and the Appearances of thofe who anfivered to the
Call were recorded ; and fix of the Judges, wiz.
The Lord Chicf Juftice Holt, the Lord Chief
Juftice T72by, the Lord Chief Barnn Ward, Mr.
Jultice Nevil, Mr. Juitice Pewell, and Mr. Juftice
Rokeby, buncr upon the Bench, the Prifoners were
called for to the Bar, and ther arraigned upon
the faid [ndiCtments.

Clerk of drraigimments, Robert Charnock, hold
op thy Hand {#hich be did): Edwerd King, hold
up thy IIdnd ( FWhich be did ) : Thomas Keyes,
hold up thy Hand (Which be did): You {tand
Indicted 1 the County of Middlefex by the Names
of Redert Charnack, late of the Parifh of St. Ch-
meits Danes 1o the C inty of Middlefex, Gent,
Edward King of the faid Parifh and County, Gent.
and Theinas Anej of the fame Panth and County,
Yeoman, for that You the Fear of GOD in your
Hearts not having, nor the Duty of your Alle-
olance weighing, but being moved and feduced
by the Inftigation of the Devil, as falfe Traytors
again{t the moft Serene, moft Illuftrious, moft
Clement, and moft Excellent Prince, our Sove-
reien Lord Ailliain the Third, by
GOD, of England, Scotlend, France, and Ircland,
King, Defender of the Faith, &, your Supreme,
True, Lawiul, and Undoubted Sovereign Lord,
the Cordial Iove, and true and due Obedience, Fi-
delity, and Allegiance, which every Subject of our
Lord the King that now is, towards him our faid
Lord the Klnfr fhould bear, and of Right ought
to bear, withdrawing g, and utterly to extmﬂ'm[h
intending and contriving, and with all your
_ Qtleucrth purpofing, deﬁfrmnn' and confpiring the
Government of this chrdom of England under
him our faid Sovereign Lord the King that now
is of Right happily and duly eftablifhed, altoge-
ther to iubvert, change 'md alter 3 as alfo our
f1id Sovercign Lord the King to Death and final
Deftruétion to put and brmn' his faithful Subjetts
1nd the F reemen of this Klnﬂdom of Euglend in-

the Grace of

S WirLw. III.

to mtolerable and nmuferable Slavery to Zewss tha
French King to fubdue and fubject, the tenth Day
of Feb}ffmy, in the feventh Year of the Reign
of our faid Sovercign Lord the King that now
s, and divers other Days and Tlmes, as well
before as after, at the Parith aforefuid, in the
County aforefuid, falfely, malicioufly, dL‘UI]lﬁ]l)’,
and traiteroufly, did compals, imagine, contrive,
purpole, defign and intend our faid Sovercign
FLord the I&mcr that now 1s, to fly, kill, aml
murder, and a miferable Slughter amongft the
Faithful Subjects of our Lori the King throuﬂh-
out this whole Kingdom of Lﬁe/mzz' to I'ﬂll
and caufe, And the hune mott '1b0mm able, wic-
ked and devilith Treafons and traiterous Contri-
vances, Intentions and Purpofes of yours aforefaid
to fu]ﬁ] perfect, and bring to Effect, you the faid
Robert Cbm nock, Lidword Kﬁfg and Thonas Keyes,
and very many others falle Traytors to the
Jurors unknown, afterwards, to wit, the faud
tenth Day of February, in the Year abovefaid, at
the Parifh aforefaid in the County aforefaid, and
divers other Days and Times, as well before as
after, there and clfewhere in the fame County,
f'llfely, malictoufly, adwifedly, clandettinely, trat-
teroully, and with Force and Arms, &¢. did
meet, propofe, treat, confult, confentand agree
our fud Sovercign Luld the Iunfr by lying in Wdlt
to aflallinate, kill and murder : And that excera-
ble, horrid, and dewftable Afaffination and
Killing the fooner to execute and perpetrate, af-
erwards, to wit, the fame Day, Year and Place
Jalt mentloned., truteroufly did trear, pronofe,
and confult of the Ways, Manner and 'Vimns
and the Time and Place where, when, how, and
in what Manner our f{ud Sovercign Lord the
King, by lying in wait the more eafily you fhould
kill, and did confent, agree and affent, that forty
Horfemen or thereabouts, of you the fad Robert
Charwock, Edward King, and Thomnas Keyes, and
the fud other Tratiors unknown, and others by
them to be hired, procured and paid, with Guns,
Carbines and Piftols with Gun-powder and lead-
en Bullets charged, and with Swords and other
Arms armed, thould lie in Wait, and be in Am-
bufh, our faid Sovercign Lord the King in his
Coach being when he fhould go abroad, "to fet
upon, and that a certain and competent Num-
ber of thofe Men fo armed upon the Guards of
our {ud Sovereign Lord the King then and there
attending upon nim, and being with him, fhould
attack, 'md ﬂmuld oVercome 'md 1ubdue them,
whilft others of the faid Men fo armed our faid
Sovereign Lord the King fhould Affaflinace, Kill,;
Slhy and Murder: And allo that You the faid
Robert Charnock, Edward King, and Thowas Keyes,

your Treafons Il“]d tralremus Intentions, Defi 1o1s
and Contrivances aforefaid, to exccute, perpetrare,

fultil,




1695. 0. B.

fulfil, and fully to bring to Effect afterwards, to
wit, the Day and Year laft abovefaid at the Parith
aforefaid, divers Horfes,. and very many Arms,
Guns, Piftols, Swords, and other Weapons, Am-
munition, warlike Matters, and military Inftru-
ments, falfely, malicioufly, fecretly and traiterouf-
ly did obtain and buy, colleét and procure, and
caule to be bought, obtained, collefted and pro-
cured with that Intention, the fame In and
about the deteftable, horrid and execrable Affaffi-
nation, killing and murdering of our faid Sove-
reicn Lord the King as aforefaid, to be ufed, em-
ployed, and beftowed, againft the Duty of your Al-
Jegtance, and againit the Peace of our Sovereign
Lord the King that now is, his Crown and Dig-
nity, as allo againlt the Form of the Statutes in
fuch Cafes made and provided.

How fay you, Rebert Charnock, are you guilty
of the High Treafon whereof you ftand indicted,
or Nor Guilty ?

Charnack, My Lord, I defire, I may have a
Copy of this Indi&ment; that I may adwvife with
Council upon it before I piead.

* L.C. §. Pray, Mr. Charnock,
¥ §ir John Holt. will you foeak out, that we may
hear what you fay.

Charnock. My Lord, I find here 1sa very bad
Crime that is Jaid t my Charge; I defire that
I may have a Copy of the Indictment, to advifc
with Council upon.  And that I may have Coun-
cil to affiit inc in my Tryal, and to direct me,
who am an ignorant Man in thefe Matters, how
to manage myfclf according to the new At made
this Sefiions of Parliament, for regulating Tryals
in Cales of High Treafon.

L. C. 7. Have you not had Council already
to advife and dire@t you, Mr. Charnock ?

Char. My Lord, I had Notice on /7edncfdny
that I fhould be tried chis Day, and it was Satw-day
lalt before I could get my Council to come to nic.

L.C. 7. And what did your Council advife
you? Did they tcll you, you were to have a Co-
py of your Indictment, by Virtue of the late Act
of Parliament ?

Char. My Lord, tho’ the Act does not take |

Force as to fome Things til] the 2 5th of thisMonth,
yet the Equity of that A&, 1t beng now reduced
into a Law, is conceiv’d to reach to Cales of the
like Nature before the 25th, and [ delire the A&
may be read.

L.C. Y. You fhall have it read if you will,
but of what Avall or Benchit 1t will be to you 1
cannot tell; for you yourlelf wmke Notice that
it is an A& of Parlament made this Seflion, and
is not to take Effeét unul the 25th of this Month,
You now here {tand inditted before the 2 5th, and
for a Treafon comnutted before, and therefore you
can’t claim, nor have any Benefit or Advantage
by this A¢t; but you are to be procceded againft
according to the Law before, and the Practice
uled in all Proceedings againft other Perfons in
your Circumf{tances, And it is the known Practice
and received for Law, in all Times before this
new A& was made, That no Copy of an Indiét-
ment for High-Treafon fhould be granted, nor
Council afligned, or permitted to aflift the Prifo-
ner in making his Defence: Truae it is, a Copy of
the Indiétment has been often defired, but as true
that 1t has as often been denied. -

" Charn. My Lord, the Equity of this Ac (it be-
ing now an At of Parliament) 1s now in Force, as
much before the 25th of this Month as after.

- for High-Treafon.

.- §03

L. C. 7. Equity is nothing in thefe Cafes: You
are here tried by thé’Law, and we are bound to go
in all fuch Cales according to the Rules of Law,
and are not to be guided by any equitable Confi-
deration, further than the Law itfelf dozs allow us.

Char. But,%y Lord, the Ground of that A,
which 1s the Reafonablenes and Equity that all
Prifoners fthould be made capable of fairly defend-
g themielves, 1s now in Force, I fay : And T hope
your Lordfhip and the Court will look upon it to
be reafonable that I fhould have the Bencfit of
that Equity,

L. C. F. I tell you we are not here in a Court
of Equity, but muft proceed according to the
Rules of Law; and the Law you now fpeak of
doce not yet commence.,

Char. My Lord, I am informed, for Iam very
ignorant in thefe Matters myfelf, that there is no-
thing that I now defire which 1s contained in this
Act, but what was Law before the making of this
Act, tho the Praltice may have been otherwife.

L. C. 7. Then I muft tell you, Mr. Chariock,
you have been very much mifinformed; for if
all that 1s contained in this A& of Parliament
that you mention was Commcn Law belore, there
would have been no Oczcalion for the making 4
new Act of Parhament. .

Char. My Lord, I do not fay that all Things
in this A¢t of Parlament vwere Law before, be-
caufe there are fveral Things in it that have not
been Law before.  But, my Lord, there are fe-
veral Things befides; and particularly thofe two
Things which I now defire, a Copy of the Indict-
ment and Council to aflift me, were Things that
were agreeable to Law before; and I muft take
the Liberty to appeal to 2 Judge that I fee upon
the Bench, my Lord Chief Juftice Z7¢fy, as to his
own Opinion, and defire he wonid plaf: to de-
ciare, whether formerly in a Conference between
the Lords and the Commons he did not deliver
his Opinion, That it was the Common Law, that
a Prifoner fhould have a Copy of his IndiCtment,
and Council to affiit him.

L. C. F. Here is my Lord Chief Juitice Zrely,you
had bzt to apply yourfelf to him for his Opinion.

L. C. 7. Tiely, Pray, Sir, What 15 your Que-
ftion you would ask me?

Char. My Lord, 1 am here for my Life, and
muft take ail the Advantages that I can ; I am here
Arraigned for a very grievous Offence; 1 defire 1
may have a Copy of the Indittment, and Council
to affift me in my Defence, Hereisan Act of Par-
liament, out of the Equity of which Tapprehend,
I ought to have fome Advantage ; for I am inform-
ed that what I defire was Common Law before
the making of the Aét; and particularly that your
Lordfhip’s Opinton, in a Conference between the
two Houfes, was, that the Prifoner ought to have
thofe Advantages by the Common Law.

L.C.%. Treby. Then, Sir, T take your Queftion to
be this : You would have myOpinion to be declared,
That this Aé which was lately pafs’d for regula-
ting Trials in Cafes of High-Trealon, and all the
Particulars in that A&, were Common Law before.

Char. No, my Lord, I do not fay thatall the
Particulars in the A& were Common Law before,

L.C. F. Treby. Then pray, Sir, name your Parti-
colars, and T will endeavour to give you an Anfwer.

Char. My Lord, the Particulars that I do ask
are thefe, Firft, that I may have a Copy of the
Indictment, and Council to advife me, becaufe it

is a grievous Crime I fland here accufed of, and
- | thac
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that T may have them to affit me at my Trial
in Court : This I do infift upon from the Equity of
the A& of Parliament and your Lordfhip’s Opt-
nion at the Conference that it was Common Law
before. >

L.C, ¥ Trely. Astomy Opiniop about the hav-
ing a Copy or Council, T do not think or believe,
that I ever faid that it was Common Law.

Char. My Lotd, I beg your Pardon 5 1 was
informed your Lordfhip had delivered fuch an
Opinion, at a Conference between the Lords and
the Commons : But I defire the Affiftance of Coun-
cil, becaufe I myfelf am ignorant of the Law;
and particularly as to this Point, whether Iam
not intitled to the Equity of this Act of Parha-
ment; for it now having paf’d both Houfes of
Parliament, and had the Royal Aflent, 1t 15 a
cood Law; and though it be to take 1ts Com-
mencement on the 25th of this Month, yet that
which is the Law of all Laws, the Reafon and
Equity of it, is, and always will be, the fame.

L.C.f. No, Mr. Charnock, that does not fol-
low, that becaufe the Wildom of the Law-ma-
kers has thought it to be equitable dz futere, there-
fore it fhonld be Law now ; which, as I told you
before, is the Rule that we are to go by; 1tis
Equity and Juftice, that the Procecdings be ac-
cording to this At of Parliament, from and al-
ter the 25th of this Month s but it 15 not Juftice
that fuch Procecdings fhould be till then, becaule
not accoiding to Law.

Char. My Lord, the Ground of all Laws is
Equity 3 and certainly it cannot be Equity, that a
Priloner fhould malke his Defence againft an Accu-
fation in Writing, without having a Copy of it.

L. C. 7. The Time of the Court muft not be
‘{pent in this Manner; you have been already told,
that by Law you are not to have a Copy of the
Indittment; but you are to plead without having
any Copy; for there is no Law now in being thar
allows the giving of fuch a Copy, and ’us but a
fhort Queltion that you are asked n order to your
Trialy @iz, Are you Suillty, or Not Guilty ?

Char. My Lord, 1t is impoffible for me to go
to Trial prefently, and without the Affiftance of

my Council,
L. C. 7. Why, had you not Notice of your

Trial ?

Char. My Lord, Iconfefs I had Notice, upon
IWednefday lalt.

L. C. F. Had you not your Council with you

fince that?

"~ Char. Yes, my Lord, I had on Saturday lalt;
but from that Time I have not been able to pre-
pare mylelf, as I chink I ought; and I cannot
conceive but that I thould have the Affiftance of
fome Council to direct me in my Trial; for here
is 2 very great Crime, and heinous Charge laid
againft me in this IndiCtment, and 1 am very
ienorant 1n all Law Proceedings.

L. C. ¥. It is very reafonable that there thould
be conventent Notice given to all Perfons in your
Circum(tances; and truly this Day Seven-night, is
a very convenient Notice; efpecially you having
~ had, by your own Confeffion and Acknowledg-
ment, Council with you in the mean Time,

Char. But, my Lord, what is the Advantage
of having Notice, if one have not Privilege of
Pen, Ink and Paper, and one’s Council and
Friends coming to them, and Privacy, without the
Prefence of the Jaylor?

L.C. 7. What fay you that are of the King’s

Council ; Was there Council allow’d to come to

them ¢

Mr. Attoriey General. My Lord,
there was Order given, that their i Thomas
own Council that they defired fhould — Trever.
come to them,
~ Mr. Baker. My Lord, as foon as ever they de-
fired Council there was an Order for it, and left
with the Jatlor, that he fhould permit the Council
to come o them, and be with them in private,

L. C. J. Then tho’ you had not your Council
come to you il Saturday, it was your own Fault,
for you had an Order for Council as foon as you
defired it ; and even from Satuiday, is a reafonable
Time enough to prepare for anfwering the Que-
ftion, whether Guilty or Not Guilty.

Cbar, 1 fuppofe Mr. Balke is in Court, who gave
Notice on /#cdiefday, and Tacknowledge he came
upon the 72w fday, and asked if' I would have any
Body come to me; and he took then the Names
of the Council that I defired mizht come to me;
and told me he would carry them to My, Actor-
ney General, and fee what hisOpinion was of them:
I fuppofe he did fo: For upon Friley he came
again, and brought me an Order for it; but when
that Order was broughr, the Council that was
defired was not to be had, or at lealt with very
great Difheulty, becaufe it was the Time of the
Allizes, or very near 1t, and Council were gone or
going out of Town ; fo that we could not hive the
Advantage of the Order for Council,

L. C. 7. Look you, Sir, We think you have
had convenicnt Notice, with Liberty of confult-
Ing whom you had a mind to; if you have neg-
lected your Opportunity of confulting them, you
muft blame yourfelf, and no Body elfe; we mult
go on according to Law.

Mr. Att. Ger. My Lord, they had the Liberty
of naming their own Council, and the Names
were brought to me, and as foon as ever they
were {0 brought, thofe that were named had Leave
to go to the Prifon to them, and they had a fur-
ther Order than the firft, which was, that their
Friends fhould be permitted to come to them s
but that was not, as it was not convenient to be,
in private; but the other Order was, that the
Council fhould fpeak with them in private, and
not in the Prefnce of the Jailor.

L. C. 7. Pray hear what Mr. Attorney fays,
that your Council was ordered to be with you'in
private,

Char, But there was no Urder, my Lord, for my
Solicitor to be with me in the Abfence of the Jailor,
who is the only proper Perfon for the confulting
with, and for going about to fummon the Witneffes.

L. C. 7. We think you have had convenient
Notice, and all the Allowances that can be in
fuch a Cafe.  Ask him to plead.

Cl.of drr. Robeit Chariack, Are you guilty
of the High-Treafon whereof you ftand indifed,
or Not Guilty 2

Char. My Lord, I hope you will give me
fome more Tune to get my Witnefivs, that are
now abfent; feveral of them are ten Miles out of
Town; and therefore, I would beg your Lord.
flip to give me {fome Time,

L.C. 7. Why, is ten Miles fuch a Diftance,
that you could not have your Witneffes hetween
this Day feven-night and this Day ? but befides,
M. Chernock, what you now urge is out of Time,
you fpeak too foon to put off the Trial, for there
can be no Trial -ull 1fue joined 5 ard that can-
not be ull Plea pleaded, Char,
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Ch. My Lord, T was never inftruéted in Querks
of Law, nor bred up to the Law; and I hope
vour Lordfhips will take care that 1 be not hurt
for Want of Knowledge in the Forms of Law.

- for High-Treafon.

565
per, that']'may makethe beft Obfrvations I can,
fince I cannot have a Copy,

Cl.of Arr. Furatores pro Domino Rege fuper

L.C. ¥. Youmay aflure yourfelf, Mr. Charnock,  facrum fuuns prefentant quod Robertus Charnock, nu-
you fhall not be hurt by your Ignorancenthe Law, per ds Parochie Sanéti Clementis Dacorum, in Com.
All the Harm you will receive will be for having, prediflo, Generofus; Edwardus King, nuper de Pa-

done contrary to the Law, and: there 1s none of
your Council, ifthey have been faithful to you, but
muft tell you the fame Things we tell you now.

Char. My Lord, if T amrto-have no Council,
I muft defire-that the Court would be pleafed to
take the greater Care of me: For, as I have'been.
informed, that was the Reafon of the Pra&tice of
denying Council, that the Court fhould be of
Council for the Prifoner.

L.C. . Mr. Hardefty, ask him whether he be
quilty, or not guilty.

Cl. of Ar, Robert Charnock,. are you guilty, or
not guilty ?

Char.  Nat guilty,

Cl. of dr. Culprit, howwill you be try’d ?

Char. By God and my Country.

Cl. of Ar. God fend you a good Deliverance.

vochie Santli Clesentis Dacorum in Com. predicio,
Generafus 5 € Thomns Keyes, muper de Parochin San-
& Clementis Dacorun, in Cowi, predifio, Yeoman, t-
morem DEL in cordibus fuis non babentes, nec debi-
tuin Ligeancie fue ponderantes fed iuftigatione diabo-
lica moti &3 feduti, ut falfi Proditores contra fere~
uifimuns,. illufriffnin,  clementiffinum & excellen-
tiffimum Principens, Dostuniin Gulielmum  Tertiuns,
DE] Gratin duglie, Scotie, Framie, & Hibernie
Regem, Fidei Defenforem, Se, Supreinun, verum,
legitimum, legalem & indubitatum Dominum funm 5
cordiglems dilectignem, ac veram € debitams obedien-
Liains, fidelitaten €5 ligeanciam, quas quilibet fubdi-
tus dic?i Domini Regis nunc erga ipfuns Dominums
Kegem gereret, & de jure gerere tenetur, [fubtraben-
tes &3 penittis extinguere intendentes & machinantes,
$ totis fuis <viribus excogitantes, defignantes & con-

Lkeard King,. How fay you, Are you guilty of fpirantes, gubernationem bujus Regii Auglie fub ipfor

the High-Treafon whereof you fland indicted, or
not guilty ?

King, My Lord, 1 beg the fame Favour that
Mr. &barnock hasdone, that.Iimay have fome more
Tirie' to prepare: for my Trial,-and- 4 Copy. of the.
Indictment, and Council affigned.

L.C. . But'you hear what has been fatd to.
Mr. Charrock upon thofe Points; and the fame.
Rule that was given 1n his.Cafe; yoa muft expeét:
will.be in your Cafe;

Cl of 4. What fayyou, are you guilty or-not
aplty ?

King. Not guilty.

Cl.of Ar. Culprit, how wilt thou be try’d ?

Kirg. By God and my Country,

Cl of Ar., God: fend.thee a: good. Deliverance.
Thomas Keyes, are you.guilty. of the fame High-
Trealon, ornot guilty ¢

Keyes. My. Lord; T have had'no Council atall.

L. C.’f. But.you might have had if you would ;
you. had an Order for 1t aswell as the others:

Keyes, My Lord,. I wasa-Servant to Captain
Pyrter 1 was not able to fee any Councll.

. L.C. f. But you can tell whether you are
guilty, or not guilty.

CL.: of Ar. Art thou guilty, or not guilty.?

Keyes.  Not:guilty.

Cl. of: Ar. Culprit, How wilt thou be tried ?

. Kegys.. By God and my-Country.

Cl. of Ar. God fend thee a good Déliverance.

Charuneck. My Lord, I defire I-may-have the
Eavour of.Pzn; Ink and Paper, upon my Trial.

L.C. §. Yes; yes,-you fhall have it; and.if
you. have 2. Mind to 1t, you thall have the Indict-
ment read to.you in Latin,

Char. My Lord, oty Ignorance in Forms of Law
made nte not ask that before, becaufe I did notknow
whether I thould properly- ask 1c:or-not: And-l
do not know whether 1 fhould ask 1t properly now.

L.C.}. Yes, it is a-very propet time to'ask it;
and you fhall have it, if you havera mind to1t.

Char: My Lord, I do really defire sy 1f itbe
a-proper Timefor me o have-1t.

L. C. 7. Readthe Indictmént 1n Latin.

Char. And now; my-Lord, I'hope:your Lord-
{hip.will pleafe-thac 1 -fhall have Pen, Iak andPa-

Yoi, IV,

Domino Rege munc de jure feliciter & debite fabi-
litam omning: fibverscre, wiutare & alterare, Hec
nont eundein- Dominum Regem ad morten & finalem
defiructionem ponere &3 adducere 5 ac fubditos fuos fi=
deles, & liberos homines bujis Regni dnglie, in fer-
wituteir- fintolerabilem & mifervitiam Ludovico Regi-
Gallico fubjupare & mancipare dicirio Die’ Februiars,.
Ao Regi: didli Domini Regis mac feptimey €5 di-
verfis alits- diebus & vicibus tam antea quam poftea,
apud Parochiain prediiam in Com. predifio, falfa,
malitiofe, diabolice & proditovie eum fallaflaverunt,
maginali’ & mackinati fuernit, cxcogitaverunt, de-

Signeverunt- &8 intendebant dicinin Dominumn Regens

nunc occidere, intérficere &5 murdiare——. .

Char. What Word was that laft, Sir?

Clark of dr. Murdiare,

Char. ‘That 15 an odd Word, I can’t under-
ftand what it means.

L.C. . Itisa Term of Art, the Signification
of 1tis to murder : —~Goon, Mr, Hasdefty.

Cl ob Ar.  4c fragem miferabiln inter fideles

[ubditos spfius Doinini Regis per totum hoc Regni

Angla facere &8 canfare &9 eafdem wefondiffimas,
nequiffimias &5 disbolitas prodiiiones & proditorias ina-
chivationss, inlentiones &5 propofita fua predifia per-
implend”. perficiend® €5 ad effeitum reaigendum ipfi- is-
dem Robertus Charnock, Edwardus King, & Thomas
Keyes, & quam plurimi alii -falff proditores Furatori-
bus predifiis ignoti, pofieay feilicet codem decimo die Fe-
bruarit, Aunp fupra didlo, apud Parochias predidtanm,
in Comy’ preedicio, ac diverfts alits diebus £ victhus tam
antea quem poftéa, ibidem £ alibi in eodem Com. fal-
o, - tmalitiofe, advifate, clondefiine, franditorie ac
vi {5 arimis, &c. conveniebant, propofucrunt, tralia-
verurt; confultaverunt, confenfaverunt &5 agreea
verunt ad ipfum Dominuin Regem- ex infidiis & do-
lo pereutiend Anglice To Affaffinate, interficiend”
T mrdrand’ 3 5 ad esecrabilay borvendati &
actefiabilems - Affaffnationem; Anplice Aflafflination,
EF futerfedtionem - dllas citius exequend & perpe-
trand’ poflen feilicet - eifdem - die anno; & logo- ufti-
o mentionatis, proditorie-traliavérunt, propofueruns;
(5 confultivertint de-viis, wodés & mediis ac Hmpos
re & loco ubiy quando, qualiter, &S" quomodo-dichum
Dominum Regém- fic es infidiis faciling inlerfierenty
&G iconfenferunt agreeaverunt &S affenferunt - qhiod-qua-

4 C deagintd
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draginta homines Equefives, aut eo circiter de ipfsy
Roberto Chariock, Edwards King & Thome Keyes &
predifl aliis proditoribus ignotis ac aliis pir eos con-
ducend® procurand’ & impendend® cum bombardss, [clo-
2is & felopetis, pulvere bombardico & globulis plmbeis
oneratis, € cum gladiis enfibus € aliis armis aymatss
infidiati forent & -effent in fubfeffla, Anglice Am-
buth, ad eundem Dominum Regem in Rbede fua i An-
olice, his Coach, exifientem, quands foris iret -
vadend’ 5 quodg; quidam & conspetens numervs de
bominibus illis fic armatis in fotellites, Anglice the
Guards, igfius Domini Regis emn tune shidein at-
tendentes, €5 fecum exiffentes agrefli forent €5 eos
devincerent, &3 expugnavent, dum  ali  eorunden
poNiium ficarinalor i ipfuin Domintin Regem per-
culcrent, f'ifffiﬁfﬁrem, occiderent &3 murdrerent
&3 etiam itdem Robertus Chariock, Edverdus King
& Thomas Keyes ad prodiliones & ommes prodilo-
rias intentiones, defipnationes &8 machinationes fuas
pradicias excquend” porpetrend” perimplend &5 ple-
narie ad effe@uin redigend’ poffea, feilicet die & an-
wo nltimo [upra difiis, apud Parochiam prediilam,
diverfos ennos & quam plurime arina, boribardas,
[clopos, enfes & gladios, & alia armamenta -
wtiones € res bellicofas & inflruinenta militaria
falfe, sciitiofe,  fecrete & proditorie  oblmuerunt,
emebant, colligeruns &5 prociraversat ac emi, obhi-
icri, colligiy &5 procurari caufaverunt, ea inteitione
ad il in &3 civea deteflabilein, borrendamn &S exe-
crabilem. Afaffinationen, Interfefionem & Mur-
dewin difti dowiini Regis ut prafertur utend’, occu-
pend® &5 dmpendena® contre Ligeancie fue debituin,
&7 contra pacem dict Doin, Regis aune, Coroiati
&7 Diguitates [uas, nec o confre formam Statng

in bujufinodi Cafie edit’ & provif.

Char. My Lord, I defire the Indictment may.

be read agatn, for there is fo greata Noife In the
Court, and that Gentleman hath not the moft per-
fect Delivery ; he is more ufed to Law-Latm than
to any other. But I beg I may have it read again,
that I may as perfectly as I can underftand i,

The Indictment was read again in Laz.

L.C. 7. Look ye, v u that are the Prifoners,
every one of you has the Liberty to challenge 35 of
thofe that are returned to lerve upon the Jury
that is to try you, without fhewing any Caufe;
now if you will all joinin the fame Challenge,
then we can try you all together, as ye are all toge-
ther jointly in the IndiGtment; and fave the Time
and Trouble that will otherwife be umavordable.
But if you will not join in the fame Challenge, but
every Man challenge for himfelf, as by Law he has
Liberty to do, we muft be forced to try you fingle,
and therefore we would know of you, whether you
defign to join in your Challenge or not ¢

Char. My Lord, Ihope the Court will give me
Jeave to have my Sollicitor by me during my Ti-
al, that I may be inftrufled in fome meature how
to manage myfllf, and when 1t 1s proper for me
to fpeak, and what,

L.C.%¥. No, wecan order no fuch
wu mult {peak for yourlelt.

Char. My Lord, I am ignorant of the Methods of
Law, and may make a great many Miftakes and
Slips,and omit what may be material to be obferved
for my Defence,and therefore fhall the more need a
Friend or Sollicitor to be by me, to mind me of it,

L. C.¥. No, we cannot direct any luch Thing
by Law. What fay you as to your Challenges?

Char.- As to the Jury, I had not a Copy of the
Pannel .till Yefterday, and I have been miorined,

Thing,

that it is ufual to' have a Copy of the Pannel ten
Days before the Trial ;- they are Gentlemen that
Y have no Knowledge of, nor cary come at any Ac-;
count of their Qualifications, fo as to make pro-
per Challenges.

L. C. 7. You have the fame Privilege that i
ordinarily given to Perfons in your Condition.

Mr: A, Gen, There was Order given for 2
Copy of the Pannel to be delivered.

L.C.F. That was not of Right, but of Fa-
vour; and 1t is a Pra&ice that has of late ob-
tained 3 but for what you talk of ten Days, thac
never was in- any Cafe, nor is it practicable
you have the fame Favour fhewn you, that all
other Prifoners have, and you can expect no more :
But you do not anfwer the Queftion, whether you
wil join 1 vour Challenges or not ?

Char. Tt 15 an mditferent Thing to me, my Lord,

L. C. 7. Doyonagree to it, Mr. King ?

King, My Lord, I do not well underftand i,
I'am ready to do any Thing I fhould.

L. C. ¥ What fay you, Keyes?

Keves, My Lord, I have had no Council at
all, to advife me about any Thine,

L.C. 7. I tel you what the Law is in fuch
Cafes; You wmay every Man of you challenge 35
peremptorily without Caufe, but if you do not
all agree in the fame Challenges, ye cannot be
tried together by the fame Jury: But the Court
muft feparate you, and try you every one fingle.

Char. My Lord, I have got a Copy of the
Pannel, if thefe Gentlemen that are by me do
agree tojoin in the Challenge, T am very well con-
tent 3 1t 1s indifferent to me.

L.C. . Do you underftand what 1s faid to
you, Mr. King, and Mr. Keyes 2 Every one of you
may, without thewing any Caufe, exceptagainil 35
of thole that are returned of the Jury which are
to try you, If you have no mind that thofe fhould
be fworn ; but then it each of you do feverally
challenge 35, ye cannot be tried by the fame Jury.,
. Char. I hope, my Lord, 1f I do challenge, as I do’
not know how I fhall be enabled without knowing
thetr Qualifications, the Court will put me in mind
when I come near the Number, that my challeng-
ing may not Injure me; becaufe [ am ignorant in
the Law, and perhaps may flip in point of Number;
and therefore, 1 would beg that your Lordfhips
would allow me a Sollicitor to affift me, and put
me in Mind, that I may not run into Errors,

L.C. 7. You have been told over and over,
that we cannot do that; the Court will take care
that you be informed in Time, that you do not
exceed in chailenging a greater Number than you
ought: What fay you, Mr, King? Do you agree
that one fhali make Challenges for you all ?

King. 1 do agree, that whatfoever Exception
Mr. Charnsck makes, I will abide by.

Char. My Lord, I cannot but think it hard,
that I have not either Council or Sollicitor ; my
Council that I had arc out of Town,

L. C. 7. Why, was there no Council but thofe
that are gone the Circuic?

Mr, 4t Gen. My Lord, he had Order firft
for one Council, and then for another, and whom-
foever he named he had Order for.

L.C. 7, If you will chufe none but thofe you
cannot have, that is your own Fault; You, Mr.
Keyes, will you join in the Challenge ?

Keyes,  Yes, with all my Heart,

Cl.of Ar. 'Then you the Prifoners at the Bar,

thofe
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thofe Men that you fhall hear called and perfo-
nally appear, are to pafs between our Sovereign
Lord the King, and you, upon Trial of your fe-
veral Lives and Deaths: If therefore you, or any
of you, will challenge them, or any of them,
your Time is to fpeak unto them as they come to
the Book to be fworn, and before they be {worn.
Then thole of the Pannel that had appeared
were called, and the Prifoners challeng’d 33,
And the Names of thole that were fivorn
are as follow.,

Saiel Farwer, |\t Siinon Shith,

Fonas Morly, | | Thoinas Dunck,
Aathony Nurfe, Richard Heath,
Fefper Hodgsden, | | Fobn MEls,

William Fasnborongh, V| Fames Ketwich, and
William Bird, - || Chriftopher Redknap.

Then Proclamation for Information, and the
Witnefles appearing, was made m ufual Form.

Cl. of Ar. Rokert Charnock, Flold up thy Hand,
(Which be dia) : Edwerd King, Hold up thy
Hand, (IWbich be did): Thomas Keyes, Hold up
thy Hand, (#7bich be did): You Gentlemen of
the Jury, look upon the Prifonzrs, and hearken to
their Caufe; They fland indicted by the Names
of, &c. (prowt 1 the Indiltment, mutatis mutan-
dii) —— And aganlt the Form of the Statutes
1 that Cafe made and provided. Upon this In-
di¢tment they have been Arraigned, and there-
unto have feverally pleaded, Not Guilty, and for
their Trial have put themielves upon God and
thewr Country, which County you are: Your
Charge is to enquire of them, and every of them,
whether they be guilty of the High-Treafon
whereof they {tand indicted, in Manner and Form
as they ftand indicted, or Not Guilty; it you find
them or any of them Guilty, you are to enquire
what Goods or Chattels, Lands or Tenements
they had, at the Time of the High-Treafon com-
mitted, or at any Time fince. It you find them,
or any of them, Not Guilty, you are fo inquire
whether they fled for i1ty 1f you find that they, or
any of them, Hed tor Ir, you are 1o inquire of their
Goods and Chattels, as if you had found them
Gulty 5 if you ind them Not Guilty, nor that
they did fly for 1t, you are to fay fo, and no more ;
and hear your Evidence,

Mi. Mowitague, My it pleafe your Lordfhip,
and you Gentlemen of this Jury; The Record
that has been now rcad unto you, 1s an Indiét-
ment of High-Treafon, which charges the Three
Prifoners at the Bar, Robert Charisck, Edward
King, and Twomas Keyes, with a Tratterous Con-
ipiracy, and Defian to fobvere the Government of
this Kingdom, and to murder the King, and to
bring the Subjelts and Freemen of this Kingdom
into Slavery and Subjection to the French King
and to this End the Indiftment fets forth; That
upon the Tenth of Felinary 1aft, and diverle other
Tines, as well before as after, at the Panfh of
St. Cleients Daies, n the County of Aliddlefex,
thefe three Prifoners at the Bar, with diverfe other
Traytors unknewn, did Confult and Agree, 1o
Aflaffinate the Perfon of our Sovereign Lord the
King, as he was riding in his Coach; and did
likewile agree, that Forty Horfemen, of which
they themielves were to be part of the Number,
fhould lie in Ambuth, and fet upon the King,
{o being in his Coach, amd upon the Guards
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that were to attend him : And it likewife charges
them with buying Horfes and Arms, for the
Execution of this Wicked and Villainous Inten-
tion: To this Ellﬁy have plﬁ&ded Not gu]lty
We fhall call our Witnefles, and prove this Matter
upon them ; and then we doubt not, but you, Gen-
tlemen, will do Juftice according to your Evidence.

Mr, A, Gen, My Lord, and yon Gentlemen of
the Jury, thefe Gentlemen at the Bar ftand indi&-
ed for a moft Horrid and Barbarous Confpiracy, to
Aflaflinate and Murder his Majefty’s Royal Perfon :
Gentlemen, this Affaflination was to be feconded
with an Invalion from France, where Troops lay
ready at Caluis, as foon as the difmal Stroke was
given, to have landed upon our Coafts; which if
it had taken Effect we had not only fuffered that
moft unfpeakable Lofs of the King, but it would
have made an End of all our Liberties and Laws
at once,

Gentlemen, This Offence in its Nature, is {0
Horrid and Barbarous, that as it needs no Aggra-
vation, fo it is incapable of having any, by any
Words that can be ufed ; for the very Naming
of an Aflaffination of a King, carrics fuich Hor-
rot and Deteftation i its felf, to all honeft Peo-
ple, that 1t is 1mpoflible to aggravate it by any
Expreflions that can be uled about ir.  But there
1s this peculiar Confideration to be had, by all
Engliffancit, who love their Country, that this
defigned Affaflimation upon the Perfon of His
Prefent Majelty, was to take away the Life of a
King, who every Body knows firlt ventured his
own Life, to reftore our Religion, Laws and Li-
berties, when they were Juilt expiring under the
Oppreflion of Popery and Tyranny. And as he
ventured his Life firlt to reftore ’em, fo he has
fince, upon al] Occafions, with the utmoft Hazard,
expofed his Royal Perfon to the moft imminent
Dangers, for the preferving and maintaining our
Religion, Laws and Liberties, againft the Pow-
er and Violence of the common Enemy: This
Conlideration to all true Ewglifomen muft have
a very great Welght, and create the greateft Hor-
ror and Deteftation, both of the barbarous Dz-
fign, and of all thofe who had any Concern or Hand
m it, to attempt upon the Life, not only of a
King, but of fuch a King,

Gentlemen, when you hear the Evidence that
we {hall offer to you, to prove this bleody Con-
Ipiracy againit thefe Prifoners, I doubt not but
that there will be enough, and more than enough,
to fatisfy all true-heated Englih Subjects, and
alf People that have a Delire to preferve our Con-
ftitution and Government, in what Danger we
and our Pofterity were of being utterly ruined,
and involved in a common Deftruction, I {hall
not detain you longer with any Difcoure about
the Heinoufnefs of this Offence, becavle every
Man’s own Thoughts cannot but fuggeft to him,
how difmal the Confequences muit have been, if
{o fatal a Stroke had been given.

But, Gentlemen, I muft crave leave to take up
fo much of your Time as to open how this bloody
exccrable Confpiracy was firft framed, and after-
wards carried on by the Prifoners at the Bar, to
gether with others, till it was very near putting in

'Execution, had not the infinite Mercy of God

prevented it, by a timely Difcovery.

Gentlemen, this Confpiracy was firlt framed
and confulted upon the laft Year; there were fe-
veral Confultations and Meetings, at feveral Pla-
ces about the Town, for this Purpofe; then and
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at thofe Confultations and Meetings, there were
prefent Capt. Porter, the Prifoners, and others of
whom you will have an Account from the Wit-
neffes3 and at that Time they had an Expecta-
tion of Comniiffions from the late King, toautho-
tize the Defign that not coming, they yet refol-
ved to put it in Execution before the King went
away. But becaufe the French Troops were then
not in a Readinefs to come over hither, to protect

them, after the Execution of the bloody Defign, 1t-

was neceflary for them to fly thither for Shelter ;
and therefore they endeavoured to procure a Vel-
fel to be ready to carry them over to Fraice, But
they could not get a Veflel time enough ; and then
the King’s going over into Flanders quickly after,
prevented the Execution of the Defign for that
Time, and fo Matters refted till the King’s Return.

About two or three Months ago, Sir Geerge
Barcley, who is an Officer in the late King Faines’s

Guards in France ; and fome other Officers, with*

Sixteen or Eighteen Troopers in thofe Guards,
privately came over from Fiaice to put this Defign
in Execution 3 and he did acquaint Mr. Porter
and Mr, Charnock with the Dzfign, knowing that
they had been engaged in the Matter before, and
fo could not butexpect that they would readily
affift.  This Defign was treated and confulted of
petween them at feveral Times, and in feveral
Places, at Captain Porter’s, and Mr. Charnock’s
Lodeings i Nerfolk-flveet 3 at the Glabe Tavern
in Hatton-Garden, the Nags-heed Tavern at St.
Faes's, and feveral other Places; feveral Con-
fultations and Meetings were had between the
Prifoners at the Bar, and others, whom you will
hear named at thefe Meetings; feveral Ways and
Methods were propofed, how 1t fhould be beft
effeted ; 1t was propofed by fome, that it thould
be done by Ambulfcafe, that fhould be laid near
the King’s Houle at Richmond, fuch a Number on
Foot were t0 lie in the Wood, there ready to
attack the King as he came by, and the reft of
the Confpirators at the fame Time to fall on the
Guards. But this Method was not fo well appro-
ved of, as that whici was afterwards propofed
and agreed to: That is, there were to be thice
Parties of them, and the Place was the Lane,
lying between Srentford and Turnbom-Grecir, at the
End next Twrnbain-Grees, which the King ufed to
pafs thro’, upon his Return from Richmond: The
Order and Method of the Defign was this; Sir
George Barc’y, with Eight or Ten more, was to
attack the Coach, and by firing into it, to have
killed the King, and all in it, and the reft were
to attack the Guards, in two Parttes, on cach
Side of the Lane, whereof Mr. Charneck and Por-
ter were to command one, and Brigadier Rookwood
the other. In order to fee how feafible this Defign
might be, the Prifoner King, Capt. Porter, and
Knightly, were to go and furvey the Place; and
the next Day after that Confultation, they went
to view the Ground, and did very carefully do 1t,
both on this Side the Water, and on the other
Sid the Water; and they came back and met the
reft of the Company at the Nagg’s-Head Tavern
late at Night, to give an Account what they had
done in order to this Enterprize. [t wasagreed the
Number fhould be about Forty; Sir George Bare-
Joy was to make up about Twenty, Mr. Charnock
was to furnifh Eight, Capt. Porter Seven, and fo
in other Proportions, in all to make up the Num-
ber of Fortys which they thought were enough
to cffect and accomplifth the Defign,

In order to make this Matter the more fure,
they did appoint Two to lodge and wait ac
Kenfngton, vear the Guards; who were to give
Notice, when the King went abroad : And they
had their feveral Perfons affigned to whom they
fhould give Notice, who thercupon were to fend
Orders to the feveral Parties; one of which was
Chambers, who was to give Notice to the Prifo-
ner at the Bar Mr. Charnock, and there was one
Durance, who was to give Notice to Sir George
Bareleyy and when fuch Notice was given, then
they were to fend Orders to the feveral Perfons,
who were to be concerned in this bloody Balinefs,
to come at the Time appointed, to be difpofed of
into their feveral Polls.

Gentlemen, In order to the furthering of this
Defign, they did likewife fend Durance to go and
view, and give them an Account of the moit
convenient Inns at Brentford, and Turubam-Green,
and the Places adjacent; which were leaft lable
to Oblervation, where the Men might be the
moft conveniently difpofed of, to lic ready againft
the Time, when they were to execute this bar-
barous Affaflination ; accordingly he went, aid
took an Account of the feveral Inns within that
Compafs, and they were to be billetted by Two
or Three in an Inn, fo as not to be oblerved s
Stir George Barckey and his Party at Turnbam-Green,
and the reft at Brentford.

Gentlemen, after they had thus laid the Delign,
Saturday the 15th of Felruary was the firlt Tune
pitched upon for the putting it in Execution, if
the King went abroad, as he ufed to do, upon
Saturdays, 1o Richmond to hunt; and if they had
Notice from Duiance and Chawmbers, that he was
fo to do, which Notice they had ; and every Thing
was prepared in order to have perpetrated this
villainous Defign ; but it happened that the King
went not abroad that Day, of which they had
Notice about Noon from Chambers to Chaiioeck,
and Charuock fent Word o to Porter’s Lodgings,
and then the Order for their getting together was
countermanded, and the Note, by which Chai-
nock fent Word, was {ubferibed with the Name of
Rabinfon ; which you will hear 1s a Name he goes
by, as well as by that of Charna:t.

Thus they were dilappointed at that Time, but
they were not difcouraged from purluing this m-
human Enterprize; but refolved to go on the
next Opportunity that thouid be given. And to
omit feveral Things that intervered, which the
Witnefles will give you an Account of, on the
Fiiday following they mer again, to have every
Thing ready againtt the next Day, which was
Satnrday the 22d of February; when they expelted
the King would go abroad, as he ufually did on
that Day of the Week 5 and that Meeting was at
the Su# Tavern in the Strand, and there were pre-
fent Capt. Porter, Sir William Perkins, Siv George
Barcley and Mr. Charnock 5 and at that Time there
was a Difcourfe amongft them about the Difap-
pointment, which they had had the Week before,
and fome of them had a Jealoufy that a Difcovery
had been made of their Defign: Bur then, upon
further Confideration, They concluded, If it
had been {o, they fhould not have met there,
but fhould have been taken up: And theretore
they concluded the King’s ftaying "at Home
that Day was but Accidental, and fo refolved
to put their Confpiracy in Execution the next
Day. |

While they were there, feveral Perfons for

whom
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whom Capt. Porter had undeitaken, that is, one
Cranborne, Kenrick, and Keyes the Prifoner at the
Bar, came to. Porter; thele were cartied into ano-
ther Room, and commanded 2ll to be ready the
next Day, wien 1t was refolved to put the Al
fffination in Execution: And then Capt. Porter
acked Kenrick for Sherbirne, who 1t feems had
been undertaken fory but it was anfwered, That
he asked fo many Queftions about the Matter,
that he did not think fit to truft him.

The next Morning they met again at Captan
Porter’s Lodgings; and there met, as the Wit
nefls will tell you, amongft others, Mr. Peider-
orafs, Mr. Keyes, and Mr. King ; King brought a
Meffage to Capt. Porter from Sir George Barcley,
to know the Names of thofe that were concerned,
and upon that Meffage Capt. Porter writ down
the Names of his Men, who were for his Qusta,
and fent the Litt by Cranborne to Mr, Charnock,

to add his Lift to it of the Men he was to have -

under him s Cranboine afterwards came back, and
brought the Litt that Capt. Perter fent, with the
additional Lift fent by Mr, Charnock, wiitten
with his own Hand, and fubferibed R. C. and
Craiborne told them that Chambers had fent Word,
that the King would go out that Morning: At
the Hearing ot which there was much Joy amongft
them ; for they hoped then their wicked Defign
would be put in Execution that Day. There was a
Difcourfe then likewife, that Porter had a Plece
which carried Six Bullets; and this, 1t was or-
dered, fhould be put into the Hands of Pender-
grafs, who was to be one of Sir Gesrge Barcley’s
Men, to attack and fire into the King’s Coach.

This was upon Safurdyy the 22d of February,
when they had News that the King was to go
abroad, and every Thing was to be put in Exe-
cution at *his Return from Richmond, From Cap-
tain Porter’s Lodgings they went to the Blue Pofts
in Spriny Gardeny but about 12 o’Clock there
came News from Chambers, one of the orderly
Men at Kenfington, that the King did not go
abroad that Day: This put them into a very
areat Confufion 3 they then thought fome Difco-
very muft needs be made becaule of the Difap-
pointment two Sa/wydays together; and Keyes,
the Prifoner at the Bar, came up and told them,
that the Guards were all come back 1a a Foam,
and the King’s Coaches were brought back to the
Menfe: And this confirmed them in their former
Jealoufy that the Matter was difcovered ; upon
which Captain Porter, Mr, Pendergrafs and M,
Keyes went together to lic hid fome Time; but
they faid they would fend Keyes to Mr, Chesack,
to let him know where they might be heard of;
and if the Matter was not difcovered, they would
ftill go on to put it in Execution: But they could
not part without drinking fome Traiterous
Healths, which the Witnefles will tell you of,
to the Reftoring of the late King and his Queen,
and the Prince of #ules; and after all, one of
the Company taking an Orange in his Hand, be-
gan 2 Health to the Squeezing of the Rotten
Orange ; and in this Manner it was drunk by all
of them before they parted, tho’ they were under
the Apprehenfion at that Time of being difcover-
ed already.

This is the Beginning and Progrefs of the fe-
veral Confultations that were had-for the Carry-
ing on this execrable Traitcrous Confpiracy, 1
have opened it fhortly to you, but you will hear
it much fuller m its feveral Parts by the Witnel-
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fes, By what I have opened, you cannot but ob-
ferve, that 1t was very nedr coming to be execus
teci], if there had not been a Difcovery of it
Time enough, thro’ the Providence of Almighty
God, to prevent it, ‘They had agreed, after the
intended Affaflination, to keep together; till they
came near the Town, and then they were to lie
hid tll the French Troops landed, which they
were affured of were ready upon the leaft Intima-
tion of the Succefs of this Confpiracy.

Gentlemen, every Body may guefs at the difs
imal Confequences that would have follow’d, had
this bloody Defign taken Effect ; and I am fure, as
we and our Pofterity could not have expected any
Thing lefs than the peipetual Yoke and Burden
of Slavery and Popery, if it had pleafed God to
permit this Confpiracy to take Effe¢t; fo I hope
we fhall always remember the merciful Hand of
Providence, that has detefted and difappointed it.

Gentlemen, I fhall not detain you any longer ;
I have opened unto you Part of that which will
more fully be made out by the Witneffes; only
I would obferve, that the Providence of God hes
not only made a Dilcovery to prevent the Execu-
tion of this abominable Villainy, but hath brought
this Confpiracy fo far to light, by fuch unque-
ftionable Teftimony, that no Man can doubt of
the Reality of it, which I hope will raife in éve-
ry honeft Man’s Mind an Abhorrence and Dete~
ftation of thofe Principles, upon which fo vil-
lainous and barbarous a Defign was founded ; and
I think I may fay, that after the Evidence you
will hear this Day, no one will pretend any Doubt
of the Truth thereof, but either fuch as are forry
for the Difcovery, or fuch as knew too much of the
Confpiracy before. I fhall trouble you no further,
but call our Witnefles, who will give you a clear
and full Account of this Confpiracy. Swear Capt.
Porter, (7 hich was dowe,)

Mr, Sof. Gen, Captain Porter,
I would not lead you with any
Quettion, but pray will you give the Court and the
Jury an Account what you know concerning any
Confpiracy about affaffinating the King, and
when it was to be done, and where, and how, and
by whom; and particularly what relates as to
that Matter to the Prifoners at the Bar.

Char. My Lord, there are two Things that I
muft beg of the Court, in Relation to the Wit-
nefles that are to be produced and the Evidence
that is to be given againft me at this Time: And
the firft 15, That before any of the Witnefles give
any Evidence againft me, the reft that are to be
fivorn and produced, may be kept out of Court,
till they that are called have feverally given their
Evidence, that one may not hear what the other
fays; That I fuppofe i1s but reafonable in a2 Cafe
of this Nature, and what was never denied, but
always allow’d, as I have been informed.

L.C. 7. There 15 but one Witnefs fworn,
and I believe, that there are none of the reft
here.

Char. Yes, my Lord, here i1s one Gentleman
in Court whom I fuppofe to be an Evidence, and
that 1s Mr. Dz la Rue,

L. C. F. If there be any others of the Wit-
nefles, ler them withdraw till they be called for ;
Jet there be fome Body to look after them and
attend them.,  (Which was accordingly done. )

L. C.¥. Mr. Charnock, you have your Defire
as to this Matter, all the reft of the Witnefles are

withdrawn.
Char,

Sit Fobn Haales,
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Char. My Lord, there is another Thii}g that
I have to beg of the Couit, and that is, n rela-
tion to the Evidence in general, That if there be
any Thing prov’d to be {poken in Company, and
talked of by Way of common Difcourfe, or only
in Jollity in ordinary Converfation, that may not
be interpreted as a Proof of any fettled Defign
or Praclice,

L. C. ¥. Look you, Mr. Charnock, who can
tell what the Evidence will be until it be given ?
you will hear what is depofed by the Witnefies,
and you have Pen and Tnk, and may make fuch
Obfervations as you think fit: When the Wit-
nefles are heard, you will haveall the Advantage
that can be allowed you, and you may then pro-
pofe your Objections to the Matter of their Evi-
dence ; which, no doubt, will have their juft
Weight with the Court : In the mean time, have
you any Exception to this Man’s being a Wit-
nefs ? If you have no Exception againlt him, then
he muft give his Evidence ; and after he has de-
liver’d himfelf, and the King’s Council have done
with him, you are at Liberty to ask lum what
Queftions you think fit.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Captain Porter, 1 defire you wil
acquaint the Court and the Jury what you know
of any Conlpiracy to take away the Life of his
Majelty, when it began, in what Manner it was
carried on, how far 1t proceeded, how it came to
be difappointed, who were concerned init, and what
relates to the Prifoners at the Bar, as to their
Share therein,

Capt, Porter. My Lord, Iam unfortunately in-
aaged In this Matter, and have made a frank Dif-
covery, to make the King all the Atonement I
can, for having been concerned in fuch a Defign,
Some Weeks before this Confpiracy for Affaffi-
nating the King was in Hand, there came to my
Lodging

. Mr, At Gen, Captam Portery T would not in-
terrupt you, but to put it into 2 Method, and Or-
der of Time, will you pleafe to recollect your flf,
and give the Court and the Jury an Account of
your Knowledge about ' 2 hrft Beginning of this
Confpiracy the Jaft Year ; I would not lead you,
and thercfore I ask you the general, and no par-
ticular Queltion.

Char. My Lord, I fuppofe that any Queflion
about what was done the Iaft Year is not atall to
the Purpole in this Cafe, for there is norhing men-
tion’d in the Indictment of the laft Year.

L.C. ¥. Itisin tle Indiétment diverfe Days
and Times, as well before as atter,

Char. The Crume for which we are accufed 1s
Jaid to be the 10th Day of Fevrnaiy, 2695,

L. C. ¥. The Day 1s not material, but only a
Circum{lance, butin Form, fome Day before the
Indictment preferred, muft belaid 3 and tho’ the
Duy mentioned in the Indictment is the 1oth of.
Febiuary, yet it 1s alo fud, that the Things con-
tained in the Indiétment, of which you are accu-
fed, were done hikewife at diverfe Daysand Times,
as well before as after, and fo the Indiétment
comprehends even what might be done the laft
Year as well as this.

Char. 1 beg the Favour of the Court in this
Matter, for fure the 1oth of February laft can no
way be fuppofed to be in the laft Year,

L. C. 7. 1 told you before, the Day 1s not ma-
terial, nor are the Witnefles nor the King’s Coun-
cil tyed up either to the particular Time or Place
mention’d In the Indi€tment, {o 1t be within the

County; and before ‘the Indictment preferred,
All that 15 to be regarded is, that no Evidence
be gtven or admitted of any other Species of T'rea-
fon, but what 15 contained in the Indi€tment ;
for a Man may certanly be indicled for 2 Trea-
fon committed this Year, and upon his Trial Evi-
dence may be given of the fame Treafon com-
mitted the Year before, ’

Char. But then how cana Man prepare for
tus Defence ?

My, Art.Gen. The Time is but 2 Circumftance,
it may certainly be proved at another Day than
what 15 Jud in the Indictment, and yet very good
Proof ; and fo it 1s 1 all other Cafes, as well Ci-
vil as Criminal.

Char.  Mr. Attorney General has faid enough
I think to confute himielf 5 for if one Year may
be por n the Inditment, and nother Year
brought in in the Evidence, how fhail any Man
be able to apply himflf to his Defence, whofe
Thoughts run only upon the Time faid in the In-
dictment ? I hope neither the Court nor the King’s
Council will come fo hard upon us, as to put our
Thoughts quite out of all Order, that when we
apprehend we are only to defend onrflves againft
what 1s faud to be done this Year, we mull afrefh
prepare ourfelves to anfwer what was done the
laft Year.

L.C. 7. Itisalways fo; for Form Suke, there
35 a particular Time laid in the Indictiment, but
the Proof 1s not to be tyed up to that Time; buc
if 1t be proved at any Time before or after, 1o it
be before the Indiftment preferred, it is well
enough : And not without great Reafon, for the
Treafon confifting in imagining and compafling
the King’s Death, which may be manifefted by
diverfe Overt Acts, fome before, fome on, and
others fince, the Tenth of Febinary, yet they are
Eyidences of one Treafon, which is the Compaf-
fing the King’s Death,

Chor. Then we may be under an Obligation to
give an Account of all the Tranfactions of our
Lives, 1f that be the Rule.

L. C. . No, not fo neither, for that very Trea-
fon alligned  the Indictment mult be proved,
and therefore you are only to give an Anfwer to
that, and nothmng clfc.

Char. But, my Lord, it may givea very great
Loofe, and much hinder our Defence; for asit is
now delired that Proof may be given, of what was
done laft Year, at the fame Rate, they [as well
before and after] may fignify feven Years ago.

L. C. 7. Andfo it may if your Confpiracy
reach’d fo far, or did then begin, amd was after-
wards purfued ; this is not any Thing that is un-
ufual, but the Common Law is plain init. Well,
what fay you, Mr., Porter?

Capt, Porter. My Lord, Iwill give you an Ac-
count, if your Lordfhip pleafeth, of what was
done this Year? and if any Queftions aferwards
be thought fit by the King’s Council to be now
asked me, about what pailed before, { wiil an-
fwer them very readily.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Well then go on your own way,
we will referve omfelves till atterwards.

Capt. Porier, Some Wecks before this Defign
was on Foot, for afluflinating the Xing, Sir Walian
Perkiits when he was in Town, was at the fame
Place where My, Chariock and I did lodge ; it was
about the lfatter End of Fanvary: He asked My,
Charnock where he would be at Night; and | told
them, 1If they were not about private Bufinefs, [
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would meet them. He told me, there were fome
Friends come from France, and that fomething
was 4 doing that would be for the Service of the
King: I told them, if any Thing of that Na-
ture was a doing, I would readily engage m 1t;
and they told me I fhould know it very foon.
A little after I fell fick of the Gout, and could
not ftir from my Chamber: But then Mr, Char-
wck did acquaint me, that Sir George Barcley, and
thofe that came from Fyance, had brought a Com-
mifiion to raife and levy War upon the Perfon of
King Willim; and he asked me how many I
could bring to join with them, if the King land-
ed; I defired to confider of it, and he told me
Sit Gearge Barcky would come to him about It,
Accordingly, he and Holwes came to the Houle
where we lodged, in Norfolkflreet, and there
they were in private with Mr. Charnock 3 and af-
terwards, becaufe T was lame, and could not ftir,
they came into my Room, and Sir George Barcley
rold me, he was glad to fee me in good Health,
but forry to find me Jame, but he hoped to e
me abread in a lietle Times and I told him, I
hopued fo teo.  They faid, they were golng then
to Jome Company, and they hoped to fee me af-
terwards.  After that there were feveral Meet-
ings that we had, particularly at the Glbe a-
oo 0 Hutton-Garden, the Negos-Head at St.
Feiesfirect, and the Sun-Tavern in the Strand,
snd Iy all thefe Places we did confult together,
walch was the bett Wavy, and where was the beft
Place to aflaffinate the King, when he came from
Hunting.  Sir Gearge Barcley told us he had fome
Money to-buy Hortes, but not much, he bad as
much as would furnifh about Forty. Capt. Coar-
neck faid, he would bring fix or feven Men, that
fhould comie ont of the Country, Siv W7iliam Per-
Fins faid he would lend five Horfes, there to be
mounted by Men of his own, the other two by
fuch as {hould be provided. 1 promikd to bring
ieven Men with Horfes, and Sir Gearge Barcley
inid, that Lswiek and others that came over with
him from Fiaice, would engage in the Defign,
and make up the Number, I defired very much
to ke the Commiflion that came from the late
King, and asked Mr. Charnock about 1ty he fud
he never faw 1t, but Sir 277lliain Perkins told me,
he had feen 1, and that it was all writ with
King fairzs his own Hand, and figned by him-
felf.  All this wasagreed to, and then there were
Confultztions in what Method 1t was to be done.
Several Propofals there were; one was to fet upon
him as he cume fiom Richinmoud by the Road,
others when he was on Horfe-back at Cue,  Sir
Gesige Barcly was for having it done by Ambuf-
cade in the Park by Richiiond, and therefore
defired me to go with Mr, Kuightly, and view the
feveral Places and Ground thereabouts, to find
at which was the moit convenlent Place. The
Day before we were to go, Capt. King came to
me, and would know 1t we were to go about
fich a Matter, and proffered to go with us, I toid
him I had never a Horfe, but he faid, he would
cet one. e weni that Night to the Swan ac
Krights-bridge, and there we lay, and went the
next Day to view the Ground, and came the
next Evening to the Company, to give an Ac-
count what we had done; and upon the Ac-
count that we gave, Sir Gesrge Brrcky’s Mind
was altered, and it was agreed to do it in the
Lone coming from Breulford to Turvbans Green,
and the particular Manner was agreed on too.
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There was one Rookwood that was to command
one Party of Sir George Barcley’s Men, to attack
the Guard ; he told us, he had bought twenty
Horfes which were to be employed.in this Ex-
pedition ; they were to be divided in three Par-
ties, and Sir Grorge Barcley was to have four out
of each of the other Parties, and to feize upon
the King’s Coach, and to fhoot into 1t, and kill
the King, and all thofe that were with him:
And this was to be done on the 15th of Feiru-
ary, which was a Saturday, and the King ufually
went to Richiwond on Saturdays. We had two or-
derly Men (as they were called) who were to-
lie at Kenfiugton; to give Intelligence when the
King and the Guards went out, the one was
Chambers, and the other one Darart, a Flemming,
I think, or1 do not well know what Country-man-
he was; and Durant was to bring an Account
when the Guard went out, and Chambers when
the King went out, and when we had Notice
that the King was gone, we were to go by three or-
four in a Party to prevent Sufpicion, and we were
o be difperfed in the feveral Juns about Bremt-

ford and Twrnbam Green.  Sir George Bareley was

to be at the King of Bobemia’s Head ; and we
ordered. a Man to give Notice to him when the
King landed, and then he was to give Notice to
us, and fo we were to form our felves into our
{everal Bodies, to take our feveral Pofts as were
agreed upon. I asked him, what he thought to
do when the Matter was over, how we fhould
difpole of our felves? He told me, we need not.
fear any Thing, but might go to Town and lie
fhll, and that there would come a fuffictent Number
from Abroad ready to affift us. That 4 or 5000
French were to divert In Scotland, and the King
would be near the French Shore with 2 fufficient
Army. On Fidsy before the 22d, when it was.
to have been. executed again, we met at the
Sun-Tavery in the Straud; and there difcourfed, .
for a matter of half an Hour, about the former
Difappointment, and feveral 1n the Company.
were afraid the Delign was difcovered 3 but then
I told them, if it had been fo, fure we fhould
have been taken up before now 5 upon which it
was agreed, Then let us refolve upon it again
to Morrow, and {o it was refolved upon.. Capt.
Charnock faid, he could not ftay, becaufe he fhould
want fome Men that were come up out of the
Country on purpofe. 1 fard, I was afraid my
Horfes were fick, and conld not be ufed in the
Service, and Sir William Perkins thereupon un-
dertook to furnith me, and told Mr, Chariock and
me he had fent to Mr. Lewis, that belongs to the
Earl of Feverfbam, to procure fome, having, as
he faid, promifed fo to do. I fent the next Motn-
ing to have a Note for two, by Mr, Cranburue,
and he fent me a Note back again by Cranburne,
that he had fent to Mr. Lewis, and Mr. Lewis
{1id, he would help him to chree Horfes, with
Saddles, Holfters and Piftols, and deflired the Lift
of my Men, which I fent him, and he fent itme
back again with the Lift of his own, and then
I thewed it to Mr. De /2 Ree, and we were pre-
paring all Things for the Execution of this De-
fign, and prefently after News came, that the
King did not go out that Day neither; upon
which I faid I would go out of Town, and 1
asked Capt. Pendergrafs to go with me, and we
fent Keyes to bring Linnen unto us, but he did
not come until the Wednefdsy, and upon the
Thurfday we were taken.

Mr.
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Mr. At Gen. Captain Porter, you mention {e-
veral Confultations, at feveral Times and Places;

who were prefent at any, and which of them?:

Were any of the Prifoners at the Bar there, and
which ?
- Capt, Porter. There was Mr. Charuock, and Mr.,
King, atall of them.
Mr, A, Ger. What do you fay about Keyes €
‘What was he ?
Capt. Porter. He was my Servant a Year and

a Half,
Mr. A, Gen. 'Was he acquainted with the

Affaflination ?
Capt, Porter. Yes, he was, and was prefent

at moft of the Confultations, He hired Horfes for
me to be employed in the Bufinefs, On the firft
Saturday, he hired two, I gave hih Money for

themn, and he did know upon what Account they
were hired.

Mr., Ait. Gen, Was he prefent when News was
brought of the Difappointment ?

Capt, Porter,  Yes, he was both Times.

M. Att. Gen, Youare fure he was prefent then ?

Capt. Perter. Yes, the fecond Time he faid,
that he met the King’s Guards that were come
back- all in a Foam, and that he had fpoke to
one of my Lord of Oxford's Regiment, and that
fomething was mutter’d, upon which he feared a

Difcovery.
Mr. Att. Gen. Did Keyes agree to be one of

the Men, that fhould be concerned and alt in this

Bufinefs ?
- Capt. Porter. Yes, he did.

Mr. At Gen. What Quality is he of # What
is his Profeflion 2

Capt, Porter. He ufed formerly to help to drefs
me, and he was to look after my Linnen and
Equipage.

Me, Sol. Gen. Had he not been a Trumpeter ¢

Was not that his Profeffion?

Capt. Porter. He was 2 Trumpeter, and ufed
fometimes 1o entertain us with his Trompet,

Mr, Conyers. You foeak of a Meeting at the Sun
Tavern in the Stranc upon Fridey the 21ft of Fe-
bruary where it was refolved to execate this At-
tempt upon the next Day,

Capt, Porter. Yes, there was fuch a Meeting.

Mr. Conyers., Was Keyes there.at that Time ?

Capt, Porter. He was not in the Room where
we were, but he.was in another Room 1n the
fame Houfe, where I wept out to hun, and there
was he, Cranburne and Kenrtk,

M. Conyers. Pray what did you go to them for ?

Capt Porter. 1 went to acquaint them what
was refolved upon 3 and I told them they were re-
folved to.do it the next Day, to which-they agreed,
but that I thought my Horfes would not be ready,
but I hoped I fhould get fome other.

M. Con. Pray, what other Difcourfe had you
in that Company: With whom, and about what ?

Capt, Poricr.. Mr. Reivick came to me with his
Arm.in a String; either he had broke his Arm,
or.pretended {o to have done. I then asked him
for Mr, Sherbourn, whom he had mentioned before
to me, as one that was likely to be. concerned
He told me Mr., Sherbourn.asked a great many
Queftions about the Deflign, which. he did not
think fir toanfwer ; I thanked him for telliing me
fo, and.faid I would not fend to him.

Mr. Cooper.. Pray, Captain Porter, give me leave
te.3sk you one Queftion, Can.you remember what

Number of Men Charnock was to provide for this
Enterprize ? -

Capt. Perter. He promifed feven or eight Men,
fome of which fhould bring their Horfes out of
the Country, others he would borrow. or hire
for them.

Mr. Au. Gen,  Pray, Sir, was there any Body
fent to take an Account of the Inns about the
Place where this Affaflination was to have been
executed ¢

Capt. Porter, Yes, Mr, Durant was, and he did
bring us an Account of the feveral Inns about

Brentford and Tupnbam Green.
Mr, Ait, Gen.  As to the Lilt of Men, which

you fay you fent to Charnock, and he fent you
back witha Lift of lus Men, pray can you tell
whofe Hand thae Lift of his Men was i ?

Capt. Porter, 1 know Captamn Chasnock’s Hand
very well, and, to the beflt of my Knowledgg, it
was hisown Hand, and fublertbed R, C.

Mr. Ait. Gen, Str, you have given an Account
of the Meeting the 224 at your Lodging,

Coarneck, 1 was not there he fays.

Mr. At Gen. Fieft letme ask yon, how came
it that it was not put in Exccution the r5th; for
that you did not tell us before ?

Capt. Porter, 1 tell you, Sir, it was becaufe the
King did not go out that Day, according as we
had Notice, that he intended to do : Durait wroie
firft Word that the Guards were gone Lefore,
upon which I went for my Men, and about Noon
I recetved a Note from Mr, Charnock that the King
did not go out that Day,

Mr. At Gen, Pray what Name was fubfcribed
to that Note ?

Capt. Poiter. R. Robiufon, which was a Name
he ufed to go by fometimes.

Mr. Att. Gen, And pray in whofe Hand was
that Note ?

Capt. Porter. To the beft of my Knowledge it
was Captain Charnock’s, I know his Hand very well.

Mr. 4it. Gen. My Lord, if the Prifoners will
ask him any Queftions, they may. .

L.C. 7. Will you ask him any Queftions?

Char. My Lord, in the firft Place I defire the
Judgment of the Court, whether he be a legal
Kvidenceor no, Tconceive he is not, and I hope
your Lordfhips will think fo too: For he makes
himfelf a Criminal by his own Confeflion, and
that of a very heinous Crime, and it is equal in
my judgment (and as I have been advifed, who
I muft full fay am 1gnorant in thefe Matters) as
1f he had confefs’d it upon an Indi€tment, and then
the Law can take no Notice of him as a good
Witnefl.  And if he were no legal Witnefs then,
I take it by the fame Reafon he is no legal Wit-
nefs now: For the Crime is the fume, and it isan
Acknowledgment in open Court.

L. C. 7. Look you, Mr. Charnack, if it had been
a Confeflion upon an Indiétment, it would have
been a Conviction, which would have had quite
ancther Operation 3 but it not being upon an In-
diftment, it 1s no Conviftion, and therefore he is
a legal Witnefs, though he does acknowledge
himfelf to be guilty of the Crime.

Char, Then, my Lord, he is looked upon as no
good Evidence, in my Judgment, becaufe he isa

Criminal,
L:C. 7. He 15.a legal Evidence, tho’ he does

el

‘confes himfelf guilty of the Crime.

Char, He owns hunfelf a Partner in a bloody
Defign,



Defign, and to convict me, he fivears to take away
my Life, to fave his own. I cannot imagine why
he thould be accounted a legal Witnefs, that is a
Party by his own Confeffion in fuch a Matter.

" L.C. . Pray, who can tell better what was
intended and done in fuch a Confpiracy than he
that was a Party in1t?

Char. My Lord, he has forfeited his Life by his
own Confeffion, and now he would by Swearing
againft me take away my Life to fave his own,

L. C. #. Whatloever Objections you have againft
the Credit of his Teftimony, you may make what
Ufe of them you can in the proper Time 3 but for
any thing that yet appears, heisalegal Witnefs,

Charnock. My Lord, T know not how far he
is a-legal Witmefs, therein I muft be governed
by the Judgment of the Court; but fure it will
take away from the Credibility of his Tefti-
fmony, his own Acknowledgment of his being
guilty of fuch a Crime. Tho’ he may be a legal
Witnefs, he cannot be a2 good one. And I hope the
Gentlemen of the Jury will confider of 1, when
-a Man comes to take away other Mens Lives to
fave his own, by accufing them of Crimes which
he acknowledgeth himfelf to be guilty of.

L. C. 7. Look you, Mr. Charuock, for that
matter, it 15 {o in all Cafes of this Nature, not
only 1n Cafes of High-Treafon, but of Robberies
and Burglaries, and the like, where the Parties
concerned are and always have been allow’d to
be good Witnefles againft their Accomplices in
thofe Crimes.  'Will you ask him any Queftions,
Mr., Charnock ¢

Charnock, My Lord, here is another Thing,
which, I apprehend, I have Reafon to object
againft the Teftlimony of this Witnefs; he does
not only fwear to fave his own Life, and take
away another’s to deferve the faving of his own,
but there 15 in this Cafe Swearing to get a Re-
ward, for there Isa Reward of 1000/ apiece
promifed by Proclamation, for the Apprehenfion
of this Man and others. And not only a Pardon
but the 1000/, to any of thofe in the Proclama-
tion who fhall difcover and take any of the pro-
fcribed Perfons. Now, where 2 Man ftands ac-
cufed by Proclamation, and his own Life is there-
by concerned, and a Reward is propos’d for any
of the Confpirators difcovering and apprehending
the others, 1tis a' hard Matter to admit any
one that acknowledgeth himfelf guilty of fuch a
Crime, to prove a Prifoner guilty of that Crime
under thofe Circumitances. Belides, my Lord,
I have known. this Gentleman, and tho’ he may
have had an Eftate, yet fince I have Reafon to
fufpe@, and perhaps it may be very well known,
that- the Fortune "he’ had 1s lavifhed away; to
make up that Damage; he may be temptedto un-
dertake this Way' of Swearing.- So I think he can-

not be a good Evidence; and I hope youi Lordfhip:
will think {0 too, and that he 1s toreceive no Credit

or Countenance before ari-honeft- Jury, as [ doubt
not thefe Gentlemen are that are to try us.

L. C. % Mr. Charnack, do not miftake yourfelf, -

he is to have no Reward by the Proclamation un-
lefs he had come 'in voluritarily,. and apprehended
one of the others; for only tholfe that appréhend
any-of the Perfons- named in" the Proclamiation,

are to'receive any Part of the Reward, not any

of the Witnefles againft'any:of them; the Reward

is for the Apprehenfion, whether they ‘be found-

guilty or not guilty, -
Char. But ftill. my Lord, he cannotbe a good
Vor, 1V,
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Witnefs; for it looksds if he was a Man that wa®
willing to have becomz an Evidence, becaufe wes
whom he has accufed, particularly my felf, were
permitted to be taken, and then in the nmean while
he feems to withdraw, only that he might be taken
as a Colour. For my Part, I know not but that
it may be a Contrivance of his own, to be colowm-
ably taken up, becaufe he i fo willingly an Evi-
dence, as the Jury may percetve he is.

L.C. 7 It iscertainly a very hard Matter, if
not impollible, to difcover Crimesof this Nature,
if the Accomplices 1n thofe Crimes fhall not be
allowed to be good Witnefles againtt their Fellow-
Confpirators,

Char., My Lord, I muft fubmit to the Judg-
ment of the Court that he is a legal Witnels.
But tho® I fhall not prefs upon the Legality, yet
I muft fay he is not a good Witnefs for all the
Reafons that I have urged.

L.C.¥. Nay, he isa very good Witnels, if he
be a legal Witnefs; but the Credit of what he
fays, as in all other Cafes, muft be left to the
Jury, who are Judges of the Matter of Fa&, and
the Credibility of the Witneffes, |

Char. My.Lord, when Perfons will own them-
felves guilty of joining in {o barbarous a Crime
as we ftand indiéted for, and accufzd of, fure there
will be little Credit due to their Teftimony.

L.C.7¥. His Credit muft be left to the Jury,
who are the Judges of 1t; now if you will ask no
Queftions, I muft fpeak to the reft; Mr. Kinp will
you ask him any Queftions ?

Char. I {peak this only in general s but I have
fome Remarks thar I have made vpon the Evi-
dence that has been given, out of which, when 1
have told you of them, Queftions may arife, which
it may be fit for mc to propofe, and I fhall defire
your Lordthip’s Leave accordingly.

L. C. ¥. Look you, Mr. Charnock, you fhall be
heard all that you have to fay, when your Time
comes for your Defence, and to make what Ob-
fervations upon the Evidence you pleafe.  But the
Matter 1s now, whether you will think fit to crofs-
examine the Witnefles that are produced for the
King, or to ask them any Queftions ?

Char. My Lord, 1 have taken fome Notes of
what has been faid, and I defire I may make the
beft Ufe of them that I can,

L. C. 7. You may make what ufe you will of
your Notes, and make what Obfcrvation you will
to make any Queftion you ask intelligible.

Char. My Lord, Capt. Porter in his Evidence
hath faid that this Confpiracy was in the latter
End of February. Now I apprehend his Oath is
not valuable upon this Indiétment, becaufe the
Offence 15 laid the Tenth of . February, and fo his
Confpiracy that he talks of, was after the Time
Jaid in the Indi¢tment,

L. C. J. I believe you miftake him, Sir,

Mr. Ait. Gen, If he pleafts to ask him, I fippofe
he will find himfelf miftaken.

Capt. Porter. My Lord, I fay the latter End
of Faunarys if 1 faid Februery I miftook,

L.C. 7. And fo it muft be; for the two and
twenticth of Febinary, was to have been the fecond |
Time for the Execution of the Defien, and feveral
of the Confpirators were taken the next Day. .

Char. My Lord, 1defice Capt. Porier may be
asked, where it was, and when, that 1 brought
Sir George Barcley and Mr. Holmes into " his ‘Com-
piny : S

Capt. Porfer, It was the Beginning of February,

4 D at
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at my Chamber in the fame Houle where Mr. Char-
nock lodged, and I was then fick of the Gout:

Char, My Lord, I declare it, I know nothing
of it. Then he fays we had feveral Meetings,
particularly at three feveral Taverns; by what
I can obferve, there is no Time atall, nor atany
of thofe three Places that there was any Sort of
Confpiracy for the Affaflinating of the King.

L.C.¥. Yes, he fays, that you met at thofe
Places, where you did confult about Affaffinating
of the King, and the Ways and Methods how
it fhould be carried on, and that you was at thofe
Confults ; for Mr. Attorney asked him particularly,
‘Whether you that are the Prifoners were there ?
and he fays, Ay.

Char. He fays, that we met at the Nagg’s-bead
Tavern in St. Fames’s-fireet, where it was agreed
that heand Knightly fhould go and view theGround,
to fee which would be the moft convenient Place;
and that they came the next Night to give an
Account according to our Defire, Now, my Lord,
I was thereat Dinner, and Capt. Perser did come
in at Night; and if you do remember, Captain,
you could not pull off your Boots well, and com-
plamned of the Gout, and was very peevith 3 and
faid you had been at Mortlack, and had met with
a Friend there; That s all that I know, There
was Capt. Kivg and Mr. Kuightly indeed 5 who
fent for fome other Cloaths, but it cannot be pre-
tended that there was any Crime tranfacted at that
Time; for you cannot imagine, that I would have
to do in any fuch Marter amongft Porters and
Mefiengers that were to go on common Errands.

L. C. ¥. I will only put you in a right Method ;
You may ask what Queftions you will now; but
you are not to make your Obfervations upon the
Witnefles to the Jury till the King’s Evidence be
given, for then your Time will come for your
Defence.

Char. My Lord, it may be I may forget then
what may be proper for me to infilt upon. If
your Lordfhip will pleafe to allow me 2 Sollicitor
to put me in Mind, I fhould be the better able
to manage my felf.

L.C. 7. Youmay 'z helped by your Notes;
but you have been told over and over, we can
allow no Sollicitor,

Char. My Lord, Capt. Porter fays, I told him
there was fuch a Commifiion brought by Sir George
Barcley from King Fames 5 he fays indeed, 1 told
him I never faw it; and I do not know how I
could, becaufe I do not believe there ever was any
fuch, and it is improbable there fhould be any fuch.

L.C. ¥. Mr. Charrock, I would not hinder you
from faying any Thing that would be proper for
your Defence, nor will interrupt you when your
proper Time comes,

Char. My Lord, what [ fay is as to what Cap-
tain Porfer has evidenced, and I will make Obfe:-
vations upon one Part of the Evidence after ano-
ther, as it Is given.

L. C.%. But that is not regular, according to
the Courfe of Evidence, and will introduce a
Confulion. You may ask any Queltions of the
particular Witnefles, as they are in Order, if you
will; but your Obfervations, as to your own De-
fence, you muft defer, till the Witneffes are heard,
that fo the Evidence may be intire, and your De-
fence intire therefore if you will ask him any
Queftions, fay fo.

Char. No, my Lord. _

L, C. . Then Mr, King, will you ask him any
Queftions ?

King. Capt. Porter, Did I mention any Thing,
or was there any Difcourfe when you and I, and
Mr. Knightly, as you fay, went out to view the
Ground, about killing the King ?

Capt. Porter, The Day before we went, we di.
ned together, and it was at the Nagg’s-bead, and
he asked if I was to meet Kuightly, and go and
view the Ground, in order to fettling the Defign,
which was then talked of, and confulted about;
and Captain King defired to go with us, and we
lay at Knights-bridge; and when we were about
it, we difcourfed feveral Times of the Nature of
the Place; and Captain King did not approve of
the Place on this Side the Water, but liked the
Ambufcade better which was to have been on the
other fide the Water.

L. C. 7. Will you ask him any more Queftions ?

Kiug., No, my Lord.

L. C. . Well then, What fays the other Man,
Keyes 2 Wil he ask him any Queftions ?

Keyes. My Lord, 1 have had no Body to advife
me, no Council; I was only a Servant to Captain
Porter,

Mr. At Gen, If then they have done with him,
before he goes, I defire to ask him one Queftion.
What Difcourfe, or Treaty, or Confultation about
this, or fuch like a Matter, there was the laft
Winter, and between whom ?

Capt. Porzer. There were feveral Meetings and
Conlultations the laft Winter between Capt. Char-
nocky, Str William Perkins, and myfelf, about fuch
a Lhing ; and we thought that the quickeft Way
to.bring in the King, and reftore him to his Crown,
was by knocking King #illfam on the Head ; and
there were feveral Meetings about the Ways of

doing it.

Mr, At Gen, Who elfe were there at thofe
Meetings?

Capt. Porter. There were feveral others in
Company.

Mr. 41, Gen, But the Meaning of my Queftion
15, who of the Prifoners? .

Capt. Porter, 1cannot remember any but Capt,
Charnock,

Mr. A, Gen. Pray will you acquaint us with
the Reafon why it was not done at chat time.

Capt. Porter. We wanted a Commilfion from
France, which we thought was a neceflary Au-
thority for us to act by.

Mr, 4it.Gen. You fpeak of a Lift that was
brought you again from Charnock, with the Ad-
dition of thofe Names that were his Men ; pray
at that time was there no Difcourfe about a par-
ticular Gun that was fomebody’s, and that one in

the Company was to have, to be employed in this
Service ?

Capt. Porter. My Lord, I faid, T had a Muf
quetoon that carried 6 or 8 Bullets, that Capt. Pes-
dergrafs, who was one of the Four out of my
Ruota, that was to go with Sir George Barcley,
Should have if he pleafed.

Mr. 4t Gen.  Capt. Porter, I would not lead
you, but were there any particular Directions
given, and what, touching the particular Imploy-
ment of that Gun?

Capt. Porter. I remember I told Capt, Peider-
grafs, if the Coach made any great hafte to get
away, hemight eafily hinder that, by killing or
laming one of the Horfes with that Gun,

Mr, Att. Gen, Pray recollect yourfelf, Sir, was
King, the Prifoner at the Bar, prefent at that
Difcourfe ?
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Capt. Porter, Capt, King was theh in myRoom
in Maiden-lane, where I then lay, being removed

from my Lodging at Norfolk fireet.
King.” Do you fay that I heard any fuch Dif-

courfe ¢

Capt. Porter. 1 cannot fay you heard it, but
you was prefent then,

Mr, Ait. Gen. Was there not fome Difcourfe
about a Defect of the Numbers that were appoint-
ed, and expetted tojoin in this Thing

Capt. Porter, My Lord, I told you I wanteda
Man, and that was Kenrick, who had his Arm in
a String 3 and Mr. De le Rue brought one that I
knew not, and fome of the Company went to the
Blue-Pofts to tarry there whillt I came to them,
and Capt. King was prefent when the News was
brought us of the Difappointment, and then I re-
folved to go out of Town.

Mr, Att. Gen, The next Witnefs, my Lord,
that we call is Mr. De /la Ruee, and we defire he may
be fivorn, (Which <was done.)

Mr. Sol. Gen. Mr., De la Rue, we would delire
you to acquaint the Court and the Jury, what
you know of any Defigin or Conipiracy to Affal-
finate the King, when it began, how it was carry’d
on, and by whom, and by what Methods ¢

Mr. De /o Rue. My Lord, this Confpiracy bath
been carrying on a great while, for fome Years:
And it originally came from Col. Paiker, efpect-
ally as to my Knowledge of 1t; and that was five
or fix Years ago, at St. Germains, when I was
there: He propofed it to me, and faid he would
propofe it to my Lord Mifort, who was King
Fames’s Secretary in France. Two Years after,
he came over into England, it was a little before
the Bufinefs of Lz Hygue, and he would have had
me come over into Exgland with him ;5 upon which
I applied myklf to my Lord Melfort, to know
whether I fhould come over hither yea or no:
My Lord Melfort advifed me to ftay there awhile;
for, faid he, you will find there is fomething a
doing which .11l pleafe you. But nothing being
done, after that 1 came to Eugland, and fuffered
a very tedious Confinement here, I became ac-
quainted with Mr, Charitoek and Capt. Kz abroad s
1 have beer with Mr. Charnock, Mr.Kiag, Mr. Por-
12y Mr. Goodinan and Col. Parker, here in Town
feveral Times, and at feveral Places, And now [
come to what was a doing the Iaft Year. In the
Months of Fanuary, February, and March, ull the
King’s going to Flauders, there were feveral Con-
ferences, and Confultations about this Matter, be-
tween Sir/¥illians Perkins, Capt. Porter,and others ;
I cannot fay that ever I was in Company with
Goodinare at that Time, when we talked of any
Thing of this Nature, But Capt, Charnack carried
me to Sir }¥illiain Perkins, whom 1 had never feen
before, to the Mitre-Tavern 1n St. Fames’s Market,
and there [ was asked, if I would be concerned in
the Fafing us from the Yoke that then lay upon
us. I asked which way it was to be done, for I
could not ungerftand what was meant, but the
taking off the King, and therefore I asked which
Way it was to be done. Then they asked me,
whether I knew where Capt. Stow lived ; and they
imployed me togo to his Lodgings, and appoint-
ed me to meet them at the Star-Tavern in White-
Friars. They were there before me, when 1 had
met with the Captain, and brought him thither ;
but that they thought not a fit Place to confult
in, and therefore they went to Bromjfield’s Coffee-
houfe, and there they did talk fomething of it;
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but théy took one ahother afide, and tilked pri-
vately amongft themfelves, which I took fome Ob-
fervation and Notice of; and upon Enquiry I
was told it was becaufe there was an old Gentle-
man in the Company, whom they did not care
to acquaint with any Thing of the Matter, be-
caufe he was too Old to have any Hand in ir,
and they would acquaint none with their Refo-
lutions, but thofe that were to be Aétors In the
Defign, My Lord, I was not often in their Com-
pany after that, but I heard from Time to Time,
how Matters went on, and I heard from Capt.
Porter particularly, that they had been at Titi -
bam Greer and liked the Place very well, and
that the Defign was to take the King off, or elfe
to hurry him away to Rummey-Marfh alive, and
carry him into France.

Chariock, Surely this is not any Evidence, be-
caufe Captain Porter only {poke of 1, and it 1s by
Hear-fay, and we are not concern’d what other
People talk of.

Mr, Ait. Gei. Pray who was in the Room,
when the Propofals were made 2

De e Rue. What Propofals do you mean, Sir?

Mr, Ait. Gen. At theTavern in St, Fames’s-firee.

Dz la Rue. At the Collee-houle there wasalittle
Talk of it between themielves; but they would
not talk much, they fard, becaufc there was an
old Gentleman there, who was too old to engage,
and they would have none but Actors 5 that [ un-
derftood to be the Realon why they talked one
with another {fo: But I taking notice of their Pri-
vacy, whenever I asked Charaock of it, he referr'd
me to Captain Porser,  But withal he told me fe-
veral times, that he believed i1t would come to
nothing, The Delign was to carry the King alive
into France, if they could ; if they could not take
him alive, then to affaffinate him, and pretend it
was done by a Random Shot. He told mz alfo,
they had fent to King Faines for a Commifiion to
execute this Matter, and to authorize them to
carry the King into France, 1f they could rake
him 3 and then if they conld not, they agreed to
excufe themfelves, as I faid, by pretending that he
was killed by 2 Random Shot, It fhould {eem (as
I underftood) the Commiffion was delay’d a long
Time, and then they refolved to execute the De-
fign without a Commiflion; and within.a few
Days before the King was to go to Fianers, [
was told, all was ready. But then they wanted 2
Ship to carry him off when they had taken him ;
and there met at the Rofe Tavern, as Iremember,.
Captain Porter and Siv Willian Perkins 3 but I can-
not tell whether Mr. Charnock was there or not, I
asked them if they had concluded upon the Mat-
ter; they told me, it wasconcluded upon, and, as
I remember, they told me Captain Charnock, or
Robinfor (for he went by both Names) was to have
a Recommendation to fome Body at D:a/; and
there they were to hire a Veflel, and I was asked
whether I would go with him: I told them, 1
would, But then the King went 2 little after for
Flanders 3 and they had no Time to compleat the
whole Affair, and o the Bufinels was put off, tll
the King’s Return this laft Winter.

Mr. Sol. Gen, Well, What fay you to any
Thing fince?

De la Rue, This Year in the Months of Novem-
ber and December, Mr. King, the Prifoner at the
Bar, told me, that there would be 2 Major General
come over from France, and that there was a Man
of Quality about the Town, that offered to dif-
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burfe two or three Thoufand Pounds, if King
Femes would give Order for it: And this was,
as I fuppofe, to buy Horfes to be engaged in this
Matter, and he would tell me more a while af-
ter, A Month or two after, he told me he was
out of Money about it, which could not be had:
1 was brought in by Capt. Porter, and they com-
municated this to me, about the latter End of Fa-
suary, or the Beginning of the Month of February s
they told me there was a Major-General come over
from France, and there were a great many People
come over befides; and there would be fomething
fpeedily put in Execution, which would be for
the King’s Service.

L. C. ¥. Who told you this?

De ls Rue. Captain King., The next Time I faw
him, he told me he wanted a Saddle with Holfters,
it was the 7th of February, on Friday Night, for he
was to go out of Town with fome Friends, about
fomething in arder to this Affair; he delired me
to lend him one; but I had none, I told him, but
T would write to Captain Poiter, to procure one
for him 3 and he told me he was to go with Kuight-
Iy, Durant, and others, to fec whether the King
went to Richmond or to Hownflow 3 becaufe they
were told the King had altered his Journey from
‘Richmond to Hounflow. He afterwards told me,
he went out with his Friends, and the Swnday
Morning he comes to me, and told me, there
was the rareft Place for the Execution of the De-
fign againft the King, that was poffible to be
thought of 5 if they fhould have ftudied never fo
long, and delired a convenient Place, they could
not have had fuch another, It was within a' Quar-
ter of a Mile of the King’s Houfe at Richinond, 1n
a Lane that leads to the Houfe, and fo narrow,
that the Officers and the Guard could go but very
few a-breaft, hardly broad enough for a-breaft;
and there was to be an Ambufcade behind the Park
Pales, and the other Side was the River; and,
fays he, he will have all the Pales fawed fo far,
that when the King’s Coach comes into the Place,
‘the Pales fhall be broke down, and we will have
a Parcel of Horle ready, that fhall be fure to do
the Work wuth the Guards; and when we fire,
they {hall take Notice to make their Attack, Dr-
rant delives to command this Party 5 and they were
to be dreffed in Country-Mens Habits, that they
might the lefs be taken Notice of : And he faid
10 or 12 Men on the other Side would beat 100
of the Guards in that Confternation, efpecially
we having the Park Pales before us to defend us.
He asked me if Iwould be one of the Ambuicade.
I told him, I had rather be one of thofe on Horfe-
back to fecure the Retreat, and I would rather
- attack the Guards. It was late, and fo A7sg and I
‘'went Home ; and the next Day I went to fee Cap-
tain Portgr, when he was ill of the Gout. This
- was Sunday, the gth of February 3 we did go to Pai-
" ter, and he was 1n his Chamber, and two or three
" more, and they were talking of indifferent Things:
~"He asked for Captain Charuock, and they faid he
" was gone out; but he takes out Capt, Porfer into
the Yard to talk with him by himfelf; and what he
faid to him, Ifuppofe was to tell him what he had
told me before: Says Captain Porfer to him, I
have taken care of 2 Horfe for you; we will ride
out on Tuefday next to fee the Place. Mr. Porter,
and Mr. King, and, as I was told, Mr. Kuightly,
went to Kughtshridge, and lay there all Night 5 and
the next Day they went out of Town to view the
Place, I was at Porter’s Lodging on the Monday,

but | was told there by Keyes and his Landlady,
that he lay that Nightat the Swan at Km:gbr:!)ridge,
and was to go out the next Day. On the Tefisp
Morning I was coming back from Keiffugion,which
was the 11th of February, and when [ was comine
along the Street I met with Keyes, and ask’d him
where he was going ? Says he, I am going to Sir
Willsams Perkins with a Lerrying Trumpet s for it
feems he was railing 2 Troop of Horle, as Porter
told me afterwards; apd within a little Time af-
terwards, 1 faw Captain Porter at the End of Noy-
Jolkfireet, and he told me they would all be to-
gether at the Nagg’s-bead about 7 or 8 a Clo.k.
I went, and expected to be admitted, and asked
if Captain Porter was there ; they told nie he was
above, but there were feveral other Perfons with
him ; and there was a Coach at the Door which had
brought two Scoteh Gentlemen, of which I thought
Sir George Barcley was one, whom I heard to be in
Town. I defired to fpeak with Caprain Porser g
they told me he was bufy above in Company, and
could not be fpoke with; by which I faw they
were not willing that I fhould come there amonit
them, which 1 took very ill. Captain King came
out to me, and was talking with me at the Door,
and Captain Charnock comes with another to the
Door mna Coach : 1 faw him, but when, I lippofe,
he perceived me, he pulls himfelf back into the
Coach, asif he had no Mind to be feen ; but find-
ing he could not avoid it, he comes out, and asks
me if T would not go up Stairs into the Company 2
I told him, No, Ihear they are buly, and becaufe
I was not invited up at firlt, I would not trouble
them. I was then thinking of going to my Lord
Shrewsbury’s Office inynediately, to get fome Mef-
fengers immediately to apprchend them j but then
I thoughe I had not enough to difcover their In-
tentions, and make it out againft them, but I
fhould have one Time or another. T did not fa
Captain King ull Suturdey afterwards at 12 a Clock,
and I was then at Charrock’s Lodging, to fee whe-
ther he was gone out, that I might be able to give
the King the better Accounts they told me, he
was at the Biue Pofls in Spring Garden : 1 would not
go and dine there, but went home, and afterwards
went thither; and King, told me, the King did
not go out that Day; I told him that I heard fo,
and would come and fee them after Dinner. At
this Meeting at Spring Garden 1 faw Keyes was one,
and Kewrick, and Shergonrn, and Bryerly, and two
that I did not know. This was Saturday the 15th,
On Sunday the 16th, T met Mr. King at St. Fases's-
Sireety and we went thence to the Dog Tavern, and
there we fupped together, and he told me Sir
George Barcley had brought over Sixteen of the
Guards, and two Officers, and a Brigadier, and a
Sub-Brigagier; and he told me the Day before,
that he knew fome of them, and was going to meet
them 3 for they were en Cachet, as he called it in
French, and did not ftir abroad without Leave,
and were fubfifted at the Rate of 4 5, a Day, as the
Guards were here, He told me, he had been lately
with them a drinking. I asked him whether they
wents he told me, to the Bear Tavern in the
Strand 5 and he told me Mr. Charnock and Captain
Porter had feveral Conferences with them to con-
trive how to take off his Majefty, to Murder and
to Aflaffinate him. And he told me —w—

Coarnock. My Lord, I defire he may be ask’d
whether he was at the Bear Tavern with thefe

Men,
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Z.C. ¥. 'What he fays about this Matter; Is
what Kirg told him.

Char. ‘That is not E¥idence, my Lord. -

L.C §. That s tiue, not to affet you, but
only Mr, Kixg.

Dz lz Rue. Captain King told me belides, that
Mr. Charnock did not argue like a Soldier, and re-
fected upon him for it; for he faid, he {feemed to
defire to have his Polt in as little Danger as was
poflible, And for Mr. Porter, he did not approve
of him ; for he told me he had as much Fat in his
Brains, as he had in his Body. I remember thofe
Words he faid ; and that what he and Durant
had propofed, was rejefted, that was about the
Ambufcade « For It was faid, that after all their
Confideration, Sir Gearge Barcley was not fure of
Horfe enough to carry them off afterwards
wherefore they refolved to Affaffinate his Majelty
in the Lane coming from Brentford to Lurnbaiir-
Greens and Sir George Barcly was to command
Eight Perfons to affault the King, and thofe that
were In the Coach; and Mr. Charnock was to at-
rack the Guards in the Rear ; and one Roskwood,
with a Party that came from France, and Captain
Portery in two Wings, were to attack the two
Sides of the Guards. Iremember on Suiday Night
I asked him if he had a good Sword, for I wanted
one s and I filid (¢ him, Where S your Sword-
Catler 7 He told me, On the other Side of the
Way ; and he was fent for to bring a good Sword,
and [ chofe one that was but a little Blade, which
he thought would do beft, and was ridiculing
Captain Charigek’s Sword, as being too broad,
and of three or four Finger’s Breadth. [ liked
his Sword, and fpake to the Man to get me one
like his; and he faid a Twefday, that he had fent
him to my Lodging, but I had not feen him, On
Tuefday, the 18th of February, I wentto him, and
asked him, whether I fhould iee him in the Af-
ternoon? He told me, No; for he was to go
out with Kaightly to buy Arms. Shall I fee you
then at Night? faid I. T cannot tell whether
you can or no, faid he. I cannot remember any
Thing more that paffed upon the 18th, But I
fpoke to Mr. Chernock, whom I met near his
Lodging in Noifolk-fireet, and defired to have a
Word with him towards the Water-fide : I
asked him, how the Matter in Hand went; Says
he, I find People that were finguine, and hot,
and forward, are now grown cold : I believe the
King has Notice of 1t, and the Thing has taken
Air; for he has not been abroad a good while,
He was not abroad on Safurday, as he ufually
does go: and [ hear that upon Fridey Night it
was agreed in Council, to take up feveral Peo-
ple. Said I, Does the Bufinefs go on ? No, fays
he, I believe it is off, becaufe we apprehend the
Thing has taken Air; befides Things of fuch a
Nature are not to be communicated to fo many,
nor delayed, both which are very dangerous;
not above Three People thould know of it.  Said
1, How then would they get enough for the Ex-
ccution? If they be not acquainted with the
Defign, they will never engage, Well, faid he,
I believe they are quite off of the Thoughts of
it; but you may depend upon the main Buli-
nefs, that will be very {peedily, which was the
Landing of King Fame;. While T was talking,
comes Bryerly from Captain Porter 3 and after him,
came Captain King in a Coach, and asked me, if
I would go Home with him? I told him, No,
I s:as.not going Home, but was going into White-
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Fryers, and I took my Leave of ‘them ; and no-
thing pafs'd more, that I remember, at that Time.
On Wednefday Morning I went to Capt. Charsnock's,
thinking to learri fomething how Matters went on ;
but he was clofer, and more referv’d than before.
I asked him to lend me a good Sword. He faid
he had none, but Mr, Porter had a good broad
fHaming Sword, which I thought to be the Sword
that Capt. Kig mentioned to be his: And we had
little Talk that Day ; for I had Bufinefs to do, and
I left him pretty foon on the Wednefday. Nexc
Day after, I went to Caprain Porter’s Lodging,
who was removed from Norfolk-firees into Maiden-
head-lone, to one Brown a Surgeon’s, and very fow
People knew where he was, but thofe that were
of the Party in this Bufinefs; and I went into
another Room, into the Dining-room, becaufe his
Room had not a Fire, and he came in to us, and
1 told him what 1 had heard from Mr. Charnoct,
that the Thing was quite off. He told me, he
heard nothing of it, but found all People that
were concerned, as refolute for the Execution of
It, as ever they were.

Char. My Lord, he fpeaks of what Captain
Lorter told him ; that is nothing to me.

L. C.’f. No, it is not, nor will it ever be urged
agamft you ; 1t is but Hear-fay from another. Go
on, Sir.

Dz lay Rue. 1 tayed there but a fhort Time:
But, Capt. Charnack, fince you fpeak of this Mat-
ter, I only fay, I told Captain Porter what you
told me, that you thought they were off of the
Bufinefs, and that it had taken Air; and I asked
him what he thought: Says he, I know nothing
of any Alteration; 1 behieve they are as refolute
as ever they were: For they fully purpole, that
if the King goes abroad on Satuiday Morning, we
will have all ready. And he told me how it was
to be done. He defired me to lie with him on Fri-
dayNight, that we might prepareevery thing againtt
the next Day: But I could not do that; and
therefore he bid me fend at Nine, or thereabouts.
I told him T would be at my Lodging about that
Time, if he would fend to me, to be fure about
feven or eight a Clock in the Morning. About
that Time in the Morning Captain Porter fends to
me again ; a Servant-Maid came to me, for the
Black that vfed to attend him, ufed only to go
abroad at Nights, and was not feen to go in and
out a-Days, for Fear of being taken Notice of;
becaufe, as I faid, none but thofe that were of the
Party knew thar he lodged there. 1 drefs’d my-
felf, and went to Captain Porter’s Lodging, He
was in Bed, but prefently he rifes, and told me
in French, Toutes Parties font prefls 5 All Things
are ready : And when he was up, he put on his
Boots; and by and by, in comes Mr, Kenrick ;
and after him, in comes Mr. Keyess and after
him, Mr. King and Mr. Pendergrafs : and Captain
King takes Mr, Porter mnto another Room, and
there they were whifpering a while, but I did
not hear what they faid ; but Ksg told me after-
wards, he did not obferve that I was in the other
Room. The Queftion then was asked of Cran-
bourne, When he faw Sir Gegrge Barcley ¢ He fand,
he juft came from him: And then Captamn Por-
t¢r takes a Pen and Ink, and writes down a Lift
of the Perfons that he was fure of, and puts me
down firft, What, fays Mr, Pendergrafs, are you
the Captain? I told him, I believed I was in be-
fore the reft of the Company that were there.
Then Capt. Perter lends Mr, Cranbourne with*the
Lt
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Lift to Captain Charnock’s Lodgings; and In the
mean Time when Mr, Cranbonine was gone, Capt.
Porter told me, that Mr. Pendergrafs was to be one

of the Eight under Sir George Barcly, that were

to Affaffinate the King ; And now, fays he, I am
going to lend him a Gun that will carry fix or
eight Bullets.  Says Caprain King thereupon to
him, I hope you will ndt fear to break the Glals
Windows. No, fays he, T will have a Hand or o
Finger in the Bufines. By and by came mn News,
that Chambers,. one of the orderly Men, as they
culled them that lay at Kenfington to give Intelli-
aence, had fent Word that the King was to go
abroad, and the Guards were gone out. Durant
was to ftay laft, to fee when the King went out.
Chambers had been there all the Week, Mr. Cran-
bowrne came back, and told Captain Pertcir, that
Chambers had fent to Captain Charnock, that the
King would go out that Day, At which all the
Company feemed joyful. Captain Porter told me
likewife of feveral Difappointments that they had,
both as to Time, and as to Men; parucularly
that one Major Lowick had engaged to bring two
Men, and that one of them had told s Wite,
that he was to mount for King Faues’s Services
and fhe went and cried afrer him when he
went to the Coffee-houfe; and fo he was forced to
ablcond, and fo we loft three: And alto told me,
that Kenrick faid he had broke his Arm; and
when Captain Porter asked for Sherborine whom
Kenrick had talked of, he faid he asked fo many

aceftions that he durft not truft him: fo that
they had loft Five or Six m the whole: And
there was one Plowodens that they were difappoint-
ed of belides, whom they had very much reckon’d
apon. When Mr, Cranbourne brought back the
Lift that Captain Posser fent to Captain Charnock,
there were added to it feveral Names, which
Captain Porter faid were the Names of the Men
that were to be under Captan Charsock, and that
it was his Hand ; and at the Bottom there were
the Letters R. C. which I thought ftood for Ko-
Lert Charnock, The Names made up about feven-
teen or eighteen: I told him, I thought there
had been more. He wold me, there would have
been more, but that they were under fome Difap-
pointments, as I told you before. He asked me to
get him fome Men to fupply the Defect, and I
propofud fome Names, t0 make him belicve 1 was
hearty in the Bufinefs: We agreed to go to the
Blie-Pofts in Spiing-Gardesr, and T went under Pre-
tence to get the Men, and came and told them,
I had got them, and I found Mr, Pendergrafs there,
and I took Mr. Keyes thither, and Mr. Porter fent
M. Cranbourne to Captain Charnock feveral times s
by and by Word was brought that Chainbeis had
fent Word, the King would not go abroad that
Day ; upon which they all look’d very blank :
And Keyes came two or three times in, and
went out again; he was feveral times up and
down, at Jaft he came and told us, the Guards
were returned from Richmond toaming ; and he
went down again to learn further Intelligence,
and within a little Time came and told us, the
King’s Coach was returned to the Mews Gate, and
the People very much wondred what fhould be the
Reafon that the Xing did not go a Hunting for
two Sgturdays together as he ufed to do. They
feemed to be in a very great Confternation at this
News, and Captain Porter faid he refolved to go
out of Town, and asked me if I would go: I told

him, Noj T had a Suit in Dogors Coinnons, and.-1-

would go to my Proftor and Lawyers to confult
about 1t. Then he asked Mr. Pendirgrafs to go
with him, which he agreed to do; and Caprain
Porter fent Keyes up to give the reft of the Com-
pany an Account, that there was no Occalion for
them then, and fo they difperfed.

Charnock. Did I go out of Town, can you teli 2

Mr, De le Rue. Now you put me in Mind, M,
Cranbourne brought a Meffage from you about that
Time to Captain Porter, that Sir Gesrge Barcley de-
fired to fpeak with him at his Lodgings. Captain
Porfer was then apprehenlive of Bailiffs meeting
with him ; and, fays he, he know this, I wonder
he would not come to me.  But he did not go to
him, but refolved fpeedily to go out of Town
and Keyes was to give an Account where he was
In the Country, that if Occatlon was, he might be
fent for. This is all I can at prefent recolledt,
only, I beg your Pardon, I remember, there were
feveral difloyal Healths drunx in the Compary,
at feveral Times, as the Reftoring the Jate King,
the Health of the Prince of #7¢ks, the late Qu.en,
and the Freach King 5 and particularly, I remems-
ber, when the News of the Difappeintment was
Mr. Poster took an Orange in his Hand, ang i-qut‘ﬁi
zed 1t, and gave it into the Hand of the . xt
Perfon to him, whom he drank to, and began a
Health to the fqueezing the rotten Orange; and
fad, Though we are difappointed one Day, I hope
to have another: And Keyes was at Dininer with
them all the Time, and cvery Body drank it, I
did not fee any Body refufe it, but it went from
one to another quite round.

Mr, At Gen. Pray, who were there at that
Time ?

Dela Rue.  All the Company pledged the
Health, and Mr, Keyes was there,

Charnser,  Pray was I theve?

D¢ la Ree. No.

King. 'Was 1 there?

De la Rue. No, there was none of the Prifoners,
but Mr. Keyes, who belonaed to Mr. Porter’s Par-
ty 5 Mr. King for his Part belong’d to Sir Gesige
Barcly’s Party.

Mr. Ait. Gen. My Lord, before we go to ano-
ther Witnefs, I defire to know whether the Pri-
foners will ask this Witnefs any Queftions.

Char. You fay, there was a Note of Names fent
by mc to Captain Porter 5 Pray, do you know my
Hand-writing ?

Dele Rue, 1 cannot fay I have feen you write,
or that Ifaw you write that; but I have feen your
Writing {everal Times, and 1 believe it to be your
Hand,

Char. Why fo, have you any of my Writing ?

D:la Rue. 1 have received feveral Notes from
you, which I believe are your Writing.,

Chai. But you do not fwear, that they were my
Writing, or that this was my Wnting.

Delo Rez. T tell you, you have fent feveral
Notes to me at {everal Times, and you have own-
ed the Meffages came from you, and I do believe
it was your Hand-writing, becaufe it was like the
reft: and Captain Peiter told me, 1t was your
Hand-writing,

Mr. At Gen. Pray did Mr. Keyes ufe to fig
down at Table with Mr, Porier ¢

Dela Rue, Yes, inall Companies he was treared
as familiarly as a Companion, and no ways as a
Servant; and dined and fuppzd at the fame Table
with the reft,

Mr, A, Gen,  What was done after chat the

‘ News
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News was brought of the King’s not going
abroad, and Captain Porter refolving to go into
the Country ?

De le Rue. When Captain Porter was gone, the
Company broke up ; and away goes I to Captain
Charneck, to fee him, about four of the Clock in
the Afternoon. When I came there, his Land-
Iady told me there was a great deal of Company :
But I defired her to goin, and tell him that I was
there. She did fo 5 and he fent and defired me to
come in. I did fo, and I faw feveral Perfons there.
There was one Donglas, "and one Trever, and four
Troopers of my Lord of Oxfard’s Regiment, and
a Trumpeter that was his Servant in Ireland, when
he was a Captain in Parker’s Regiment; I know
Captain Charnock was a great Croney of Parker’s,
and he fent Letters by me to him : I have feen
fome of the Letters that Parker fent; and they
were drinking the fame Ilealths as were drunk be-
{ore at the Bilue Pofls, to the reftoring King Fames,
the Queen, the Prince of #ales, and the Grand
Monarch (as they called him) the French King.

L. C. 7. Whowas in Company then?

Dz I Rue. M. Dougles, Mr. Trevor, four Troop-
crs of my Lord Oxferd’s Regiment, one /7bitz,
one Lowtherp, and one Mzfon, whom I know when
I fee very welly Mr. Charnock, one Day 1n the
Summer, asked me to go and drink a Bow] of
Panch, which I wasunwilling todo; but he muft
needs prefs me, and he carries me where Mafon
and Lowthorp were, at the George Innin Piccadilly;
whence we went to the Prince of Orange’s Head,
and Captain Cheruack fpent in Wine and other
Liquors upon them a great deal of Money. This
was half a Year ago in the Summer Time, but I do
not remember that I faw thofe two, Lowthorp and
Mafon, afterwards, ull the 22d of February.

Mr. A, Gen, Is this all that you can fay as to
the Prifoners? ‘

D: fa Ree, This is all at prefent that T can
recollect. :

Mr. A!t, Gen, Then for the Satisfaction of the
Court and Jury, give us an Account when you
firlt made a Dilcovery of this Confpiracy, and in
what Manner, and to whom. '

Dz la Rue, The laft Year 1 had difcovered 1t
if it had come toa Head, and been ripe enough to
have been put-in Execution ; 1 did then delign to
acquaint the King with it 5 but it coming to no
Head then, I deferr’d troubling the King with 1t ;
And now this Year I defigned (had the King
cone out the 15th of Fedruary) to-have prevent-
ed any Mifchief, but they had Notice that he
was not to go: But my Way was, to have put
them all into the King’s Hands, by getting two
ar three General Officers to be acquainted with
iz ; and dividing fome of the Guards into feveral
Parties in the Lanes between Brentford and Turn-
bam Greeny and fo have furprized them and their
Horfes in their feveral Inns that they were quar-
tered in.  But upon Monday the 17th of February,
left they fhould alter their Refolution, and I fhould
happen not to be acquainted how it was to be
done, I went toa General Officer of my Acquain-
tance, that is, Brigadier Lewfon, to acquaint him
with the Matter ; but he was gone out of Town
with Colonel Zi/z Palrick and another: 1 went
then to Dwrant’s Ladgings for a Colour, and 1t was
rold me, he had been out all Night, I went again
to Brigadier Lewfon’s, but he was not n Town,
and I left Word for him, that the next Day I

would wait upon him, and defired he would not

| for H.igh-Trefafon.

579

go out till I came to him, I went, he was not

then at home, but I afterwards met with him, and
acquaints him with this Bufinefs, and begs of him
to acquaint the King with it that Day, which he
told me he would. He asked me which Way I
purpofed to put them into the King’s Hands. I
told him the belt Way and fafelt for me, was
for his Majefty to goout on the 22d, for the
Party that was to execute this Defign, were not
to go out of Town till the Afternoon, to be at
Brentford, when the King came back from Hunt-
ing, and that they fhould have two or three
Troops of Horle by Parties to have feized them
and their Horles in the feveral Inns and Publick-
Foufes, where they were difperfed. He faid, it
was not fafe to run that Hazard, but he would
offer it to the King, and let me know his Mind.
He fent to me the next Day, and told me, he
had acquainted the King with it, who delired to
know who they wete that were concerned in it;
then I gave him the Names of thofe that I knew,
and where they lived, I dined with him on Thurf
aay, and told him what had pafled on the /7ed-
nefday Morning between Captain Charnock and T,
and what Porser faid about 1t on Fednefday Night 5
and after Dinner he faid he would go again to the
King and acquaint himwith it ; and that I {hould
come to him on Fridey Night, which was the Rea-
fon T was not there with Captain Porier, where Sir
George Bareley and they were together 3 for T went
to the Play to palsaway the Time, When I came
home to my. Lodging, I found there were a Couple
of Letters from the Brigadier, to whom I went,
and he told me, the King was defirous to fee me:
I told him I would wait on him to the King with
all my Heart, T went with him to Kenfington, and
was ntroduced to the King by my Lord Portland,
where I think I told the King what 1 have told
the Court now.

M, A, Gen. What Day do you fay 1t was you
difcover’d it to the King ?

De la Rue, Brigadier Lewfon acqualnted the
King upon the Tuefday Night before, and that had
been done the Day before, if 1 could have met
with him 3 but it was Friday Bgght that I waswith
the King,

Mr. 4it, Gen, 'Will they ask him any Que-
ftions ?

Char. No, my Lord, I do not think that any
Thing he fays againft me is material atall,

D¢ la Rue. My Lord, I remember one thing
more ; that upon Tuefday Night Mr. King told me
he had my blue Coat on.

Mr. 411, Gen. Have you any thing more to fay
as to Keyes ?

Dz la Rue.  Keyes was the only Man that told
me of the Meetings.

. Char. Where was it that you fay I pull'd my-
felf back in the Coach?

De¢la Rue, It was at the Nagg’s-bead in St
Yames's fireet, and he came out of the Coach and
asked me to go up; but I took it il to be refufed
before, and becaufe I was not invited up at firft,
I refufed, and faid, I had Bufinefs elfewhere, and
went away., ‘

L. C. ¥. Will you ask him any more Queftions ?

Char, Nos yet I think I would ask him one
Queftionmore.  You fay, Stir, I carry’d you once
to thie George Init in-Piceadilly, where there where
Liwthorpe and Mafen: Are you fure it was the
George fin ? |

De Ja Rue.  Yes, fure,
‘ Clar.,



586  153. The Trial of Charnock,King, 2zd Keyes, SW.III.

Char. Are you pofitive it was the George Inn?

"De la Rue. 1 believe,fo, I took it to be that Inn.

"Char. You did fwear it pofitively, that 1t was
the George Inn before, .
" Dila Rue. 1 faw thofe two Men fince, which
was on Sunday the 23d, at Kenfington, and they
faid' they did quarter at the Inn in Piccadily,
where you carried me to them, o |

Char. Pray, where-abouts 1s the Gesrge Inn in
Piccadilly 2 _
" De la Rue. The Inn that I{peak of is about
the Middle of Precadilly, upon the Left-hand.

Char. There is but one George Inn in all Picca-
dilly that ever I heard of, and thatis at the further
End, thereis no fuch Sign in the Middle.
 L.C.¥. Heis not pofitive as to the Sign, but
as to the Place, ‘ |

Char, 1 appeal to every Body, 1f he did not
fivear before pofitively, thatit was the Gearge Inn
in Piccadilly. '

Dela Rue. 1do fay, 1t was to an Inn m Piccadilly;
and Lowthorpe told me on Swnagy the 23d at Ken-
fington, they were quarter’d at an Inn in Piccadilly,
I take it to be the George Inn, if it be not the Gearge,
I know not what Sign it is; but I think 1t 15 not
very material what the Sign was. _

Char, Yes, itis all material tous; and I think
it isvery material for every Man to take care how

he forfivears himfelf. _
L. C. . No, itis not forfwearing himfelf, when

he is not pofitive as to the Sign.

Char. But1 hope every Body confiders, that he
did fivear it was the George Inn, and there is no
fuch Inn there.

" De Iz Rue. This I did not think of, to take fo
much Notice of it then, as to mind what the Sign
was; *twas you carried me thither,

" Char, It was your Intereft to mind every Par-
ticular 5 for, according to your own Words, you
have been a Trapanner half a Year before.

De Iz Rue. 1 have told you already, I intended
never to have been an Evidence 3 but to put you
into the King’s Hands, and prevent the Execution
of the Delign, and 1 ' vgg’d of the Council o be
excufed from given any Evidence, but I could
not by any Means get myfelf excufed.

L.C.¥. Will Mr. King ask any Queftions?

King. No. _

L.C. ¥. Well, what fay you, Keyes, will you
ask him any Queftions ?

Keyes. My Lord, he fays Tdrank the Health to
the Squeezing of the Orange, and the other Healths:
I was not in the Room while any fuch Healths
were drunk, nor did I {it down while I was there,
nor do I know any thing of the Horfes, upon my
Word, that he fpeaksof, _

“Mr. Ast. Gen. Then if they have done withhim,
there 15 a noble Lord, whom he has mention’d, as

being prefent when he difcover’d this to the King,

who we defire may be examined touching that
Matter : We mufthumbly pray my Lord Portland,
that he will pleafe to be {worn,

L.C. ¥, Hold my Lord the Book, and fiear
him, (Which was done. )

‘Mr. Ait.Gen, My Lord, I humbly ask yourLord-
fhip thisone Queftion, whether Mr. D¢ la Rye did
make any Difcovery of this Matter in your Prefence
to his Majelty, on Friday the 211t of February.

E. of Portland. . Yes, he did.

My, Ait. Gen. Yupi' ‘Lordfhip has heard what -

he faid now: Was it to the fame Purpofe ?
E. of Portl. Yes, to the very fame Purpole, and
- 2

he did 1t before hie went in to the King: to me, be-
Ing brought to me by his own Defire: It was al]
the fame i Subftance as he has told you now 3 and
afterwards he was brought to the King on Friday
Night, and there he faid the fame Things.

Mr. Solf, Gen.  ‘This Gentleman did it not to
fave his own Life, but the King’s. Our nexc
Witnefs, my Lord, is Mr. Peudergrafs,

(Who was fworn.)

Mr, A, Gen, But before we go on to another
Evidence, 1 would ask Mr. Porter one Queftion,
and that is;, What is become of the Liit which
you fpoke of ?

Capt. Porter. 1 burne thet Lidt.

Mr, 4, Gen, Why did youfo?

Capt, Porter. Becaufe I thought the Thing was
difcover’d, and it was not fit to have fuch a Pa-
per remain,

Mr. Soll, Gen, Mr, Pendergrafs, pray will you tell
my Lord and the Jury what you know about this
Matter, how you came to be acquainted with it,
who were concerned it it, and when and how it
was to be done.

Capt. Pendergrafs. My Lord, about the 11th
of February laft, Iwas fent to by Captain Porter,
where I was in the Country, to come to Town ;
the 13th of February 1 met him at the Blue Poffs
in Spring Garden; we dined there, and he told
me of a Delign that was on Foot, to take away
the King’s Life, and that Sir George Barcky, and
other Officers, were come on purpofe out of
France, 1n order to execute the fame, I was very
unealy when he told me of the Thing, but 1 faid
nothing till I had an Opportunity of waiting
upon my Lord Portland, which I did as foon as
I could, and acquainted him with the whole Mat-
ter of the Delign, and defired him to acquaint the
King: This was upon the Friday Night, which
was the 14th, and-he told me the King had a
mind to fpeak with me; and afterwards my
Lord Portland carried me into the King’s Clofee,
where the King ask’d me fome Queftions, 1 told
him what I knew of the Defign, but defir’d to
be excus’d from naming any Perfons, becaufe my
Intention was only to prevent fuch a barbarous
Action, and I was refolved not to be a Witnefs.
The King promifed me I fhould be fafe, and
prefs’d me to name them, and affur’d me I fhould
not be forc’d to come in as an Evidence; upon
which I did tell all that T knew, and went out of
Town with Mr. Porter as refolving not to be an
Evidence ; but being fatisfied, after we were
taken, that Mr. Porter, who had engaged me in
it, had himfelf difcover’d, and accus’d me, T
thought myfelf difcharged from any Obligation
of Honour in concealing it, and am willing to give
an Account of any thing thar I know.

Mr. At Gen. We know you do it voluntarily,
as you did it at firft honourably, and therefore, Sir,
we defire you would pleafe to give an Account of
your Knowledge in the Matter,

Capt, Pendergrafs, My Lord, as T told you be-
fore, the 11th of February I was fent to by Capt.
Porter mto the Country, where I was with Mr.
Bryerly, to come to Town s accordingly the 13th,
which was the Thurfday, 1 came to Town with
Mr. Bryerly, and found Capt. Porter at the Blug-
Pofts i Spring Garden, and we dined there. There
was Keyes, and Bryerly, and Porter, and I in Com-
pany, where he acquainted me with the Defign.

- We had no further Difcourfe that Day 3 the next

Day we dined at the Rofe Tavers in Covent Garden,
where
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where there was King, Bryerly, Cranbourne, Porter,

and I dined together.
King, Pray, was it by way of Rendezvous or

fct Meeting ?

L. C. ¥ Holt. Look you, you muft ftay your
Time before you ask any Queftions of the Wit-
neffes 3 you fhall be heard, when your Time comes,
as fully as you defire. (Go on, Sir.

Capt. Penderg. This was frfdrgy the 14th of
Febryary, we had fome D:fcouyfc apoutr the
Matter; Captain King and Caprain Porfer went
away, and then I went to my Lord Portlaid’s,
and was by him introduced to the King. The
15th I came to Captain Porter’s Lodgings, and
he was getting ready, in Expectation of Natice
whether they [hould execute the Deflign that Day
or no. While he was getting ready, I goes o
the Blue Pofts, where was Kenrick and Sherbourne,
and Mr, Bryerly, and there we were drinking a
Glafs of Wine, and in comes Durant, who was
an orderly Man that lay at Kenfiugton to give In-
telligence ; and Bryerly, directed him to Capt. Por-
ter’s Lodgings to carry the Intelligence which he
brought that the King intended to go out that
Day; upon that he went away to his Lodging,
and Capt. Porter came a little time after, booted,
to the Blwe Poffs, and there he din’d; within an
Hour or two after Capt. Porter came in, Mr. Char-
nock fent a Note to Capt. Porter, to tell him, the
King did not go that Day, and fo there muft be
Counter Orders; Capt. Porter told me it was his
Hand ; the Note was ligned R. Rebinfon, and he
thewed me the Note, and acquainted me and the
reft of the Company, that they were difappointed
that Day, fince the King did not go; there we
dined, and drank a Bottle of Wine, The next
time we miet, there was Mr, King and Mr. Keyes,
and Mr, De la Ruz, at Mr. Porter’s Lodgings ; this
was Saturday the 22d in the Morning, there we
had fome Difcourfe of the Matter; and Capt. Por-
ter, upon Notice from Capt. Chariger of the King’s
intending to go abroad, had fent a Lift of his
Men, and receiv’d back a Lilt of Capt., Charnock’s,
and Capt., Poiter, and De la Rue, and we went to
the Blue Pofls to dine, where we had an Account
afterwards, that the King did not go, and fo
there was another Difappointment 3 and a Jittle
after Keyes came in, and faid, the Guards were
come home all in a Foam, and the King’s Coaclies
come back to the Mews. Capt. Porter then thought
all was difcover’d, and fay he, I will go into the
Country ; Mr. Pendergrafs, will you go with me ?
‘With all my Heart, faid 1; fo we fent Keyes to
oct our Horfes ready 5 we lay at Epfom that Night,
and from thence to another Place we fent the
next Day, where we lay "tll Thurfdey Morning,
when Capt. Porier, Mr. Keyes and 1 was taken
together, the Place was called Leatherbead, in
Suiry, whence we were brought up to Town ; and
have remained Prifoners ever {ince.

My, A, Ger, Which of the Prifoners were
there prefent upon the Saturday the 22d at Capt.
Porter’s Lodgings.

Capt, Pendergrafs. There was Capt. King and
Mr, Keyes.

Mr. Ait. Gen,  Pray was there any Difcourfe
about 2 Gun, and who wasto have 1t ?

Capt. Pend.  Capt. Porter told me there was a
Mufquetoon that he had would carry 6 or 8§ Bullets,
and I fhould have it, being to join with Sir George
Barcley to fetupon the King’s Coach, and direéted
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me. to be fure to {hdot forhe of the Horfes to ftop
thewr Courfe if they feemed to drive furioufly
away 5 and Mr. Cranbonrne was the Perfon that car-
ried the Meflages from Mr. Chariock to Mr, Porter.

Mr, 8oll. Gen. Do you remember, Sir, that
Keyes faid the Guards were come back ?
 Capt. Pendergrafs. Yes, and that they were all
m a Foam, and the Coaches were come back to
the Mezos Gate, and one of my Lord of Oxford’s
Regiment told him there was fomething extraor-
dinary mutter’d among the People, upon which
they concluded it was difcovered,

Mr. A, Ger. Wil the Prifoners ask him any
Queflions? , .

Char. King, and Keyes.  No.,

Mr.4¢.Gen. Then I muft beg the Favour of my
Lord Portland to give himfelf the further Trouble
of acquainting the Court how this Gentlemnan be-
haved himfelf in reference to this Difcovery.

E. of Portland, My Lord, it was, as he has
acquainted you, This Gentlemen came to me
upon the Fyiday Night, and told me of it; and
then upon the fame Fiidgy Night; which wis the
14th, I think the Nighr before the firft time that
It was to have been executed, and declared his
Abhorrence of {uch a barbarous Bufinefs: And he
told me his Defign of coming into ir, and keeping
Company with them, was to fave the King’s Lite
by acquainting me with ir, and difcovering ir,
which he would do upon a Promife that he fhould
not be ufed as an Evidence, nor prefled fo much
as to name Names, which Promile ] made him,
and the fame Promifes were made him that Day
feven-night, when I carried him to the King,
But the King prefling him to name their Names,
affuring him he fhould be fafe and not forced to
be an Evidence, he did then name the Names un-
der that Promife from the King.

Mr. At Gen, Pray my Lord, who was by
then befides your Lordfhip ?

E. of Port. My Lord Cuts,

Mr. At Gen.  We muft defire my Lord Cuts
will pleafe to be fworn. (W hich was done.)

Mr. Sofl, Gen. Pray, my Lord, will you pleafe
to acquaint the Court and the Jury what happen’d
at that time.

L. Cuts. My Lords, T was in the King’s Clofet
that fame Friaay Night when Mr. Pendergrafs was
brought in there: *Twas, as near as I can remem-
ber, between 12 and 1 a Clock at Night; no
Body was prefent but my felf; with the King,
when my Lord Port/aind came in with this Gentle-
man: All that he faid to the King at firlt was,
that he had a Dilcovery to make of a Defign to
affaflinate Jus Perfon, if that his Name might
not be made ufe of, nor he forced to be an Ac-
cufer or 2 Witnefs, And thercfore deflired to be
exculed if he faid no more  then defiring the King
not to go out the next Day, but to rake care of
himfelf, becaufe there were fome Perfons had re-
folved to affaffinate him coming home ; but begg’d
to be excus’d from naming Names, for he faid
he would rather die than betray his Friend, and
he thought 1t enough that he had faved his Ma-

jefty’s Life. It was above half an Hour before
the King could perfwade him to name Names,
and he would not ’ill the King had given him
his Word and Honour that he fhould not be
obliged to be a Witnefs, and then he did name
the Names, Afterwards when Captain Porser and
M, Pendergrafs were taken, as my Station obliged
4 B Mg
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me to give Orders, and require Intelligence, and
affift at the fecuring and Examination of the Con-
fpirators, I happen’d to fee them before they
were carried into the Council, and prefently kacw
Mr. Pendergrafs 1o be the Perfon that was with
the King that Fridey Night; 1 had a great Com-
pallion w0 fee Gentlemen and Officers, whom I
had fome Knowledge of before, in fuch a Condl-
tion, and I told them naturally what my Opinion
was; Mr. Porter did feem forry for what he had
done, and inclin’d to make the King that
Atonement for his Fault which he has now done.
When I came out and told Mr, Pendergrafs ths,
and that Mr. Porter had named him, and owned
the whole Matter, I only gave him my Opinion
upon 1, that I thought he was difcharged from
any Obligation of Friendfhip : And he feemed then
inclined to do the fame likewife that Mr. Porter
had done.

Mr. Soll. Geir.  Swear Thoinas Bertham., [Which
was done.] Pray do you give my Lord and the
Jury an Account how long you have known
Mr. Chainock to be engaged in this Confpiracy :
Tell your whole Knowledge as to him.

Mr. Berth. 'The Sth or gth of Febiwary laft 1
was crofling Covent-Garden, 1 lit upon one Mr.
Trevor, who is now In Newgate, and he told me
he was going down to Mr., Charnock’s Lodgings,
and that he heard him fay he wanted to {peak with
me; I told him he had no Bufinefs with me nor
I with him that I knew of : But he prevailed up-
on me to go with him, and when we came to Mr.
Charnock’s Lodgings, he met me in the Entry.

Mr. Sof, Gen. Who did ?

Mr, Berth, Mr. Charnocg did, He told me he
wanted to fpeak with me, and took me mto a
back Room, becaufe he had Company in his own;
and he told me the King, that is, King Faines,
was a coming, and there was a Piece of Service
to be done betore he could come, apd if I would
affift in it, it would anfwer my Expectation. |
asked him what was to be done? He anfwered,
you muft only go abroad to take the Air, you
will fec feveral of yoir Acquaintance there, |1
defired to know what was to be done ? He faid it
was to cut off this Spark or to take off this Spark,
I can’t tell which, and then the King will come
home quictly.

Mzr. A, Gen. Who were to cut him off?

Mr, Berth. The Party that I was to meet when
we rode out to take the Aur,

L.C.¥. Who did they fay they were to take ofi?

M. Berth, He faid we muft take off this Spark,
or cut off this Spark, I can’t tell which, wiicn I
underftood to be the King,.

Mr. Ait. Gen. How long had you known
Charnock ?

Mz, Berth, By Times, feven Years.

Mr, Cosper. How came you acquainted with
him ?

Mr. Berth. We were in the Army together ;
he was a Lieutenant in Col. Parker’s Regiment,
and T was a Trooper there then,

Mr. 8o, Gen, What Dilcourfe was there be-
eween you and Charnock after you heard there
were Warrants out ¢

Mry. Berth, Sir, I'have not yetdone with what
paft at his Lodgings. He asked me 1f I would ac-
cept of being one in the Bufinefs? I told him I
could not engage in it, for I had difpofed of my-
felf otherwife, So we came out of thar lintle

Room, and he defired me to come into his Room
and drink a Glafs of Wine: There were threo

or four Gentlemen that T did not know 5 and then
there was one Mr. Chasbers and Mr. Trevor, and
My, Lee, which Mr. Chambers ferch’d afterwards
in there,

Mr. Aut. Gen. e would not be engaged there
becaufe he had otherwife difpofed of himfelf: In-
deed, he was engaged with Sir 273/liam Perkins.

Mr, Berth,  After I came in I obferved great
Whifperings among the Company, and frequent
calling out of Mr. Charnack for private Difcourle;
but there was no other particular Difcaurfe abous
this Matter that Night.

Mr. 8ol Gen. Pray when did you fee Mr.
Charnock again, and where ?

Mr Berth. At another time, which was the 22d
of February, 1 met him at Liwcolw’s-Init back Guate s
and meeting me here, he called me alide, and
took me within the Inn upon the Pav'd-ttoncs;
we took a Turn there: He told me Warranrs
were out againft us, as he heard, and we had as
good, 1f I would come to his Lodging, oo out to
Kenfington and do the Work at once and take him
off, and then we (hall be quict, and have the King
peaceably here. I am fure he cannot fay thar I
do hima Word of Wrong in what I have faid, he
knows it all to be true.

Mr., Cogper.  Has any Body elle engaged you
in this Matter 7 Do you know one Lowick ?

Mr. Berth. If that be neceffary I will celf it.
But this is all that I know of any thing of the
Prifoners; only Mr. Charnock did ask me as to
Mr. Trevsr, what I thought of him, whether he
might truft him ? I told him he might do what
he pleafed.

L.C. 7. H. Mr. Charnock will you ask him any
Queftions ? for his Evidence relates only to you.

Crar. No, I think pot. Pray did 1 fend for you?

Mr. Berth. 1 met Mr. Trovor, and he told me,
he was coming to your Lodgings, and that you
defired to fpeak with me: And when I came, you
told me your felf you wanted to fpeak with me:
Indeed I knew no Bufinels you had with me, or
I with you.

Mr, A, Gen. 'We have one more Witnefs,
and that 15 one Mr, Bovfe. (Hho wvas fiora)

Mr. 8ol Gen. Pray, M. Boyfe, will you sive an
Account when you were ipoke to about this De-
fign, and by whom?

My, Boyfe.  On Pridgy the 1ath of February |
went to vifit Mr, King, and he was the firlt that
ever told me of the Bufinefsy it was in his own
Chamber, he told me there was a great Under-
taking in Hand, and he had put my Name into
the Lift, and if T would make one, 1 thould have
a Horfe; and he asked me if T had any Boots 2
I fard No, He defired me tofee if I could get any,
and to meet him in the Afternoon at the Rof-
Tavern \n Covent-Gardeir 5 but in the mean time he
bid me go to Mr. Kuightley and he would inform
me further., I went to Mr. Kuightley, and I came
to Mr. King again in the Afternoon at the Rofe-
Tavern, and he delired me not to be out of the
way the next Day, but to be at my Lodging,
and he would come or fend for me; and I had
Twenty Shillings of him to buy Boots, and he
{till refer’d me vo Mr., Kuightley: When I came to
Mr. Kuightley 1 was told there was nothing to be
done that Day: But I was defired to be alwaysin
the way, for the Bufinefs would fopn be over, This

Is



1695. 0. B.. - - *ﬁr-s'HighiTre'afc}ﬁ."“

i all .the Difcourfe that Day.

Mr. Kiightley, and when I asked him for my
Horfe, he told me I thould have one allotted for

me time enough ; and when this Thing was done-

we fhould bz happy : But he never told me it was
to take off the King., . -

Mr. Att. Gen.  Pray what did you underftand-

was to bedone !

Mr. Boyfe. 1 dud believe I fhould know further
of it ; for I would not have engaged uli 1 did
know. But he did not tell me it was to take off
the King, or what 1t was. This, to the beft of
my Memory, 1swhat I-know of the matter;’

Mr. 4. Gen.  Pray when did you come from
France

Mr, Boye. He told me indeed feveral were
come from Jiance, and that the King would Jand
very Ipeedily,

Mr. e, Genr, But when did you come-

Mr. Boyfe. 1 came the Beatnning of Fuie Iaft,

Mr. t. Gen. Do you remember nothing about
Sur George Barcly ? .

Mr. Bevie, Yes, he told me Siv George Barcley
would command the Party, and that there were
about forty or forty-five, that were concerned in
the D:ﬁgn. _

Mr. 82/l. Gen. Do you remember nothing elfe 2

Mr. Boyfe.  No truly, I do not remember any
thing more concerning Mr, Ko, |

L.C. 7. H Mr. Ko, will you ask him any
Quettions ? for what he fays relates only to you.

Kinz,  No, my Lord.

Mr. Ait. Gein. Then we have done, my Lord
we rell 1t here alt we hear whar they can fay.,

L. C. 7. H, Muv, Charieck, The King’s Council
Lave done all the Evidence they defign to give,
and now s your Time to make your Defence. -

Charnock, My Lord, I have taken fome Notes

of the Evidence, and made Jome Remarks, which -

mut be my Defence s and T fhall take them .in
Oucder of Thme as toey were given:"The forft 1s
Capt. Poricr 5 and the main Evidence he hath given
aguinft me, 15 my informing him that Sir George
Barcly was come from fyance, with a Com-
mifilon all wnitten with King Faizes’s own Hand,
thereby authorizing us to ruife War againlt the
Perion of Kiirg I7iFeim. Bat then he fays at the
{ame time, I told him [ never fawic; and I know
not how I thould? for it ig 1mpoffible to fec a
Thing that 15 nvifible, a Thing that never was

-

in buing, and to fuppofe that ever there fhould be -

fuch a Commuffion under the King’s own Hand,
and writ with his own Hand, is fuch a Conira-
diction to all Senfe and Reafon.. that no rati-
cnal Man can be guilty of 5 and therefore I hope
the Court and the Jury will conlider of 1t, and
reject it all as a foolifh, dle, nonfenfical Fiction
and Story. It.is very well known that King Fames
his always had, and {till has, notwithitanding
Lis prefent Sufferings and Crrcamftances, Iis Mi-
nitters of S:ate about him, .1n how {lender a Con-
cition foever, they may be, or be reprefented to

be, He has my.Lord Adiddleton as his Secretary .

of State, hehas been all along with him, and it is
not fuppofable that he fhould put himfelf to the
Trouble of Writing any. Commuffions with, _his

own Hand, when there were others enough todo -

it for him, and he need only fign the Top of ie

Faies R. much lefs isit fuppofable, that he fhould - ‘have nar
..Afliftance but -my “own- nonfeniical Notes o de-

aive anjf fuch ,Cdmggliﬂfgn as this that they fpeak

_ After that I met:
Mr. King feveral times, who ftll ‘referr’d me to
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of, ard writ' it 41l with his'own Hand, and that
Sir George Barcky fhould bring it over, This. is
fucha nonfenfical ridiculous Story as ought to be
rejected with Scorn and Contempt, and is only
fitto be laughed at : T hope every body will look
upon it as fuch, and think that fuch Evidence is
very Incredible, _

My Lord, Another Thing that I obferve out of
Capt. Porter’s Evidence is this: He fays, he and
I was to command a Party; he knows what he
himfclf intended todo, but T am fure I know of no
Party that I was to command, - Itisall a Dream,
a meer Dreamand a Fiction, He thinks fit to ac-
knowledge his'own Guilt of a very bad Crime, and
he may accule himfif as Jong as he will, but I
think that will not make me gpilty of an fuch
Thing, only becaufe he fays fo: He does not fay
what Men they were, or who they were; and it
cannot be an Overt A&, unlefs he can tell who
they were,  He fays Sir Gosige Barcley and I met
at the Sen Tavern'in the Strand, and at feveral
other Places where this Matter was difcourfed of,,
and a- great many were fuppofed to be in, the
Affaffination, to the Number of Forty; but he
dozs not mention any thing then of its being dif- ™
courfed who they were to be: And Is 1t foppo- -

{able when the Defign he talks of was fo near

being” put i1 Execution, it thould not be known
who fhould engage in it ? For my Part, I deny
that .ever I was with him at anyPlace where
Sir George Barcly, or any Body elfe, talked of- -
any fuch thing: - When I was examined before
the Council, my Lord Keeper asked me when I
faw the Duke of Berwick? I thought it not fit to
anfwer that Queflion, ‘becatife I knew the Duke
of Berwick: was out-law’d here, and I mught ac-
cufe myfelf if T acknowledged -having been i
his Company, tho® it were at St. Gerwmains.. But
I faid 1 never Delieved he was in London,” and T
do not believe -he ‘was, T heard that Colonel. -
Paiker was in Eygland, but 1 did pot fee him;
and as to the Muyjor-General and other Officers,
they talk of, itisall a Jeft to me, and it 1s no-
way atall.-to be believed or credited ; that be--
caufe other Men have Notions of Caftles in the
Atr,- T muft be fo foolith as to believe fuch Im-
pertinencies too, He fays T fenr him a Lift of

Men, and written with my 6wn Hand, and fub-
feribed with the two Letters of my Name; he

does not fwear he faw me write it, and Simili-
tude of Hands was never thought good in Crimi-
nal Canles; and I- believe it was never look’d
upon for Law, that it fhould be a good ‘Evidence
for a Man to-fwear fuch a Writing was another
Man’s own Hand, unlefs he- fays. he faw him
write it, and kept itin his own Cuftody till 1t
fhould be produced as Evidencé, and produce it
in open-Court, and not let-it go out of his Cuftody
till then. All thefe Things Tapprehend, the Law
judges neceffary.to make a good Proof of a Writ-,
ing ta be of a~Man’s own Hand ; “but here i3
nothing of that here: Here is nothing produced,
nor does he fay he faw me write it; and fo I
think it all goes for:nothing; a meer idle Inven-
tion of his own, My Lord, upon this Evidence
there. is not any polfitive Proof of my doing an

-Qvert A&, by buying. of Arms or Horles, or

writing Letters, or any thing of that Naturej -
and T hope if I fpeak irregularly, your Lordfhip
will pardon me; I am no Lawyer, and T have no-

4 B 2 pend
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end upon for my Deéfence, My Lord, he fpeaks
gﬂtfl?l?r[‘es thr:g\fmrc to-be: provided, but. there
i 1o Proof of “that; I never bought any Horls,
or borrowed: any ; nay, nor is there any Proef,
that while this' bloody Affaflination: that he owns
him&lf ro -Bave contrived and earried on, was
on foot, I had not fo much as a Horfe any where,
and that | fheuld be fb vain fo get Men to engage
it fach ani Expedition with me, and have never &
Horfe myflf; is very firange.  The Confpiacy
hefays was depending a long while, and when-
ever 16 was & be put wr Execation, we were 10
g0 expeditioufly’ tor work,, left ic fhould be dil-
cower’d ; and *tis very firange then that I fhould
never hive provided the keaft thing in the World
to' do i¢ wath'!' ‘meither Arms, nor Horlfe, nor
dpy ‘thing: For there is no Proof of any fuch
thiig againf me, but only Talk, as he is pleafed
tofvedr;. o’ talke my Life to:fave his own: And
I hope -youit Eérdfhip and the Court will declare
to-the Jury, that here is no Evidence of any
Qwert Aé agunft me,

- 'My- Lard, there is-another Thing he fays againit
me: Fle fiys he had a Note from: me by the
Name-of Robimfon, to countermand the Orders
upon: the s5th: My Lord, The Fruth of that
would depend very much upen the producing of
thdt Note, then it would be feen whether it was
 miy-Hand, and what it contained, and what it
related to: Formy Part [utterly deny I ever fent
afiy ‘fach Note wherein there was a Word of the
King, or of any Fatt of this Nature that was to
bel committed, ot any thing relating to it, if it
" were truethat T had written any Nate to him
at all 5 and I hope the Jury will: confider, and
the Court will direét them fo to do: For I
Know not that they are any more skill'd in the
.Law than myfelf, and therefore I hope your
Lordfhip will give them ample and true Directi-
ons, what is Law and what is not Law, and what
is' Evidence: and what is not Evidence ; and this
cannot be Evidence to affe me at all, there be-
ing nothing that doth appear ot is produced.

- My Lord, he fiys, there were four that were
to go with Sir Gzorge' Barcley, that were to be'ap-
pointed out of each Party ; he does'not fay I na-
med' any, nor does he name any himfelf; but
it feems they knew what was to be done; and
truly if any Thing was to be done, they knew 1t
themfelves (and no Body elfe that I know of )
.who-fwéar to fave their Lives, and get’a-Reward:
If the fodr were to'be out of the Party, which
he calls his own, he knows them beft, and I be-
lieve the Party. was his own, and the Plot his own
too; and no Body’s elfe; he does not fay that I
appointed any one, he only fays there were four
to be appointed out of a Party, which Party was
in-Nubibus, and fo is-the whole Defign, unlefs it
bein his Head, fram"d there by lits own Invention,
for it only exifts there that I know of.

My Lord, thefe Obfervations T make upon Cap-
tain Forter's Evidence: The next Witnefs is Mr:
De I Rie, and he is a very good Evidenceindeed,
if ‘Hear:fiy, be to be believ’d ; he fays T was very
dhy of: difcourfing with him about it, that I told
‘him. it would come to Nothing, without faying
what'would ‘come to Nothing, not that the Plot
wonld’ come to' Nothing, for there was nothing
at Al fpoken” of any. Plot, much lefs of a

Difigii-to “Affaffinate: the King, This isall that

he-'{xys; as to ‘me; of his oivn Knowledge, all

the reft relating to me is but what Captain Por-
ter told him, But to begin with the Beginning
of his. Evidence, he fiys one Thing which is ve-
ry odd, that at the Rufe-Tavern, the laft Year,
there was a Confultation about carrying King
William away into France, in a Vellel alive, and
that Sir #illiam Perkins ask’d him whether he
woultt. go along with me to Deal, to procure a
Veflel to carry the King over: He might as well
have ask’d him to go with me to Conflantinople, or
any other Place in the World, as to Dee/, and
about any other Employment, as that. A pretty
Sort of Thing, that I fhould go to Deal to hire a
Veflel to carry the King over into France 5 T that
know no Sea-Man, or any Mafter of a Veflel ac
Deal, thae I fhould be employ’d to hire a Ship be-
fore the Delign was form’d, as he fays it was not
come to an Head. If we had got the Prince of
Orange into our Power: It we had King 777502
in our Power, how was 1t poflible we fhould ever
have. carry’d him to Dee/? 1 cannot but think
any one would believe us Madmen to entertain
fuch a Chimera in our Heads. What nonfenfical
Stories are all thefe, that we fhould carry King
William to Dealy and 1 hire a Ship to tranfport
him to France! 1 hope the Jury, and all that hear
it, will confider what ridiculous Stff thefe Men
talk of, as Evidence againft Men for their Lives.
Then he talks of my coming in a.Coach to the
Nagg’s-head Daor, where 1 was very fhy of let-
ing him fee me, and afterwards, when I came out,
ask’d him to go into the Company ; but he was
angry that they had deny’d to admit him before,
and-fo would not-go up: What a firange Sort of
a contraditory Story 1s all this? here vas a Con-
ference it feems, appointed: the Night bfore to
be at that Place, when- Captain Porter, and Cap-
tain King, and Mr. Rnightley were juft come from
viewing the Ground, and were to make their Re-
port, and Parter told him of it, and yet they
would not admit-him, and I was fhy of him, and
yer ask’d him to go up : What contradi¢tory Non-
fenfe is this? 1t- muft needs be Jook’d upon as
imiprobable or impoffible to be True, that I fhould
ask him to-go up into fuch a Company, where
fuch a mighty Conference was to be had about
fuch a great Tranfaction, when I had fhewn my
felf apparently fhy of him, by falling back in
the Coach, as being unwilling to let him fce me;
I hope the Jury will confider the felf Contradicto-
rinefs and Improbability of fuch Evidence. Then
there is another Thing, and that is, what he fays
Captain King fald he did not believe it would come
to any Thing, becaufe he did not like me as being
no Soldier, for I was for keeping out of Danger,
and having an ealy Polt: If he means I had no
Mind to be in 2 Plot, he was in the Right of it ;
for no Man in his Senfes, would ever be engaged
in any fuch defperate Defigns, where there is fuch
apparent Deftruction in view: fo I cannot appre-
hend what thereis in that of any Objection againt
me, or any Proof that I had a Hand in this Plot,
becaufe I delired to keep out of Danger.  It'was
faid that [ was to have attacked the King, with
Sir George Barcley; but Captain Porfer fays, we
were to be together, to attack the Guards; and
both can’t be true, nor indeed is either of them
true, but a Figment and Invention of theit own':
Then he fays he- ask’d Keyes for a good Sword,
and he told me I"had-a very good one: *Tis true,
I'had- 2 Sword, I-always wore one, but it does

: not
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riot follow that that' wag' to be émploy’d upoii' ted, hé had'a Mind t6'go to the Setretary’s, and

fiich- an Enterptize as’ this; And' then he' tells
your a Story dgdin’ of Captain: Porter’s’ havitig a
broad Aaming twWotedg’d Sword, Bt what is
311 this to the’ Purpofe ? Does this prove any’
Thing againftme, that I confented to, or was an-
gaged inany fuch bloody Deflign, as this; He faith
that on Wednefday he came-to me, and ask’d'me
of the Affuit, how it went-on 5 he doth notfay what
the Affair was, not he doth-not fay. it was about kill-
ing- the King 3 nor indeéd’ is it probable it fhould
be, for he fays I was always fhy of him;, and that
he could never get any Intelligence but from Cap-
tain Porser, He faith I told him it was a- Thing
would  not admit of being delay’d, and"that only
three People fhould know fuch a- Thing; but
ftill he doth not tell you' what this Thing was,
and therefore I do not apprehend how this fhould
affeét me, as Evidence of my intending to Affafli-
nate the King. Fle faith he had it from Captain
Portery that Mr. Chanibers was an orderly Man,
a-Word: I do not underftand, to convey Intelli-
acnce to meyand that Dwant was an orderly
Man, to convey Intelligence elfewhere: Still
this is all but what Captain Porter told him,
and there i1s no Proof that I fent Mr, Chambers
any where 3 Chambers, 1 acknowledge I know, he
is-a poor Man, and my Lord Chiet Julltice Trely,
I'fuppofe, cannot but remember that he was in
Prifon, and-try’d before him,:upon the Account
of Piracy.; I'muft-needs fay, I'thought him an
honeft Man- bécanfe he® had ferv’d: with me in
Iréland : 1'knew he‘wasin great want, and there-
fore I'gave him his'Diét and Lodging'; there is
no Broofithat I furnifhed- him''withr Moncy; but
I acknowledge I'did with Bread and Drink, to
keep him from- Starving’;-that I'think was an
A& -of -Charity; but it cannot be "intefpreted, nor
is there any. Proof to warrant it; thatit was with
any. ill Defign, or that'I gave it him- to: hiré him
or engage him-to any fich ‘Purpoft, My*Lord,
théy ‘would -make it as' if the Perlons that were
intended to be-employ’d in this pretended Plot,
were to be regular Troops, and to' have Courts
of Guard; and to be difpos'd of into Quarters, and
this -was to-be done by thefe orderly Men: I pro-
fefs T know not what to make of i, it 15 fuch a
Medley; a Fancy, and a Chimera, that it is per-
fectly Unintelligible, whether thele were to be
General Officers, or Private Centinels, or what,
Then, my Lord, he faith Cranbourne brought a Lift
from me to Captain Porter, with K. C. at the Bot-
tom: Fiiff, that he does not prove that it wasmy
Lift, nor-doth that R. C. being at the Bottom
of the Lift nxike me a Partner in this Conipi-
racy. Then-he faith that Cranbourne came to
the Blue-Pofts, as from me, to acquaint them of
the Difappointment, becaufe the'King did nor go
out that Day:: Surely, my Lord, I need not trou-
ble you- with- fayinng any thing: to this, for it 1s
all; -ad to me, but Hearfay ; and " whatam I con.
cern’d” in" that-which other People talk-amongft
thensfelves® tho™ they do ufe my Nume, haw can
I help that# My Lord, he faith' himfelf tiat he
intended-to difcover this Conlpiracy a Year ago,
but: tlié¢ Thing' failing: then, which how ndicu-
Jous. it was: I-obferved before, he let it alone for
that Time; but when Tmet himat the Nagg’s-héad
Dobr, and héwis o angry for their not admitting
him-intothcirCompany, which'was threz Weeks
béfore-thisDefign they talle of was to-be execu-

get Warrants and Meflengers to apprehend us;
and he faith! he hath™ often come to me, to ask
dbout the Affair, as he' calls it, but I was ftill re-
ferv’d and fhy, and told him nothing would come
of it; From all this I would' obferve that I have
very good Reafon to -look upon him to be no
Evidence, not. only for the fame Reafon that I
objeCted agamit Mr. Porter, that by his own Ac-
Knowledgment he is Particeps Criminis, but his com-
ing to me after he refolved to difcover, plainly
declares, that he fet himfelf to be a Trapanner,
and" no-Trapanner can, in the Judgment of any
honeft or underftanding Man, be a credible Per-
fon as an Evidence to take away any Man’s Life:
I'am fure what he faith of my Shynefs to converfe
with him, and his own frequent Attempts to con-
verfe with me, fhes plainly, he was willing to
trapan me, for fo e himfelf faith. He came to
me feveral Times, and- tool’ me afide, to ask how
the Affair went on, but he did it only to enable
himfelf, to make the better Difcovery, which
makes him ten thoufand times worfe, than if he
had only gone at firft and rold what he pretends
he knew, and afterwards forbore. the Company.
Befides, my Lord, as to trapanning, I have read
m a Book of Sir Robert Atkins, that to be Parti-
ceps Crinngs, proves a Perfon to be a bad Man,
and confequently not fo Credible, efpecially if it
can appear the Witnefs has trapann’d the Prifo-
ner into the committing the Crime; then' the
Witnefs will appear to be gulty of a far more
highér Crime than the Prifoner, and therefore
ought not to be believ'd: as a credible Witnefs
againft the Prifoner, for he is a credible Witnefs
that has the Credit of being a good and honeft

Man, which 2 Trapainer cannot have; and this
Trapdnning proves withal that the Trapanner
did ‘beat- a Spight and Malice again{t the Perfon
trapdnned, and' intended to do him a Mifchief,
and-defign’d to take away his Life : Shall fuch a
one, - fays be, be a’credible Witnefs, and be be-
licved againft him ? God: forbid!

My Lord, as to Mr. Perdergrafs, whois the
next Witnefs, I do not take mylclf to be much
concerned in all he faich. I think I have feen hum
but once of 2 great while, and that wason the /ed-
nefday or Thurfday before I was taken up; but, my
Lord, I have this to' fay to his Evidence, I defire
your Lordthip to obferve I wasnot in the Procla-
mation, though he was: They took Occalion to
have me fecured as a Colour, or to fave Expen-
ces, I fuppofe, while they themfclves went out of
the Way, to have their Names put mto the Pro-
clamation; that fomé Body might colourably take
them, and get the King’s Money. All that he faith
of me, is, that Cranbourne brought Meflages from
me: One Time I writ 3 Note, fign’d R. Robinfon s
another Time I fentr a Lift fobfcribed R. C. and
that Porter'thew’d him' them both; butall this
is ‘but Hear-fay fhll-'qut of the Mouth of Por-
ter; and can be no Proof at all againft me. He
faith, upon the Difappointment he and they

went to Fpfom, which to me feems a very remark-

able Thing ; for if he fay true, it is plain, this
was before'by him difcover’d at Court; and' to me
it fhews, that he had a flrong, Defign. of getting

Money, and taking away People’s Livesupon that

Accounr; ‘and that Capt. Porter was In the fame
Defigr: For Dé-/a‘Rue fiith, Captam Porfer ask’d
itm- togo with them, aswell-as-Pendérgrafs, Now

can
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can it be fuppofed, that thefe three fhould agree
to- go together, unlefs they were -in a Combina-
tion, as it appzars they now are? And I cannot
but think, the Court and the Jury will .think it
reafonable to believe: For if I was in a Plot of
fuch a Nawure as this, and" fhould hurry out’ of
Town after | had difcover’d itr, with three or
tour of the People that were concern®d in it, and
fome of them afterwards pretend to be Difcover-
€15 100, nobody ia the World can believe but they
contriv’d the Thing among(t themfelves, and went
out of Town only for a Colour, that they might
be put . the Proclamation, and pretend to be ta-
ken, to entitle themifelves to the Reward.,

L. C. ¥. Really, Mr. Chariock, T am loth to in-
terrupt you in any Part of your Defence, burt [
do not underftand what you mzan by this, and I
very- willingly would underftand you if T could.

Mr. Char. My Loid, Tfay, T look upon it, that
they were all combin®d togethor in a Defign to get
the King’s Money, and ke away our Lives that
Porter {hould defire thewr to - go with him, into
the Country, and particularly Mr. Peadergrafs, who
difcover’d this to the King, and then that he
{hould agree to go with him.

L.C. 7. Truly, I do not underftand the Force
of your Aroument; that becaufe upon the fuppo-
fed Difcovery, Lapt. Porter went to Epfom, and
Mr. Pendrrgiafs went with him, therefore this muft
be a Defign between them to get the King’s Mo-
ney, I cannot any way fee how that muft follow.

Char, Pray, my Lord, to what End fhould he
run out of Town, upon the Apprechenfion of the
Difcovery, and with Captain Porter too, when he
actually had got the King’s Promife that he thould
be. fafe, and not be a Witnefs, unlefs it were a
Combination between them, in order to fet up as
Witnefles againit us, to get the King’s Money ?

L. C.F. Tl tll you why he was willing to
go with Captain Poiter; becaufe he had not a
Mind that the Dilcovery he had made, thould be
any Way known to have come from him; for
you fee how unwiliing he was to nam: Names, and
o kept Captain Priter Company fhill, as his Friend,
refolving not to bzan : vidence againtt him,

Char. Well, my Lord, after all, I hope, what
he faith cannot b: look’d upon as any Evidence
againft me; becanfe whatfoever he faith relating
to me, Is about the Notes and Mcffages that he
laith were brought to Captain Porter, and all of
it can amount at the utmoft to Hear-fay from
other Peoples Montlis. My Lord, the laft Evi-
dence that I apprchend relates any Way to me,
is that of Mur. Bertrein, and he talks of what I
fhould fay o hum upon the ninth of February, that
I fhould take him into a back Room into my Lodg-
ings, and there tell him, That there was fome-
thing 1n Hand for the Refloring King Fames, but
there was fomewhat to Le done firft to take off
the Spark, or I do not know what, nor do I be-
lieve any Body clie doth know how to make any
thing of 1t. 1t B a very improbable Thing, that

this Matter which was to be {o great a Secret,

and which I fhould fay, was not fit to be commu-
nicated to above three People at once, -1 fhould
fend for a private Trooper, for he was no other-
wife, to communicate o great a Matter to him;

might be probable I might fay there was a Noife
that King Fanies would come, for it hath beeg
in the Gazettes and. the publick, Prints, that there
was fuch an Expectation, and Préparation for ic

on the Coaft of France ; but it s not probable, I

am fure it is not true, that I fhould fiy there
was fomething to be done firft, for the taking off
the Spark. Evidence of a Thing of this Nature
ought to be plun and clear, and diftin®: He
doth fay nothing that I alk’d to him of killing
the King, or of Affaffinating him, or of my ask-
ing him o be one in any fuch Thing, and thar
I furnifl’d him with Arms, and an Horfe on any
fuch Defign, but only that he miche ride out, and
tike the Air, and there he thould meet with fome
of his Acquaintance : Whiat unagccountable Joofe
Stuff isall this? It is very ftrange, my Lord, that
if T liked the Man fowell, as I mult do if [ wauld
fend for him to communicate a thing of this Nu-
ture to htmy, that I thould not put 1t into a Method,
that he might be one with usin the Execution of it :
But there cannot be any Thing inferred of that
N:tare, for which we fland accufed, from any
Words that he faith were froken, M y Lond, he
doth fay indeed that he o' e, that he had dis
poied of himiclf otherwifzs bur that is no mare
certan, nor can be rifirred o any partcular
Thing, than the rett, [He might difpofe of him-
It to a Friend, he mighe difpofe of himfelf to
s Wife 5 but what is all that to this Purpofe ¢
And be might indeed, if King Faines came, dif-
pofe of himfeif to afiift him, or to oppole him,
or to let ir alonc; butall this is nothing to the
Bulinefs for which we are here to be ty’d; it’s
all Joofe, wdle, impertinent Talk, and not atall
to the Purpofe, And then he fiith, that after-
wards, I met him at Linclon’s- Tt back Gate, and
took him into Linclow’s-Tun, and told him. there
were Warrants out, and we had as good do the
Bafincfs prefently, My Lord, I do remember I
met him at Linck’s-Tnr Gate, and it -was upon
Saturdgy the Day before Twas taken up, and it was
about twelve a Clock at Noon, and I did hear
there were Warrants out, but there never was that

Intimacy between him and me; that:] fhculd de-

fire him to come to my Lodging, or that [ [hould
lupport him in any Sort. My Lord I have made
a few Remarks to your Lord fhip and the Jury, up-
on the Evidence; Iam fenfible T have given the
Court a deal of Trotble; but I hope you will
confider it is for my Life,'and my AN} and I hope
you will be of Opinion, ‘that the Evidence pradu-
ced againft me is frivolous and weak; and that
the Witnefles have a very bad Caufe of ir, fince
all that they talk of, if it were true, 15 only a Dii-
caurfe, and they are forced to fapply in Words,
what they want in Faé, - L

L. C. 7. Have you any more to fay, Sie?

Char, Yes, my Lord, I defire to take Notice to
the Court and the Jury, that the Bufinefs-of bare
Words was never look’d upon in Liw as an Overt
Act to prove a Man guilty of High-Treafon, nop
that feveral Perfons met together doth prove a
Confpiracy.  Thefe Perfons proving that I met

with them doth not prove that I was concerned in |

the Affaffination, nor that I confented to any fuch
Thing 3 befides, my Lord, I am tiked

i the In-

[ LY
-

ditment with buying Arms’and Horfes for this ~

Bulinéls 3 but there 1s not one Word of itf'pfq-,':_

ved, or of my riding out to view the Ground, nor "

any thing, that I was'to be concern’d about, this ;.
i 7 villainoys

-befides that, 1 cannot, nor, I believe, can any Bo-
dy clle tell what to make of the Words, Zaking -

off the Spark, how to conftrue that to make it an
Evidence of an Intention to kil the King. It

'| -
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villainous Act, My Lord, if -I had bought any
Arms, that had not been an Overt Act of itfelf 5
it muft be proved firft that] bought them with fuch
.0 Intent to employ them about fuch a Bufinefs ;
and it neither is, nor can be proved, that T fur-
nih’d any Body with Horfes or Arms:: And tliere-
¢ore the bare Buying of Arms of itfelf, as far as1
- informed of the Law, would be no Proof of an
Overt Aé&. To prove an Overt A€t of Treafon by
the buying of Arms it muit be prov’d that I declar’d
fome way that I bought them with fuch an Intent,
or elfe it is no Proof at all; but now if you have no
Lyidence that I boughtany Armisat all, I look upon
it, that there is no Poffibility to make chat an Overt
A&, If you pleale, my Lord, tobear with me to
oive you the Trouble of reading fome thort Notes,
which I have taken out of fome Law-Books about
Qvert Alls,

L. C.¥. No, the Court won’t think it any
Trouble: Make your Defence as well as you can,
and take your own Way,

Char, My Lord, 1hope youwill allow what hath
been colle€ted out of the Books of Law as to Overt
Ads: There is Holes’s Pleas of the Crowi is pofitive
init, Thar an Overt A¢t muft be alled oed 1n every
IndiGment, and proved s That compaliing the
Death of the King by bare Words, 1s no Overt
A&, Now if bare Words be no Overt Act, why
then all the Confpiracy that is here proved, fup-
pofing, all to be true that js faid, it 1s no Overt
A& foricis all but Words ftill.  And bare Con-
fpiring is no Overt A&, accordingto my ILordCoke’s
Opinion in his Third Inftitutes 3 and the utmoft
of all that any of them prove again{t me 1s, that
1 did fay fo and fo, which is but bare Confpt-
ring. Pray, my Lord, let me know upon what
{aw it is that T am indicted and wy’d, I fuppofe
it is upon 25 f6w. 3.

L. C.F. Yes, you are, and only upon thatStatute,

Char. MyLord Coke, in isThird Iftitutes, hith,
The open A& muft be mamfeftly proved.  If di-
vers conipire the Death of the King, and the Man-
ner how, and thereupon provide Weapons, Pow-
der, Poifon, fend Letters, or the like, for the
Execution of the Confpiracy, or Preparation be
made by fome Overt A& to depofe the King,
or take him by Foice, or by {trong Hand, or 1m-
prifon him; thefe are f{ufficient Overt Adls, to
prove the Compafling the King’s Death. " But by
this it is plain, that bare Confpiring is not Trealon,
15 Wanting a fufficient Overt A& to declare the In-
rention. Now, my Lord, I fay, that mall this Evi-
dence that hath been given againft me, thereis not
one Overt Act proved of my providing Arms, or
fending Letters, or the like, And the fame Page
of the fame Book, the Third Inflitntes, Chap. High-
Treafon, upon the Words proveable Attaint, it mufk
be by Overt Act, it muft be upon dire& and ma-
nife(t Proof, not upon conjeftural Prefumptions or
Inferences, or Strains of Wit: So that the ftrongeft
Prefumptions upon the whole Earth will never be
able to make any Overt A, without plain and
mantfet Proof. And, my Lord, I do infift, here
is not plain and manifeft Proof, or any Overt
A&, but only Prefumptions i the whole Scene
of the Thing., I muft beg the Favour of the
Court as to one particular Thing: Your Lord-
fhip, no doubt, knows the Law very well, Tam
here an ignorant Man, unable to defend myfelf
by the Forms of Law 3 but I hope your Lordflip
and the Court will not let me fuffer any Damage

for High-Treafon.
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upon that Account. You are always prefumed to
be of Council for the Prifoners ; and I look upon
it as affured, that you will do that Juftice to Per-
fons in out Circumftances, as truly to inftract the
Jury how they fhall behave themfelves in Relati-
on to this Matter that is now upon Enquiry be-
fore them. Particularly, my Lord, I defie they
may be told plainly and truly, what is Proof of
an Overt A&, and what is not; and when your
Lordfhip fums up the Evidence, you will tell
the Jury dire€tly and plainly, what is Legal Evi-
dence, and what is not: and then what s fufficl-
ent Proof of any one Overt A& or Species of
Treafon; and that you would not leave it to
the Apprehenfion of the Jury, what they do be-
licve, but nform them really and truly what Is
Legal Evidence, and whar of that Sort hath been
given to Day, My Lord, here is a ftrange Sort of
Thing, a Conlfpiracy, which, confider’d in the ge-
neral, hath neither Head nor Tail s howmany there
were to be 1s uncertain. In the Indiétment is faid,
there were forty Men to do this Faft upon the
King in his Coach, and for attacking the Guards.
Can it be fuppofed, that any Man wm his Senfes
would do fuch an A as this, without Refpelt
to have Securit for himfelf and his Family, or
thofe he 1s concerned for? I know not how great
Wits thefe People be in other Things, but 1 am
fare they fhew no Wir in this, I look upon it to
be fo defperate a Thing. The Guardsare at lealt
treble the Nomber, and berter appointed ; and
that forty thould go to affault treble the Num-
ber, and in divided Bodics tco, that were only
to rn.ix Fury and Malice with Refolution, to ba
torn 1n Pieces by the Mob upon an apparent vifible
Difappointment, And when we had done this,
and made this Attempt, where were we to go ?
We had no Afylum that we can hear of, nor
Caftle or Fort to retire to, nor none that were
to back or afhft us; and 1 am fure no Man in
his Wits would undertake a defperate Attempt
without Affurance of a Retrear.  If T was refolv-
ed to kill any Man, I would propofe to myfelf
fome Place, to which I might repair for Shel-
ter and Safety when 1 had done. If then we
were In our Senfes, it cannot be imagined we
fhould ever engage in o apparently deftructive a
Defign, 'We ought rather to have been confin’d
to Bedlam, than any other Place, if we could be
thought guilty of fo much Rafhnefs and Folly,
My Lord, I pretend not to make any particular
Reflections upon thefe Gentlemen that have given
Evidence here; but only I muft take leave to fay
in general, that there are none of them, but that if
they have had any Fortunes in the World, their
Circumftances as to that Matter are now much
altered; and if any Perfons will be Evidence
againft others for their Lives in Hopes to repair
thofe Fortunes, and concerning Matters 1n which
they were engaged themlelves in, as they do ac-
knowledge, and if it be true, itmult be thro® the
Defperatenefs of their Fortunes, it is the moft
barbarous and inhuman Sort of Evidence that
ever was given by any thatever had any Senfe of
Honour, and muft be a bafe RefleCtion upon any
who pretend themfelves to be Gentlemen:: And I
hope the King will think them upon thac Account
very lietle deferving Credic, My Lord, I hops-
your Lordthip will pleafe to conlider, that whag
I have offer’d is but what my own fudden T houghts
could fuggeft to me out of the confufed hittle Re-
marks
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marks I have been able to make upon the: Evi-
.dence s and it is the more confufed and immetho-
dical, becaufe I could have no Council to affift
me. I would only put your Lordfhip in Mind
once more, of what I carneitly defire and infift
upon from your Lordfhip, that you would tell
the Jury plainly and truly what Evidence 1t Is
the Law requires to convict any Perfon of the
Crime for which I ftand accufed ; what Things
are neceffary to make up that Evidence, whatisa
Legal Proof of an Overt A&, and what Overt
Acts have been plainly and manifettly proved
againft me in this Cafe, and not leave the Con-
ftru&ion of the Evidence to the Apprehenflion or
Inclination of the Jury., This s all the Favour
that I have to beg of the Court, and I hope I need
not doubt the Juttice of the Jury.

L.C.¥. Have you done, Sir?

Char. Yes, my Lord.

L.C. 7. Then whatfay you, Mr. Kiug?

King. My Lord, I muft infift upon a great ma-
ny Things that Mr, Charnock bath faid. But as to
what relates to myfelf, Captain Porter farth, I went
with him and Mr. Kuightley to view the Ground
where this Defign was to be executed. Truly, my
Lord, I did goabroad with Captain Porter and Mr.
Kiightley 3 but it was meerly to take the Air, and
no other Thing, Truly, my Lord, I have not ta-
ken any Notes of the Evidence, nor have I had any
Council to affift me, and fo I am not very capable
of making any Defence.

L. C. F. Well, have you any more to fay ?

Kiug. As to Mr. De/a Rue, he doth not pretend
to fay, I did ever tell him of any thing of a De-
fign of deftroying the King : And as to the Swor
he fpeaks of, he knows I always wore one, and
ever had one,

L. C.F. Wcll, is this all you have to fay ?

Kizg. And as to Mr., Pendergrafs, he faith, he
faw me at the Refe-Tavern  Coveni-Garden,
where we difcourfed fomething of the Matter ;
but he tells you not what that Matter was, nor
what the Difcourfe was, And as to Mr, Bavfe, he
doth not tax me with any Defign of killing the
King: Nay, he {uch, I did not mention any
fuch Thing to him. And as to the Matter of
an Overt Aé, what is an Overt Act and what not,
and what is good Proof of 1t, and what not, I mut
refer to your Lordfhip and the Court,

Char, My Lord, I beg your Pardon, there 15 one
thing I forgot to offer to your Lordfhip; there is
no Place laid in the Indi¢tment, nor no fet Num-
ber of Men afcertained.

L. C.§¥. Acprefent you are out of Time, for
that you might have fpoke to it before the Evi-
dence was given, or you may {peak to it after the
Verdict is brought in, if there be Occafion.

Char. My Lord, 1 am ignorant in the Forms
of Law.

L.C. ¥ 1If you will obferve any thing out of

the Evidence, you may s now is the Time.
Char. My Lord, Ithink the Evidence 1s incon-

fiftent with the Indi€tment: for the Indi€tment
doth fay pofitively, that there were Horles and
Arms bought and provided. Now if this be an
effential Overt AQL, as Tapprehend it 1s, according
to my Lord Coke, to prove the compalfling the
King’s Death, then there hath been no Evidence to
fupport this Indi@ment ; for there is no Proof of
the buying of any IHorlesor Arms.

2

L.C. 7. They tell- you there were forty pro-
vided.

Char. My Lord, T have taken fome Notes,
as well as I could, upon reading of the Indi&-
ment; and i the firft place it is faid, that it
was agreed there fhould be forty Horfemen arm-
ed of us, Rebert Chariock, Edward King, and The-
mas Keyes 5 which I take to be Nonfenfe and im-
poflible,

Mr, A4, Gziro But there 15, And others 1n the
Indiétment too.

Char, Tuvis Quedraging Homines equeftres de ipfo
Roberto Charnock,

L. C. 7. And divers others, to the Jurors un-
known. May not they make forty 2 thirty-feven
and vou three will make forty.

Char, That divers others 15 {0 uncertain, that
no one can tell whether it be five or five thoufand ;
and I know not what will make an Indiétment
void, 1f Uncertainty will not.

L.C. 7. But your Time of Exceptions to the
Validity of the Inditiment is not now ; we are now
only upon the Trial of the Fact.

Char. My Lord, I wasadvis’d by my Council
that if I could find 2 Flaw in the IndiGtment, I
muft mention it, and take the Advantage of it be-
fore the Summing up.

L. C. 7. You were not well advifed 5 for after
the Jury 1s fworn, we are only to have Regard
to the Fuct, and we are now upon the Trial of the
Fact; and the only Thing we have under Confi-
deration upon the Fa and the Evidence is, Whe-

ther upon this Evidence that hath been given, yon

are guilty or not of the Fact that is charged upon
you in the Inditment ?

Char. My Lord, I crave your Pardon, and I
hope you will take no Advantage of my Ignorance,
not being ufe to thefe Proceedings.

L.C. 7. As to what you faid at firft, that
there was an Overt A& proved becaufe there is
no Proof of buying Horfes or Arms; it is true,
that is one Overt A& lid in the Indi¢timent, and
there is fome Evidence oiven of 1t; but what that
Evidence will amount unto will be a farther Con-
[ideration by and by.

Char, There was another Obfervation, myLord,
that I have made upon the Indictment, that 1t is
uncertan upon the Word suic; there is no Time
afligned, nor no Place : Pray what Time doth this
func vefer to ?

Mr. Sol. Gen. When the King went out,

L. C. ¥. But thele things are not proper now,
I tell you we arc upon the Faét. Mr. King, have
you ary more tofay © becaufe Mr. Chariock inter-
rupted you,

King. My Lord, if there be,any Objetion that
Mr, Charnock hath made, would be of any Advan-
tage to me, I hope you will let me be heard
bg ‘my Council, that I may have the Benefic
of it.

L. C.#. Itell you, that is not proper now ;
you may have the Benefit of any Objetion of
that Nawre, if there be an Occafion, after the
Verdict: Now we are only confidering the Evi-
dence upon the Iffue, Guilty or not Guilty ; and
you are now to apply yourfelves to that. |

King. My Lord, I think I have anfivered all
the Evidence.

L.C. . Well then, Mr. Keyes, What have you
KE:}?E:

“to fay for yourfelf?
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for High-Treafon,

539

Keyes. My Lord, all that I have tl:: fay is, I the Parith of St. Clesients in the Coun ty of Middle-
was a Servant to Captain Porter, and Idid nothing  fex, on the tenth of February laft, confult and

but by his Order.
L.C. 5. Is thatall you have to fay ? .
Keyes.  Yes, my Lord. ‘
L. C. ¥ Thenl muft tell you, no Man i fuch

a Servant that the Commands of his Mafter can
excufe him for committing High-Treafon,

Keyes.  1did but obey his Commands,

L. C. 5. ButItell you again, no Man 1s fo
much under the Command of his Mafter, as that
he ought to obey him, if he command him to
commit High-Treafon. It is proved you bought
Horfes, and he told you upon what Defign, and
you engaged In It _ |

Keves. 1 did not hear any thing of 1, my
Lord. My Malter was pleafed to jeft with me
feveral times, and he might fay a great many
things that I did not mmch regard.

L. C. % You were'by when your Mafter, as
you call him, promifed Mr. Pendergrafs his Muf-
auetoon, and Mr. King told Pendergrafs, he hoped

he would not fear breaking the Glafs Windows.

Keyes. Indeed I do not remember any fuch
thing. '

L. C. ¥. And there are feveral other Particu-
lars fivorn againft you : But have you any thing
more to fay ?

Keves, Nothing, but that T did what my Ma-
fter order’d me to do.

L.C.F. Have youall done then ? If you have
any more to fay, you muft {peak 1t now, becauic
you cannot fpeak after the King’s Council have
fammed up ; they muft have the laft Word:
Have you any Witnefles to call, or any Thing
more to fay ? |

Cher. No, my Lord, we have nothing more
to fay, but leave it to your Lordihip entirely,

Mr. Soll. Gen. May it pleafe your Lordfhip,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury, Iam of Coun-
cil in this Cafe for the King againft the Prifoners
at the Bar, and I think the Macter hath been fpl-
ly proved as Mr. Attorney at firlt opened Ir;
that there was a Defign of an Invafion on this
Kingdom from Fiaice, and of an Infurreétion
within this Kingdom, to abet that Invalion, and
as an Inducement to both, of a barbarous and
abominable Affaffination upon the Perfon of the
King, and that the Prifoners at the Bar had an
Hand in this Confpiracy.

Now, Gentlemen, I muft tell you, that for
the two firk Parts of this Defign, the Invalion and
the Infurreion, we have given you no other Evi-
dence now, but fome fhort Hints, that fuch a
Thing was intended ; and we did it purpofely for
this Reafon becaufe the Prifoners, tho’ they were
concerned too in thofe other Parts of this Plot,
yet they are not now indifted for that Matter,
but only for a diret Confpiracy to murder and
offaflinate the King: We have abundance of
Witnefles to prove the other Parts at feveral
Times againft a great many a$ well as them ; but
we confine ourfelves now to this Particular, as it

~ ftands charged againtt thefe Perfons in the Indict-
ment.

Gentlemen, There is an Overt Act alledged in
the Inditment, as it by Law is neceffary to do,
to prove the Treafon; which 15, Compaffing the
Death of the King ; and it 1s by Law a good Overt
A&, That they did at fuch 2 Place, that is to fay,

Vot IV,

agree to carry on fuch a Defign: Now it is not
material, as my Lords and Judges will tell you,
in Point of Law, to prove all the feveral Conful-
tations to be in that Parifh, nor to have been up-
on the Day alledged in the Indi@ment; for if it
beany Day before or after the Times fpecified in
the Indictment, fo it be before the Indictment pre-
ferr’d, and if it be at any Place within the County
wherein the Inditment 1s laid, it is fufficient ; the
thing that is material to be proved, is, Whether
they did meet upon fuch a Defign before the In-
ditment, within this County. .

This Defign, Gentlemen, we in Law call High-
Treafon; the higheft Crime that our Law, or
the Law of any other Government, takes Notice
of: And it very well deferves to go under that
Name; for it tends to fubvert the very Foundati-
ons of the Government, without which no Sub-

ject 1s fafe, and to bring all into Confufion and

Delolation, by taking away the Life of the King,
who 1s the Head of this Government 3 which Life
the Law makes facred above all others, becaufe
without that be fafe, there can be no Safety to
any particular Perfon.

Gentlemen, We have proved this bloody Con-
fpiracy moft fully againft all the Prifoners at the
Bar: I will not take up fo much of your Time,
as to repeat every Particular of the Evidence
that hath been given; but only fhortly remind
you of what hath been materially faid againft
each of them Dby the Witnefles that have been
produced,

Agunft Mr. Charnack, there is firft Mr, Porter,
who hath {worn, That he and others met, and con-
folted about this Defign, agreed upon it, and on
the Ways and Methods for carrying it on 5 and he
names the Places where, and the Times when
thofe Confultations were had : Then there is Mr.
Dz la Rue, who faith, he ask’d Mr, Charnock, how
the Affair wenton ? and he anfwered, he was afraid
it would come to nothing ; that fhews he was wil-
ling 1t fhould come to fomething, though perhaps
he might be fearful whether it would take Place
or no. Mr. Pendergrafs faith, Mr. Chariack fent a
Note to Mr. Porter to countermand the Orders
for the 15th, fubfcnibed by the Name of Rodinfon ;
but that is only a concurring Evidence to that of
Captain Porter, who faid before, he had fuch a
Note ; but Bertram tells you, That he ask’d him
if he would be one in the Delign to take off the
Spark ? And that after he heard Warrants were
out, he would have had him joined in the putting
it in immediate Execution, and aflured him there
would be Safety in o doing,

Againft Mr, King, there are the fame Witnefles,
Mr. Porter, and Mr. De la Rue, who tell you of
the Difcourfes at Captain Porter’s Lodgings, where
Mr. Pendergrafs was likewife, who tells you the
Times, wz. the 15th and 22d of February laft,
the Days when this wicked Defign was to have
been put in Execution, and there they confulted
about carrying it on. Mr. Boyfe likewife tells you
of the Difcourfe he had with King; he would not
indeed direCtly tell him, what the Defign was,
but Mr. Boyfe did fufpect what it might be; for
M. King told him Sir George Barcley was come,
and Mr, Boyfe fhould have a Horfe, and make

one, and it would foon be over,
4 F

Then



t9o 133. The Trial of Charnock, King, ond Keyes, 8 W. IIL

Then for Keyes, there are three pofitive Wit-
neffes againft him ; there’s his Mafter, as he calls
him, Captain Porter, who fivears, That Keyes knew
of it, and confented to it. Mr. Pendergrafs faiths
Keyes was one that met at Captain Porfer’s the 15th
of February, to put the Defign in Exccution that
Day. Dela Rue tells you, Keyes wasin the Cham-

ber at that Time, and in other Places confulting
about it, and fo muft needs know of it, and

confent to it. So that, Gentlemen, if you believe
thefe Witneffes, as I fee no Reafon offered to the
contrary, we have moft manifeftly proved upon
them all three, the Matters charged in the Indict-
ment.

As to what they fpeak of the Witnefles being
Trapanners, and fwearing them out of their Lives
to fave their own; it is plain the Prifoners de-
figned to trapan the King out of his Life, and
fome the Prifoners wonld have trapann’d to have

join’d with them in that Defign, who honeftly.

and honourably difcover’d ir, and now the Pri-
foners Danger 15 a Safety to the Nation.

Gentlemen, They argue againft the Belief of
this Confpiracy, from the Improbability thatany
Perfon fhould be fo defperate to engage in fo wick-
ed 2 Defign. Truly had this been a Matter that
had been only talked and difcourfed of once, that
might have been the better alledged ; but when
there have been fo many Meetings at feveral
Times and Places, and fuch Methods taken for the
putting this Confpiracy in Execution, and after
a Difappointment one Day, put off to another;
* nay, and as it hath been prov’d, it hath been a
Project that hath been tranfafting for feveral
Years, from one Year to another, and all this
made as manifeftly evident, as Proof by Teftimo-
ny can make it; the Objection of Improbability
will foon vanifh into nothing; and I hope you
will think, as I believe all the World doth, or
will after this Trial, That there hath been fuch
a barbarous, bloody Confpiracy, as in the Indict-
ment is alledg’d, and that chefe Perfons are guilty
of it, and that you will give your Verdict accord-
ingly.

Mr, Conyers. My Lord, I would only add to
what Mr. Sollicitor hath faid, fome few Obfervati-
ons that have been omitted of the Evidence that
hath been given againft the Prifoners.

The Treafon charged, is a Deflign of Affaflina-
ting the King’s Perfon, the Overt Adts laid 1n the
Indi@ment are feveral Meetings and Confultations
in order to the bringing it to effe¢t, and the pro-
viding Men and Horfes to put it in Execution.

This Charge we have fully proved againit the
feveral Prifoners at the Bar, by two Witnelles at
the leaft, and it is manifeft that they were all con-
cern’d in the feveral Meetings and Confultations
for the carrying on that Defign,

As for Mr. Charnock, Mr. Porter’s Evidence 1s
very full as to his providing Arms and Horfes;
and there is befides, Mr. )2 /z Rre, who though
he met him at the Tavern, and not being admit-
ted at firft, took it ill, yetr afterwards at two
Meeting he did difcourfe with him aboutit; and
Bertram gives an Account, how he would engage
him in it

As to Mr. King, there is not only Captain
Porter, who teftifies, that he dined with him the
14th of Febreary, where they did difcourfe of this
intended Affaflination, but Dz /a Rue likewife, that

faid, there was a Muecting appointed for Porser
2

and King, and another, to go and take a View of

the Ground ; and the Prifoner himfelf owns he
did ride out with them, but he would have it
only to take the Air; Captain Porter tells you,
it was to fee which was the moft convenient Place,
and that the Place pitch’d upon was the Lane be-
tween Brentford and Tuinbam-Gree.

Ard for Keyes, there are two politive Witneflis
Capt. Porter and Mr. De la Rue, that he was ag
the Blie Pofts, and at Mr., Poiter’s Lodgings when
this Matter was confulted of, and particularly that
he came and gave an Account of the Difappoint.
me?t the fecond Day, upon the Guards coming
back.

Befides, Mr. Porter gtves an Account in gene-
ral, of feveral that were to provide Arms, Hor-
fes, and Men; and Mr. Berfrain proves that Mr.
Chariock told him, the Defign was to take off the
Spark, and then the Time would come, that King
Fames would come back quietly Mr. Boyfe fivears,
King told him on the 14th of February, that he
was to go out upon a Defign the next Day, and
that he fhould have a Horfe provided, which next
Day, the 14th, 1s by all the Witnefles agreed to
be the firft Time appointed for the Affaflination 3
and Mr. Bertram adds that he met with Charnock
the 22d, who told him Warrants were out, and it
was beft to go and do the Bulinefs prefently, and
defired him to come to his Lodgings, and he went
to his Lodgings, and found feveral Perfons there--

Char. He does fay no fuch thing, Sir.

- Mr, At.Gen. He docs {ay that Mr. Charuock
defir’d him to come to his Lodgings.

Mr. Coiyers. As I apprehend him, he fays,
he went thither in the Evening on the 224,

Mr, A, Gen.  He lays, Mr. Chasiock would
have had him come, but he did not; the Time
that he was at his Lodging, was before,

Mr, Conyers, My Lord, if 1 miftake, I bee
Pardon of the Court, and of the Prifoner too., N

L.C.7F. Asl take 1t, there is no coming to
lis Lodging at all, but the gth or 10th of Fz-
braary,

Mr. Aste Gen,  He fays the ninth of Februaiy
he met with Trevor, who carry’d him to Charnock’s
Lodgings, and than he would have engaged him
in the Defign of Taking off the Spark ; the
Meeting of the 22d was afterwards in Lincoli’s
Inn, and there was no going to the Lodging that
Day.

Mr. Cooper. My Lord, I am very loth to take
up any of your Time; but I would beg the Fa-
vour to obferve two or three Paffages relating to
this Matter, which have not been obferved yet;
and fhall only mention fo much as I think has
been omitted.

The Defence that has been made, has been
principally by Mr, Charnock ; and upon his De-
fence, 1t {feems, the reft do depend; therefore I
would beg Leave to make fome few Remarks up-
on the Defence that he hath made, He fays, That
all the Evideace 1s but Hearfay, as to him, and
no Overt Aét of lusown proved ; but, my Lord,
I quettion not, if the Evidence be looked into, it
will appear fufficient not only to prove him guilty
beyond Contradiction, of all that is charg’d upon
him in the Indi€tment 5 but particolarly, thar he
was the principal Agent (under Sir Gesrge Barcley)
in carrying on this whole Confpiracy.

For Captain Porter tells you, That Charnack
firlt acquainted him with Sir Gearge Barcley’s com-

ing




1695 0. B.
ing over with the Commiflion; that Charnock
brought Sir George Barcley to the Lodgings, where
they both lay; that they had feveral Meetings, at
which he was always prefent, and a main Promo-
ter of the Defign ; That he agreed to find a prin-
cipal Quota of the Perfons that were to be con-
cerned 5 particularly, That he was to find eight
Men, and feem’d always moft zealous for the
Execution of it.

Then as to Mr. King, it is plain, that Knight-
Ly, and Captain Portzr, and he, went to view the
Ground ; and Mr. De 2 Rue telis you, what Re-
port Kiug made of that View; that with great
Joy King acquainted him, they had found the
rarelt Place in the World for the Execution of
their Defign, a Wood hard by the King’s Houfe
at Richmond 3 and then he opens the whole Man-
ner of the Ambufcade, and the Defign.

Charnock. 1t 1s at the Liberty of any Body to
fivear what they pleafe; but I hope the Jury will
confider the Nature of the Evidence.

Mr. Cowp. Mr. De Iz Rue tells you further, fome-
thing more than Hearfay, as to Mr. Chariock ;
that he ask’d Mr. Charnock about the Matter, what
was like to come of it? And he anfwered him,
that he feared the Succefs of it for that a Thing
of fuch a Nature was not to be rtrufted to above
three. 'Which could not refer to the intended
Invafion and the InfurreCtiony for as to that, 1t is
plain from the Nature of the Thing itfelf, that
it muft be communicated to a great many, orelle
they could not be ready to affiltin 1t: And there-
fore it is evident, it was the Affaffination which he
was in hafte to have executed, faying, 1t had been
delay’d too long, and that was as dangerous as
communicating it to too many.

My Lord, I (hall make my Words good to you,
and rather than take up your time in making
Repetttion of what has been faid, I will chufe to
break my Method, and omit what might be further
obferved : It is true, it was a Miftake of the Day
as to Bertram’s Bvidence of his going to Char-
sock’s Lodging, but that is not material 5 for 1t is
in Proof he did go to his Lodgings, the 8th or gth
of February, and there Chariock told him that King
Fames was a coming ; but there was a Service to
be done firlt, to take off the Spark, and then the
King would come in quietly 5 if that Defign took
Effect, it would anfwer his Expectation: He was
to ride out to take the Air, and meet fome of
his Acquaintance, and after all was over, we fhould
be very happy. The Words indeed were fome-
thing dark, but yet the Intent and Meaning of
them are pretty manifeft, not only from the
Words to take off the Spark, but becaufe this
Acltion, whatever 1t was, was to precede the
Invafion of King Fames with the French Forces,
and was to be done in order to it, and there-
fore could not be meant of it, nor of joining
with 1t

My Lord, I fhall trouble you no further but
fubmit to your Direttion.

L. C. 7. Gentlemen of the Jury, thefe three
Prifoners at the Bar (wrz.) Rebert Chariock, Ed-
cwward King, and Thowmas Keyes ftand indicted of
High-Treafon, for confpiring, compafiingand ima-
gining the Death and Deftruction of the King, and
that in a very bloody and barbarous Manner, by
Way of Affaffinatton and the Indiétment char-
ges them, that they did meet and confult wich

Vor. IV,
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divers other Traitors unknown to the Jurors, and
there did refolve upon this Afflaflination, and Hor-
fes and Arms were prepared and provided for the
Execution of i,

The Queftion, Gentlemen, that you are to tf‘?
i1s, Whether thefe Perfons who ftand now thus ac-
cufed, are guilty of this Crime ot not? And
you have heard a very long Evidence ; Five
Witnelles have been produced, and they have gi-
ven upon this Occalion a very large Account of
the whole Tranfaftion, which I will obferve to
you as briefly as I can.

In the firlt Place, Gentlemen, you are told,
how there had been a Delign forming, even for
fome Years, for the Reftoring of the late King
Jauesy and the Depriving and Depofing of this
King ; 1t feems it was a Defign before the Bufi-
nefs of Cape le Hogue, which you remember very
well was in the Year 1692, about the Time of
the burning a great Part of the French Fleet by
Admiral Ruflel; but this Defign, though it met
with feveral Difappointments, yet did not die,
it had its Ebbings and ks Flowings, fometimes it
was higher, and at other times lower; and in
Winter was twelve Months it began to be
more vigoroufly profecuted than at any time
before, fince the La Hogue Bufinefs, and then there
was 2 Relolutton fram’d of attempting the Perfon
and Life of the King, which appears by Caprain
Porter’s and Mr. D2 le Rug’s Teftimony. And great
Hopes were concelv’d amongft them, that ic mighe
be effelted before the King went over into Flai-
ders 5 but 1t feems they wanted 2 Commiffion from
abroad, (which they thought neceffary as an Au-
thority for them to alt under) which not coming
in time, the King went over to Flanders, and
fo for that tune the Exzcution of it was de-
ferred.

Gentlemen, after the King®s Return from Flai-
ders, the Profecution of this Defign was refimed,
and Intimation was given, that a Commiffion was
brought over by Sir George Barcly from King
James, which was to make War upon the Per-
fon of King Williain, who was called therein, as
you may fuppofe, the Prince of Orange: and you
are told by Captain Posrter, that at that time, he
and Mr. Charneck lodged together in one Houfe
in Norfolk-firest, and that Mr. Charnock told him
Sir George Barcly was come with fuch a Com-
miffion from King Fames, and imparted to him
the Defign of Affafinating and Murdering the
King, and that would be the readieft Way to
bring Home King Faies : He asked Captain Poi-
ter, whether he would engage himfelf in the
Matter. It feems Mr. Porser did freely and readi-
ly engage in i, and was in good earpeft; and
therefore there were feveral Meetings at feveral
Places, in order to confult and contrive how they
might bring it to pals,

Gentlemen, you are further informed, that there
were feveral Meetings at the Globe Tavern in Hat-
ton-Garden, another at the Nagg’s-bead in S
Fases’s-firect 10 Covent-Garden, and at the Sun-
Tevern n the Strand, and that two of the Prifoners
at the Bar, Mr, Charunock and Mr, King, with divers
others, were at thofe Meetings, and Kepes was at
feveral of them, and there it was agreed and re-
folved, that the King fhould be mordered, as the
beft Way to bring in the late King.

This being fettled and refolved upon as fit to

be done, the next Confiugration was, in what man-
4 F 2 ner
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ner it might be effe€ted, and two Ways were pro-
pofed, one by way of Ambufcade on the other
Side of the Water near the King’s Foufe at Ricb-
smond, the otherin the Lane that leads from Breis-
ford to Turubam-Green, upon the King’s Return
from Richimond, fome Evening ;' for it feems 1t 1s
ufual for the King to go to a Houfe he has on
the other Side of the Water, to divert himfelf
once 2 Week upon the Satzrday, and to return i
the Evening.

Thefe two Places being propofed, the one on
this, the other on the other Side of the Water,
there was a Difference in Opinion among the Con-
fpirators, which of the Places would be the belt
and moft proper: And in order to fettle that
Matter, it was refolved upon, that fome Per-
fons fhould be fent to view the Ground in both
Places, and make their Report to the reft ;
and the Men agreed upon, were Captamn Poricr
and Mr, Knightley, to whom Mr. King added him-
felf, and accordingly they did go out of Town
together to take a View of thefe Places.

Here the Conrt was interrupted by Mrs, King, the
Prifounei’ s Mother, who in ¢ very ontragions Vio-
Jeirt Manieiy got into the Courty but being re-

moved, the Lord Chief Juftice proceeded.

L. C. ¥. Gentlemen, I was faying that thisView
was taken by thofe Perfons that undertook 1t;
and the Night of that Day they had viewed the
Places, upon their Return, they made a Report
to their Accomplices, and thereupon 1t was re-
folved to relinquith the Ambufcade, and that the
Attack fhould be made in the Lane that leads
from Brentford wo Turnbam-Green.

The Time that was fix’d upon for this Execu-
tion was Saturday the 15th of February: There
were two Men that were appointed to lodge at
Kenfington, whom they called orderly Men, a Ti-
tle that they-gave them: thefe were to give No-
tice at what time the King and the Guards went
out, the one was to give Notice firft of the Guards
coing, the other vws to give Notice when the
King went: When Notice was brought them that
the King was gone abroad, the Confpirators were
to be ready to go after in fmall Numbers, and
were to be quartered and difperfed in the feveral
Inns about Breutford and Turubam-Green, to be
cathered into the feveral Bodies, upon Notice of
the King’s Return; when the King came over,
then they were to make the Attack in this Man-
ner, Captain Porser and Mr, Charitoct, with one
Rookwood were to attack the Guards, and Sir George
Barcly, and his Party, were to come up to the
King’s Coach, and fire into it, and kill the King,
and every one that was init; and of that Par-
ty Mr. Peidergrafs was defigned to be one, and
he was to have had a Mufquetoon from Captain
Porter, that would carry feven or eight Bullets:
Thefe Confpirators, and the Perfons that were to
be concerned, were in all forty, or fome few more
in Number.

But, by great Providence, this bloody Defign
was dilcovered, as was told you, by one of the
Witnefles, Mr. Pendergrafs, a Day or two before
it fhould have been put in Execution; and fo his
Majeity did forbear going out that Safurday the
15th. But they having Notice that the Guards
were gone, and after that receiving an Account
that the King did not go, 1t very much alarm’d

thefe Confpirators; but notwithftanding this, as
you have been told, they were relolved not to
lay afide the Profecution of this Delign, but were

rather bent upon executing 1t the next Oppor-

tunity that {hould offer itfelf, for which purpofe
diverfc of the Confpirators did mect together,
and did confult whether 1t was fit further to pro-
ceed, particulatly upon the Fiiday the 21t Day
of February at the Sua-Taverit i the Sirand, divers
of them met, and there they had Difcourfe of
the Matter, and were troubled at the Difappotnt-
ment, and were refolved to purfue it, and for
that purpofe, agreed to be n a Readinels vpon
the next Day, and as foon as they fhonkd Lave
Notice that the King was gone from Kenfrugton,
they would profecute it in the fame Manner, in
which they had formerly agreed.

It thould feem, fome of the Men that they had
engaged were gone off, and others were provided
in thelr flead, butr there was another full it
covery made, before that, by Mr, Delz Rue, by
which therr wicked Purpofe was a fecond The
difappointed.

Gentlemen, upon the Difcovery of this Delign,
it was thought very fitung to take all poiible
Care, for preventing fuch a ditmal Stioke, and
for punifiung fuch hemnous Offenders; there
was a Proclamation flued for the Apprehenfion
of a great many of them that abiconded, which
had a very good Eficct, by the taking of feveral of
them, belides thofe that were taken vp by War-
rants before; and thefe three Priloners now
at the Bar, are mdicted for this horrid and trak-
terous Confpiracy, and for purfuing this wicked
Delign, and are now upon thewr Trial for it.

Now, Gentlemen, you have heard the Evidence,
which you are to confider of in refation to thele
Prifoners, and how far they are affected by it. [
muft tell you, that Captain Porter, gives a very
full Evidence againit all three; he tells you how
and 1n what Manner they were all engaged, and
what Parts they had all in the Profceution of this
bloady Lnterprize. As for Mr. Charasct, he feems
to have been a remarkable Perfon m almoft all
the Parts of 1t, a great Carrier-on and Promoter
of it, was to be an Aor in it, and provide his
Number of Men: and it feems he was a Perfon
much trufted by Sir Gesirge Barcley, and he fpoke
to Mr. Porter, of a Comumifiion that Sir Gusige Bai-
ciey brought with him from King Feies, which
was to levy War upon the Perlon of King /Filiam,
which 1t {cems was underftood, to authorize them
to Aflaflinate the King, Mr. Kig went to view
the Ground, and Chariack and he were at the fe-
veral Confultations, and Keyes was at Poiier’s Lodg-
ings, and at divers other Confults, when the car-
rying on of this Defign of affaflinating the King,
was debated and refolved upon. Mr. Perier’s Bvi-
dence you have heard at large, and I doubt not
you take good Notice of it, and the King’s Coun-
etl have repeated the moft material Parts of 1,
tnerefore I nzed not do it again.  And as to Mr.
Charizsck, you have heard what Evidence 15 given
by De la Rue and Beitram 5 for tho Mr. Charneck,
fays all thatis tefuficd by the other Witnefies,
15 only Talk and Difcourfe, and that bare Words
are not High-Treafon, but there muft bz fome O-
vert Act; therefore you are here to conflider par-
ticularly what the other Witnefies fay againft him,
and whether another Overt A& 1s not proved.
De la. Rue (who was one of the Dilcoverers, and

(as
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(as he tells you) he refolved fo to be fo foon as
he could get a perfect Knowledge of the whole
Defign) does inform you, that between the 15th
and 22d of February, he met Mr, Charnock, and
enquired of him how the Bulinefs went, to which
Charnock returned anfwer, That the Defign did
languilh, faying, that People were not fo warm
as formerly, and did believe the King had No-
tice, for that he had not been abroad on Sazurday ;
that too many were acquainted with 1t, and there-
tore thought it might come to nothing: But
she-main Bufinefs, which was the landing of King
Yaines, would be fpeedy s and though the Dif-
courfe may be reckon’d only Words, yet they do
import, ar leaft acknowledge, to the carrying on
this Defign before that time.

But then confider what you are told by Bertrain,
another of the Witnefles, that he being inform’d
by Trevor, that Mr. Charnock would fpeal: with
him, he thereupon went to Mr, Charnock’s Lodg-
ings, where Charmock took him alide mto a back
Room, and told him that King Fames was a com-
ing, and there were great Hopes of reftoring him ;
but there was fomething to be done to facilitate it,
which he would do well to joyn in: And when
he asked what it was, Charsock told lum, he muft
c¢o abroad and take the Air, where he would meet
with fome of his Acquaintance ; and there was no
way to effedt it, but by taking off’ the Spark ; and
by doing that Thing, it would molt probably be
brought about that King Fames fhould be refto-
red. Now, though it was not directly faid, they
were to kill the King, yet it is manifeft what
was meant by it: For the Taking off no one
Perfon in England, befides King Walliaim, could
conduce to the Return of the Jate King, And for
his Encouragement, he told him further, that
if Bertrair would undertake the doing of it, it
would anfiver his Expeftations. And then you
are told again by Bersram, that he met Charnock,
at Lincoli’s-Tin-Gate, upon that very Day that 1t
was laft to have been executed, which was the
22d of February, where Cherrock told him he fuf-
pected a Dilcovery was made, and that there were
Warrants out againft them 5 and that therciore
the beit Way was, to go immediately and take
him off, and then all would be well.

Now I muft tell you, Gentlemen, that what
he fays, that bare Words are not Treafon, is ve-
ry true in fome Cafes; for Joofe Words {poken,
without Relation to any At or Delign, are not
Treafon or an Overt Act; but Arguments, and
Words of Perfuafion, to engage in {ucha Defign
or Refolution, and direéting or propofing the beit
Way for effecting it, arc Overt Aéts of High Trea-
fon, as much as if two agree together to kill the
King, though the Agreement be Verbal only, and
not reduced to Writing : Likewile, confulting to-
gether for fuch a Purpofe, is an Overt Aét of T'rea-
fon. For it is the Imagination, the Compalling
and Defigning the Death of the King, thatis the
Treafon. For che Law 1s very careful of the Per-
fon of the King, and hath fully provided for his
Safety 5 and this Treafon is the firll Species men-
tjon’d in the Statute. But there 15 no Way of

icovering thofe Compafiings or Imaginations, In
order to punith a Traitor, but by fome external
A&, that may be fufficient to manifeft {fuch an In-
tention and Purpofe ; and that which is a fuffici-
ent Manifeftation of fuch a Delign, is another
Overt Act: But there bave been proved feveral
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Meetings, and Confultations and Propofals at thofe
Meetings, about the Ways and Methods for bring-
ing about the Defign of Aflaflination. And it was
never yet doubted, but to meet and confult how
to kill the King, was an Overt A¢t of High Trea-
fon, Befides, Mr. Charitack’s endeavouring to en-
gage Bertram 1n this Enterprize, and the Argu-
ment hie ufed to perfluade him to it, that it was
a means to reftore the late King, and telling him
1t would anfwer his Expectation, is another Overt
A, And therefore, how far Mr. Charnock is
Guilty of the Charge in the Indiftment, you are
to determine when you have well conflider’d the
Nature of the Evidence, and what Anfwer Mr.
Charnock hath made to ity which fhall be open’d
to you by and by,

~ Then, Gentlemen, concerning Mr, Kmyg, who
s the next Man, he has thefe Witnelles againit
him : Captain Porser fays, that he was very fre-
quently at the Meetiags, and Confultations, and
that he came to him when he and Kujrbrly were
to view the Ground, and defir’d to be one of them,
and they went together, and did view the Ground ;
this was fome Time before the 15th of Fdruary,
in the fame Week.

And you may alfo remember the Evidonce gi-
ven by Mi. Dz lg Ree, 'That Mr. King told him
about November or Deccinbery that a Mayor-Gene-
ral would come from France, and that Money was
to be advanced 5 and that after Captain Porrer and
Mr. King told him, that the Mujor-General was
come. On Friday the 7ih of Iebruary, Kig fud
he was to go out of Town with Kuight/cy and Du-
rant, to know whether the King went to Richinsud
or Hoznflers.  Buing inform’d the King had a De-
fign to go to Hownfew 3 and be retirn’d, on
the Swirday following, Mr. King did fay they had
found out the rareflt Place, and the artelt that
could be for that Purpofe, within a quarter of 2
Mile of the King’s Houfe at Richmond ; and that
there was to be an Ambuftade, and asked the
Witnels whether he would be one in the Am-
bufcade ; but he liked it not, but had rather at-
tack the Guards. He had been av the Dig-Ze-
vern with Mr. King, and difcourfing about this Ur-
dertaking, Mr., Kigs the Prijfoner had rtold this
Witnefs, that feveral of the Guards were come
{rom Fraunce, and that feveral Confirences were
had about taking off' the King; and he did not
approve of Mur. Charnock, in regard he did not talk
like a Soldier, and was for an eafy Poft with-
out Danger; and as for Captain Porter, he haa
another Objection againit him, he had as much Fat
tn his Brains as he had in his Body; and fo the
one wanted Skill, and the other Wit, Bat {h
Mr. King owned his bemg concerned in the car-
rying on of this Defign of Affaffination: for a-
ter the Defign of the Ambofcade was difapprov’d
of, and agreed that the Guards fhould be at-
tacked, and the King in his Coach, at Turibais-
Green 3 he by Difcourfe with De /e Rue, exprefles
his Confent to it; belides, he rold Pendeigrafs,
who was to be one, and to have Porter’s Gun to
fhoot the King, he hoped Pendergrafs would not
be afraid to break the Glafs Windows.

Mr. Keyes ftands upon ir, for his Part, that he
was only a Servant to Captain Porter, and if he
had done any Thing amifs, it was no more than
what his Mafter bid him do; and that he kiew

of no Defign ; and that it was a hard Thing that

he thould be troubled -in this Matter; for if 2
Mafter.
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Mafter fend his Servant to buy Horfes or Arms,
if he does not know how they are to be imploy-
ed, afterwards it doth appear they are to be
imployed in Affaffinating the King, that the Ser-
vant fhould be punift’d for obeying Ins Mafter,
But the Queftion is, whether Keyes knew what
the Defign was: Captain Porter fays he did know
when he hired the Horfes, for what Purpofe they
were to be ufed. And he fays further, that he
was with them at many of the Confults at the
Globe-Tavern and other Places, where he did eat
and drink with them, and was privy to the Delign,
and concerned 1n it

Then, Gentlemen, by the other Evidence it is
proved, that he was in Company feveral times
when the Deflign was difcourfed of, and that he
was ufed as a Companion o Captain Porter; and
ufed to fit and eat and drink with himy and the
reflt of them at the fame Table ; and when they
drank to the Reftoration of the late King, and to
the Squeezing of the rotten Orange, Keyes was
there, and pledged the Health, which fhews the
Intentton of the Man ; and this was upon Sefurday

the 22d, and when News was brought that the
Defign was difappointed by the King’s not going
abroad that Day, he went out, to get Intelligence,
and brought in Word that the Guards were come
honie, and that all their Horfes were in 2 Foam,
and the King’s Coaches returned to the Mews;
all which 1s Evidence that ke knew of the De-
fign and confented to 1t.  So that I muft leave 1t
to you upon the whole, though there be a great
deal more Evidence than I have mentioned ; you
are the Judges how far it amounts to prove them
Guilty.

But then, Gentlemen, as to what they fay,
that the Witnefles do teftify by Hearfay, that’s
not Evidence; but what they know themfelves, or
heard from the Prifoners ;3 and fo Mr. Charnock
infifts upon 1t, that what Mr, Dz /e Rue fays
againit him, is moftly what Captain Porter told
him, and therefore cannot make a Proof, by two :
It is true, and therefore I did omit repeating a
areat Part of what /- /2 Ree fuid, becaufe as to
him it was for the moit part Hearfay : But what-
{oever Evidence has been given of any Fact done
within the Wimefs’s own Knowledge, or of any
Confult or Difcourle of the Prifoners themfelves,
that you are to take Notice of as good Evidence,
and confider of it, |

But then there s another thing that is ob-
je€ted againft the Evidence, and that is, as to
the Fairnels and Credibility of 1t, becaufe the
Witnefles, efpectally Mr. Porter, by ther own
Acknowledgment, are volved in the fame Crime,
and therefore cannot be good Witnefles againtt
others, Now as to that Objection, I muft tell
you, firft, that Prifoners under thofe Circumflan-
ces are good legal Witnefles, but their Credits,
as in all other Cafes, ave left to your Confidera-
tion. But, Secondly, as to the Weight of this
Objection againft their Credit, you may confider
that traiterous Confpiracies are Deeds of Dark-
nefs as well as Wickednefs, the Difcovery where-
of can properly come only from the Confpirators
themfelves ; fuch Evidence has always been allow’d
as good Proof in all Ages; and they are the
moft proper Witnefles, for otherwife ’tis hardly
poffible if not altogether impofiible, to have a
tull Proof of fuch fecret Contrivancess fuch Dif-
coveries are to be encouraged in all Governments,
without which there can be no Safety: And

though Men have been guilty of fuch heinous
Offences, in being Partakers or Promoters in fuch
Defigns, yet if they come in and repent, and give
‘Teftimonies thereof by difcovering the Truth,
great Credit ought to be given to them, for fuch
Evidence was ever accounted good. Befides, as to
two of them, De/a Rue and Pendergrafs, which
were the firft that difcovered, before they were
apprehended, or fufpefted themielves to be in
Danger, and therefore do not fwear to fave their
own Lives, but refolved upen it to fave the Life
of the King. And Mr. Peudergrafs had not
any Defign to be an Evidence, who, tho® he dif-
cover’d it almoft as early as he knew it, yet
refufed totell the Names, upon a Principle of Ho-
nour, till he had the King’s Word that he thould
not be prefs’d to come in as & Witnefs ; and he
tells you himfelf the Reafon why he refufed
then, and why he comes in now, becaufe Captain
Porter was his Friend, to whom he was obliged,
and he never intended at firft to difcover his
Name, nor afterwards to be Evidence againft
him 3 butupon Captain Por/er’s being taken, and
difcovering himfelf and his Witnefs, he thought
the he was abfolved from all that Obligation,
and therefore refolved to appear as 2 Witnefs
aganit the reft: And this does not depend only
upon the Credit of Pendergrafs, but alfo upon the
Teftimony of my Lord Portlend, and my Lord
Cuits, who have given you a full Account of the
Manner of it.

And Mr, Dela Rue tells you, That it was his
Delign at firft, even a Year ago, if the Con{pi-
racy had fo far proceeded, as to be ready to
be put in Execution, he would have endeavoured
to have prevented the Mifchief, by acquainting
the King with it; and he gives you an Account
how he revealed it to Brigadier Lewfon, and to
my Lord Pertland, and after to the King, which
is confirmed by my Lord Portlaid ; fo that thefe
are Witnefles beyond all Exception, and if fuch
Evidence as this be not allowed to be good, the
Government can never be fecure againft fuch vil-
lainous Enterprizes and wicked Machinations.

Gentlemen, This 1s not trapanning, for it doth
not appear by any Evidence, nor have I heard the
Prifoners pretend that thefe Perfons did eo about
to feduce them into the Defign, but indeed were
endeavoured to be feduced into it themfelves; and
though they kept them Company afterwards, yer
it was only with a Purpofe to acquaint themfelves
with the real Intentions of thefe wicked Men,
which 1s Lawful and Juft in order to the making
a full Dilcovery of their fo dangerous a Villainy ;
and therefore they ought to receive all Counte-
nance for doing fo great a Service to the Govern-
ment, without undergoing the Imputation of be-
ing Trapanners,

Gentlemen, there is no more occurs to me at
prefent that 15 material to be obferved or taken
Notice of ; I leave it to you, you have heard
what the Witnzfles fay againft the Prifoners, you
have heard what the Prifoners have faid for them-
felves, you are the Judges of this Ity if you
are not fatisfed that here has been {ufficient Evi-
dence given to prove them Guilty, you: will ac-
quit them; but if you are fausfied, that upon the
Evidence and all the Circumf{tances of this Cafe,
that they are Guilty, I fuppole you will difcharge
your Confciences, and give your Verdiét accord-

ingly.

Then
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Then the Fury withdrew to confider of the Evi-
dence, and in lefs than balf an Hodr returned,
and found &ll the ihree Prifoners guilty of the
High-Treafon for which they were Inditied,
and the Court adjourned *till fix a Clock that

Euvenng.

Poft Meridiem eodein Die.

Bout Seven a Clock the Lord Mayor, and
the Common Serjeant, with as many of the
Court as would make a Quorum, came upon the
Bench, and by Proclamation in ufual Form, the
Court was refamed, and the Prifoners called to

the Bar to their Judgment,

Cl. of Arraigimnents. Robert Charnock, hold up
thy Hand (Which be did) You ftand convicted
of High Treafon, for Confpiring the Death of our
Sovereien Lord the King by Affaffination, What
can you fay for yourfelf, why the Court fhould

not give Judgment upon you to die according to

the Law ?

The Faylor firft made bim to kigel 3 and then, when
be rofe up, be [poke as follows.

Charnock.  Sir, 1 have a great deal to fay, if I
knew when was the proper Time to apply mylfelf
to the faying what I have to fay.

Mr. Com. Serj. You are now called to, to know
what you have to fay.

Charnack. Sir, I would put this Quettion, be-
caufe I am ignorant in Forms of Law, Whether

it be practicable for me to fay any thing before
Tadgment or not? For I have no Pardon 1o

plead to hinder the Judgment; and therefore I
would know, if it be praticable to fay any thing
before Judgnient ¢

Mr, Com. Szrj. Yes, Sir, it muft be before Judg-
menl ; becaufe what you arc called to, and asked
now, is what you have to fay in Arreft of Judg-

ment.
Char. 1 have many Things to fay asto Obfer-

vations I made out of the Indictment, and upon
my Trial, if this be my Time to offer them.

Mr. C. Serj. Yes, Sir, itis your only Time,

Char. ‘Then, Sir, I think the Faét 1s 1ll laid:
We are indiced here for High Treafon, in Con-
{piring the Death of the King, and no Overt
A& is proved againft me; I fpeak for myfelf,
I fuppole thefe Gentlemen will fpeak for them-
felves.

Mrt. C. Serj.  Ac prefent you are the only Per-
fon that is asked the Queftion ; therefore pray
2o on, and fay what you have to fay in Arreft of
Judgment. You fay the Indictment is il Jaid,
wherein 1s it fo ?

Char. I do find fault with the Indictment, be-
caufe it is Jaid for Affaffinating the King; and all
that is proved againft me, was, That I was m
Company where fuch 2 Thing was difcours’d of :
Now I am advifed, and my own Reafon tells
me, that being in Company is no Proof of my
giving my Confent to the Thing’; and without
my Confenting, there can be ne Overt Al to

for High-Treafon.
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make me guilty of the Treafon, 1t is faid, #bat I
ond my Accomplicesy though there are none named
but us Three, did weet together, and confult df this
Matter, and that we bought and provided Horfes and

Arms: Which I take to be the only Overt AéL.
And of all thefe Things, there is not one Tittle

proved ; and therefore, with Submiffion to the
Court, the Indiftment is naught in that refpect.

And this, I think, I may fpeak, not only for my
own Sake, but for the Sake of thele Gentlemen
that fland by me; if there be nothing proved
aganit us of an Overt A&, as laid 1n the Indi&-

ment, we ought not to be condemncd.

Mr. Com. Serj. Look you, Mr. Charnock, you

move nothing againft the Indictments, bur only
run into the Proof : That Matter is quite at
an End, and we cannot enter into any
bate about it; you have had a fair and a legal
Trial, and wpon that Trial the Jury has found
you Guilty.

De-

Chariock. 1 have not had a fair, and an equal

Tral, Sir,

Mr. Com, Serj.  Yes, you have had both a fair

and 2 legal, and an equal Trial.

Char. If you pleale to leave out the Word

Lzgal, becaufe it perhaps may be according to the
{tnt Forms of Law: But 1 fay
fair and an equal Trial, becaufe in the laft A
of Parliament, which was made for regulating
Trals mm Cafes of Treafon, the Equity and
Reafonablenefs of a Prifoner’s having that which
was denied me, that is, a Copy of the Indiét-
ment, and Councll, is laid down as the Ground
and Reafon of making the Aét; and without

1f was not a

that it had never been made: It is in the Pre-

amble of the A, which 1 have look’d upon

fince 1 went out of the Court; and though as to
the Time of the Commencement, there is a certain
Day prefix’d, yet the Equity of the Aét is al-
ways the fame, and that Equity I take myflf to
be intitled unto; and therefore being denied the
Benefit of it, I think I had not an equal and a
fair Trial, -

Mr, Com. Serj. Sir, you have very unreafon-
ably objected this Matter of this A& of Parlia-
ment at your Arraignment, and upon your Trial,
and now ; but your Objeftion is of no Mo-
ment or Validity in the World : For the Act s
to commence iz futuro, and you are tried ac-
cording to the Courfe of Common-Law before
that A& can take Place; and it is the Common-
Law only that this Court can proceed by, and
you be tried by. *

Char, Sir, I infilt not upon the Law itfelf, but
only upon the Equity of it, and the Reafonable-
nefs of the thing.

Mr, Cosin. Ser. Courts of Juftice are to go ac-
cording to Rules of Law, and that is equal that
1s according to thofe Rules : I fay again, Sir, you
have had a fair, a legal, and an equal Trial, and
have been treated with all the Candor and
Temper, that I believe was ever thewn tfo any

Perfons in your Condition,

Char. 1 had not Council allowed me to afiift

me,

Mr. C. Serj. The Law allows it you not; if it

had, you fhould have had ir.

Char. Then my Council were ignorant People,
to inftru@t and advife me, that by the Equity of
this A& I ought to have I,

M, Coin,
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Mr, Com. Serj. Tt was never praticable be-
fore, nor can be, *till the Time that this Adt
takes Place. ‘

Char. Sir, I cannot argue with the Court In
Matters of Law; but as to the Evidence, 1 fay,
it did not come up to the Indictment;

Mr, Com, Serj. If you have any thing to except
againft the Indictment, that is very proper for
you to do, and if you will propofe 1t, we will
hear you. _ _

Char. Sir, IAnd faule with the Indictment in
everal Particalars; all the Fadts are laid in the
Parith of St. Clements Danes, and there is not one
Fatt proved to be done there.

Mr. C. Srj. It is not material that the Falts
fhould be proved to be done in the particular Fa-
rifh Iaid in the Indi€ment; itis fufficient, 1f they

be proved to be done in the County.
Char. There is not one Fact proved to be done

in that Panfh. |

Mr, C. Serj. Al that is againft the Evidence,
which we cannot at all take Notice of alier the
Verdict,

Char, 1 infitted upon feveral Things, whereby
it was impoffible that the Ewidence could be
true, and mentioned feveral Things, wherein the
Indi@ment was erroncous, and the Evidence not
confiftent wich it, or at lealt not of fuch Validity
as to affec mey all which Things, if I might
have had Council to argue for me In Point of
Law, (and I look upon it as a very great Hard-

fhip that it was denied me,) as likewife that my

Lord Chief Juftice over-ruld what 1 offer’d
about Trapanners, as I take thefe Witnefles to
be, out of Sir Robert Atkins’s Book, and what
I quoted out of my Lord Hals’s Pleas of the
Crown, and Coke’s Inftitutes.

Mr. C. Serj, Mr., Charnock, 1f you pleale to
offer any Point of Law to the Court to ftop
Judgment, we arc ready to hear it; but you oughe
not to refle@ upon the Court.

Char. Where a Man is dying, fure he may
have Leave to take Notice of what Hardfhips he
has lan under.

Mr. C. Serj. Pray, Sir, hear me; No Men
that ever ftood in your Place have had more In-
dulgence and Iavour fhew’d them, nor, I be-
lieve, fo much neither. Thofe of us that are
here, and were at your Trial, do think you do
very much amifs, to make any Reflections upon
the Court, after you were {o fairly dealt with,
If you have any thing that is material to offer in
Arreft of Judgment, pray let us hear 1it: But
we muft over-rule all Difcourfes of this Nature,
'+ 1s 2 vain fort of Difcourfe, and will be of no
Ufe or Service to you at all.

Char. Truly, I know not what 1t is poffible
for me to urge which you will think to be mate-
rial, if I cannot urge falfe Latin and Inconiiften-
cies. There have been heretofore Arrefts of
Judgment, and that muft fure have been upon
fome Error or other.

Mr. C. Serf. It is true, but you aflign none;
you abound in Words, but will not ofter any
thing that is fit for you to offer.

Chay. Sir, I affign this particularly as an Error,
and if it be not, I cannot tell what 15: I amupon
my laft Legs, and ftand here for my Life, and
ought to be allowed all legal Advantages. One
particular thing is this, Whether the Scene of the
Fa& being laid to be at the Panth of St. Cle-

snent Danes there ought not to be Proof that fuch
Falts were done there; and if fo, Whether it be
not an Error, that there was no Proof of any
one Fa&t done there? And then the next thing
is, we are charged to have bought Horfes and
Arms i the Indi€tment, and there was no Progof
of any Horfes or Arms bought; I am fure as to
me there was not.

Mr, C, Serj. 1 told you before, all this is to no
Purpofe, you enter into the Evidence, which is
Matter of Falt, which is all over, and we cannot
enter into any Conlideration of it, therefore pray
do not fpend our Time; but if you have any
thing that is an Objection to the Frame of the In-
dictment, let us hear it.

Char. Then I think that the Indiétment is yn-
certain; it fays, quadraginta Homines equeftres aut
eivciter de ipfis Roberto Charnock, Edwardo Kine,
& Thoma Keyes; this is either not true, or itcis
Nonfenfe : For if there be torty Horfemen, or
thereabouts, of Robert Charnock, Edward Kinp,
and Tooinas Keyes, that cannot be true, for rhz}f
can’t make forty; and if you take in the alis
Proditoribus ignotis, that will make it uncertain,
and that Uncercunty will mike the Indictnient
vord.

Mr. C. Sezy. I thought my Lord Chief Juftice
had fatisfied you as to that Objettion; you re-
peat but part of the Sentence: Itis faid, de ipfs
Roberto Charnock, & prediiiis aliis Proditoribus
ignotis, cc aliis, that iscertain enough, I thought
we fhould have heard no more of that frivolous
Objetion, but you had been fausfied with the
Judge’s Anfwer to It

Char. 1 am fausfied in Point of Fact that they
conltrued it {o; but thefe are the Words of the
Indictment as they were read to me.

Mr. C. Serj. You fhall have the Words read to
you agam. Read them.

Clr of Arrajgmnents,  Quod quadraginta Homines
Equefires aui eo ciiciter de ipfis Roberto Charnock,
Edwardo King, & Thoma, Keyes, & predifiis
aliis Proditoribus ignotis, ac aliis.

Mr, C. Serf. You took but Part of the Sen-
tence, or elle you could never have made thac
Objection.

Char.
1s that s

Mr. C. Sery.  You can ealily tell that fure; it
is then and there.

Char. What, ihidiein ¢ What Word is that ?

Mr. C. Sery. It is the beft Word that could be
ufed ; what Word would you have had ?

Char., Tunc 3 ibi, 1s then and there.

Mt. C. Serj. No, ibidem 15 a better Word, and
is always ufed in our Pleadings at Law.,

Char. Then Ihave only thisin general to fay ;
Whether 1t be poffible for a Man that is ignorant
in Forms of Law to defend himfelf without Coun-
cil! I muft defire Council to look into the Indi&-
ment and o affift me,

Mr. C. 827, That 1s what we cannot allow by
Law, unlefs you offer fomething that may be fuch
an Objection, as the Court fhall think fit to have
argued by Council.

Char. But how fhall I that am ignorant in the
Law, know how to offer you that which you will
think fit to hear Council to? .

Mr. C. Serj. You may offer any thing that you
think is an Exception, and the Court will confi-
der of it; for I think 1t is my Duty, and every

. Man’s

‘Then, Sir, here is tuie & ibidem, what
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Man’s that has the Honour to fit here by the
King’s Commiffion, to lay as much Weight upon
any Objection that the Prifoner does offer, as it
will bear; but if nothing be offer’d that is of
the leaft Weight or Moment, we being to do our
Duty equally between the King and the Prifoner,
we cannot allow Council when there 1s nothing
before us to allow 1t upon.

Char. You will not, it feems, let me have
fuch Affiftance as I may offer you fomething
matcrial.

Mr. C. Serf. You know well enough we can-
not do it; pray do not fpend our Time to no
Purpofe.

Char. Nay, Sir, if you be in hafte, I will not
trouble you any longer,

Mr, C. Serj. You have no Reafon to fay we
are in hafte; T am fure you have bad all the
Indulgence and Partence that could bey you are
at Liberty to offer any Thing that you can, but
ro fpend the Time of the Court in bare Words is
not reafonable,

Char., The Law was never my Practice, Sir,
nor Study: I perceive whatfoever T offer fignifies
nothing ; thercfore I beg your Pardon for the
Trouble I have given you; I fhall not attempt
to offcr any thing farther,

Mr. C. Serj. You may offer what you will, we
will hear you,

Cher. Sir, T perceive whatfozver T {ay is unac-
ceptable, and fo I had as good let 1t alone.

Mr. C. Serj. You fhall bz heard to fay what-
ever you think is for your Interelt to fay.

Char. 1 thought thefe Things were for my
Interelt to offer; but I fee it 1s to no Purpofe s
therefore I have no more to fay; I have done.

Mr. C. Seij. You may offer what you will, and
vou fhall be heard with all the Patience and Can-
dour imaginable.

Char. I fce it is impoflible for mie to offer any
thing that the Court will thiak material; there-
fore it is 0 vain for me to fprak, and trouble my
fclf and the Court with what will be of no Ute
{0 D,

Cl. of Arraionments. Edwaerd Kiig, hold up
thy Fland, (wwbich be did.) You ftand convicted
of the fame Fligh Trealon; What can you fay
for yourfelf, why the Court fhould not give
Judament upon you to die according to Law?

(Then be was wadz to kizel, and vife up again.)

Kize, What Mr. Charnock has fad, all of it
do 1magine to be material ; and fince he 1s not to
be heard, I have done; I can fay no more,

Gl of Ar. Thomas Keyes, hold up your Hand ;
you are in the fame Cafe with the Prifoner that
went lalt before you: What can you fay for
yourfelf why the Court fhould not give Judg-
ment upon you to die according to the Law ?

(He <vas made to kieel, and rife agaii.)

Keyes. Siry I have had no Council, nor no
Afhftance fince I have been i Prifon.

Mr. C. Serj.  That you alledged upon your
Tril, and you were then told you might have
had Council if you had thought fit; for you
had an Order for it, and you come too late to offer
any Thing of that Nature now. But the Quefti-
on that is now ask’d you 15, what have you to fay
for yourfelf, why Judgment fhould not pafs upon
you ? ‘

Neyes. 1 was only a Servant.

Vor IV,

for High-Treafon.
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Mr, C. Ser;, You have been told that will not
excufe 2 Man in {uch a Cafe,
Keyes. 1 cannot help it, Sir, T have done; [
hope you will take care of my Wife and Children’
when I am gone,

Then Proclomation was made for Silence, whilf
Judgment <was in groing 5 which the comman
Serjeat, Jfitting dowon wpo the Bench, pro-
Hounced this:

Mr, C. Seij. Robert Charnock, Edward King, and
T homas Kzyes, the Prifoners at che Bar; You have
been feverally indicted for High-Treafon ; you
have pleaded not guilty, and put yourfelves,
for your Trial, upon the Country, which Coun-
try have found you Guilty : You have had the
Benefit of a fair, lawhul, indifferent, and equal
Trial, according to the Laws of this Land ; thofe
very Laws, which you are charged in this Indict-
ment to have confpired to fubvert. It is a Crime
of the higheft Nature that the Law knows: You
are Gentlemen of liberal Education, and I hope
this will bring you to forme Reflection, both upon
the State of your own Cafe, and the Blacknefs of
your Offence, in the Time you have to live, which
I fear 1s but fhort: It Is certainly the heinoufeft
Crime that any Perfons can be guilty of; the
Murdering of a Prince in cold Blood, and in-
volving your Country in Shwghter and Con-
fufion. I have nothing more to do, but to
pronounce the Judgment that the Law has

provided for fuch Offenders, and which the
Court doth award:

That you go from bence to the Place frons
wheice you caime 5 and  thal froim  theuce
you be drown upen a Hurdle to the Place
of Execution, where you are feverally to
be Hauged by th: Neck, and cut dywon
olive 5 vowr Bowels and Privy Meibers
fo le cut out from your Bodies, and to le
Buint in your View 5 your Heads to e
cut off, your Bodies refpeltively fo be  di-
vided into [onyr Parts y which Heads and
Quaiters are fo le at the King’s Difpo-
fal » dud God bave DMercy wmpon your
Sauls. )

Char, Sir, I defire we may have the Favour to
have our Friends and Relations come to us whil=
we are 1n Prifon.

Mr. C. Serf, You fhall have all the Liberty of

your Friends and Relations coming to you, that
yon can reafonably defire.

Char. And I hope we fhall have no hard Ufage
in Prifon.

Mr. C. Serj, No, God forbid you thould ; you
may affure yourfelf you fhall have none.

Then the Seffons of Peace for London, aud of
Gaol-Delivery of Newgate for London aid
Middlelex, were adjourn’d unio Saturday the

o 1t of March following.

Accordingly on Wednefiday the 18th of March,
169% they were all three drawn from New-
gate 10 Tyburn on Sledges, were they de-
liver’d the following Papers to the Sheriff.

4 G Mr.



